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Auditing Procedures Report

Issued under P.A. 2 of 1968, as amended and P.A. 71 of 1919, as amended.
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We affirm that:
We are certified public accountants licensed to practice in Michigan.

We further affirm the following material, “no” responses have been disclosed in the financial statements, including the notes, or in the
Management Letter {report of comments and recommendations).

Check each applicable box below. (See instructions for further detail.)

All required component units/funds/agencies of the local unit are included in the financial statements and/or disclosed in the
reporting entity notes to the financial statements as necessary.

There are no accumuiated deficits in one or more of this unit's unreserved fund balances/unrestricted net assets
(P.A. 275 of 1980) or the local unit has not exceeded its budget for expenditures.

The local unit is in compliance with the Uniform Chart of Accounts issued by the Department of Treasury.

KX R X Yes

® X
0 000 0DOoOo0oO0 g own

The local unit has adopted a budget for all required funds.

A W

A public hearing on the budget was held in accordance with State statute.

The local unit has not violated the Municipal Finance Act, an order issued under the Emergency Municipal Loan Act, or
other guidance as issued by the Local Audit and Finance Division.

The local unit has not been delinquent in distributing tax revenues that were collected for another taxing unit.

The local unit only holds deposits/investments that comply with statutory requirements.
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The local unit has no illegal or unauthorized expenditures that came to our attention as defined in the Buflefin for
Audits of Local Units of Govemment in Michigan, as revised (see Appendix H of Builetin).

There are no indications of defalcation, fraud or embezzlement, which came o our attention during the course of our audit
that have not been previously communicated to the Local Audit and Finance Division (LAFD). If there is such aclivity that has.
not been communicated, please submit a separate report under separate cover.
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1. [1J The local unitis free of repeated comments from previous years.

12. XK [0 The audit opinion is UNQUALIFIED.

13. X [J The local unit has complied with GASB 34 or GASB 34 as modified by MCGAA Statement #7 and other generally
accepted accounting principles (GAAP).

14, [J The board or:council approves all invoices prior to payment as required by charter or statute,

i5. [X] [0 To our knowledge, bank reconciliations that were reviewed were performed timely,

If a local unit of government (authorities and commissions included) is operating within the boundaries of the audited entity and is not
included in this or any other audit report, nor do they obtain a stand-alone audit, please enclose the name(s), address{es), and a
description(s) of the authority and/or commissicn.

I, the undersigned, certify that this statement is complete and accurate in all respects.

We have enclosed the following: Enclosed | Not Required (enter a brief justification)

Financial Statements

The letter of Comments and Recommendations D Not required. No letter of comments or recommendations issued

Other (Describe) D

Certified Public Accountant (Firm Name} Telephone Number
PricewaterhouseCoopers, LLP {313) 384-6000
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1900 Saint Antoine Sireet Detroit Mi 48226
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FINANCE DEPARTMENT

10 N. Main St., 12th Floor
Mount Clemens, Michigan 48043
586-469-5250 FAX 586-469-5847

June 28, 2006

David M. Diegel
Finance Director

John H. Foster To the Citizens of Macomb County
Assistant Finance Director
The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of Macomb County, Michigan for the
Robert Grzanka, C.PA. fiscal year ended December 31, 2005, is hereby submitted. Responsibility for both the
Internal Audit Manager accuracy of the data, and the completeness and fairness of the presentation, including all
disclosures, rests with the County. To the best of our knowtedge and belief, the enclosed
Stephen L. Smigiel, C.P.A.  data are accurate in all material respects and are reported in a manner designed to present
Accounting Manager fairly the financial position and results of operations of the various funds of the County. All
disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an understanding of the County's financial
activities have been inciuded.

State law requires that all general purpose local governments publish within six months of the
close of each fiscal year a complete set of financial statements presented in conformity with
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) and audited in accordance with generally
accepted auditing standards by a firm of licensed certified public accountants.

This report consists of management's representations concerning the finances of Macomb
County. Consequently, management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and
refiability of all the information presented in this report. To provide a reasonable basis for
making these presentations, County management has established a comprehensive intemal
control framework that is designed to protect the government's assets from loss, theft, or
misuse and to compile sufficient reliable information for the preparation of the County’s
financial statements in conformity with GAAP. Because the cost of internal controls shouid
not outweigh their benefits, the County’s comprehensive frarmmework of internal controls has
been designed to provide reasonable rather than absolute assurance that the financial
statements will be free from material misstatement. As management, we assert that, to the
best of our knowledge and belief, this financial report is complete and reliable in all material
respects.

Macomb County’s financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP,
a firm of licensed certified public accountants. The goal of the independent audit was to
provide reasonable assurance that the financial statements of the County for the fiscal year
ended December 31, 2005 are free of material misstatement. The independent audit
involved examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements; assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management; and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. The
independent auditor concluded, based upon the audit, that there was reasonable basis for
rendering an unqualified opinion that the County's financial statements for the fiscal year
ended December 31, 2005 are fairly presented in conformity with GAAP. The independent
auditor’s report is presented as the first component of the financial section of this report.

MACOMB COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS Nancy M. White Yoan Flynn Leonard Haggerty
District 20 District 6 District 2]
Chair Vice-Chair Sergeant- At-Arms
Andrey Duzyj - District 1 Sue Rocca - District 7 Peter J. Lund - District 12
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The independent audit of the financial statements of Macomb County was part of a broader, federally
mandated “Single Audit” designed to meet the special needs of federal grantor agencies. The standards
governing Single Audit engagements require the independent auditor to report not only on the fair presentation
of the financial statements, but also on the audited government's internal controls and compliance with legal
requirements, with special emphasis on internal controls and legal requirements involving the administration of
federal awards. These reports are available in the County’s separately issued Single Audit Report.

The Fiscal Year 2005 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report is issued pursuant to the requirements of
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 34 - Basic Financial Statements and
Management’s Discussion and Analysis for State and Local Governments, as amended by GASB Statement
No. 37 - Basic Financial Statements and Management's Discussion and Analysis for State and Local
Governments - Omnibus and Statement No. 38 - Certain Financial Statement Note Disclosures. Readers of
our 2005 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report will notice two statements, entitled Statement of Net Assets
and Statement of Activities. These statements will provide readers with the financial position of Macomb
County viewed as a single entity. The GASB statements also require that management provide a narrative
introduction, overview and analysis to accompany the basic financial statements in the form of Management's
Discussion and Analysis (MD8A). This letter of transmittal is designed to complement the MD&A and should
be read in conjunction with it. Macomb County’s MD&A can be found immediately following the report of the
independent auditors,

PROFILE OF MACOMB COUNTY

Macomb County is located in Southeastern Michigan and comprises the northeastern portion of the Detroit
Metropolitan Area. The County encompasses 482 square miles, and ranks third in both popuiation and State
Equalized Value of all 83 counties in the state. According to the 2000 census, there are 788,149 persons living
within 27 municipalities in Macomb County including three of the largest communities in Southeast Michigan:
the City of Warren (2nd), the City of Sterling Heights (3rd) and Clinton Township (7th). The cities of Warren
and Sterling Heights enjoy the third and fourth highest populations of all cities in the State of Michigan,
following only Detroit and Grand Rapids. The County seat is located in the City of Mount Clemens.

Macomb County’s governmental structure is defined by the State Constitution and the general laws of the
State of Michigan. The County’s legislative body, and its administrative bady for most functions, is the County
Board of Commissioners. Currently, there are twenty-six commissioners elected by direct vote from single-
member districts.

The Treasurer, Clerk/Register of Deeds, Prosecutor, and Sheriff are offices established by the State's
constitution. A Public Works Commissioner was established as an elected position in 1909 and currently
operates under Public Act 40 of 1956, the Uniform Drain Code. The above offices are countywide elected with
four-year terms. The Treasurer is responsible for collection of delinquent property taxes, property tax
settlements with foca! units of government, cash management and investments. The Clerk/Register of Deeds
is responsible for recording vital statistics, maintaining court records, Board of Commissioner proceedings,
and documents affecting property ownership. The Sheriff and Prosecutor are responsible for law enforcement,
The Public Works Commissioner is responsible for construction and maintenance of draing, lake level control
and sewer interceptors.

The Macomb County Courts consist of the Sixteenth Circuit (including Family Court), Probate and 42™ District
Court Divisions | and Il. The Circuit Court has jurisdiction over criminal cases where the minimum penalty is
over one year incarceration, civil damage cases where the controversy exceeds $25,000, and domeslic
relation matters. The Macomb County Probate Court consists of two divisions: Wills and Estates and Mental.
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The Wills and Estates Division administers estates for deceased persons and appoints guardians for minors
and legally incapacitated adults. The Mental Division accepts petitions and holds hearings on the
hospitalization of individuals who are in need of mental health services and appoints guardians when
necessary. The 42™ District Court has jurisdiction over misdemeanors, ordinance and charter violations, civil

cases under $25,000, and preliminary examinations in felony cases.

A consideration in preparing the CAFR for the County was the identification of the reporting entity. Various
potential component units were evaluated to determine whether they should be reported in the County's
CAFR. A component unit was considered to be part of the County's reporting entity when it was concluded
that the County was financially accountable for the entity or the nature and significance of the relationship
between the County and the entity was such that exclusion would cause the County's financial statements to

be misleading or incomplete.

This Comprehensive Annual Financial Report includes all the funds of the County and the funds of the
Macomb/St. Clair Workforce Development Board (Michigan Works!), the Martha T. Berry Medical Care
Facility, the Macomb County Parks and Recreation Commission, the Macomb County Library Board, the
Macomb County Social Services Board, the Macomb County Public Works Commission, the Macomb County
Community Mental Health Board, the Macomb County Employees Retirement System, the Macomb County
Retiree Heailth Care Board, the Macomb County Building Authority, the Macomb County Criminal Justice
Building Authority and the Macomb County Road Commission. Not included are the funds of Macomnb
Community College and Macomb Intermediate School District as well as various cities, townships, villages and
local school districts which have not met the established criteria for inclusion in the reporting entity and
accordingly are excluded from this report.

The Building Authorities have been combined with the financial statements of the County in accordance with
the Statement on Michigan Governmental Accounting and Auditing No.2-Accounting and Financial Disclosures
of Building Authorities-as issued by the State Treasurer,

ECONOMIC CONDITION

Macomb County continues to grow, as demonstrated by the financial statements and schedules included in
this report. The assessed value of the taxable property supporting the County's 2005 operations (the 2004
taxable value) was approximately $26.9 billion, an increase over the prior year of $1.4 billion, or 5.5%. The
econcmic base of the County is continuing to increase. The 2005 valuation {to fund 2006 operations) shows
an increase of 6.0% over the 2004 valuation. The County’s tax base expansion has averaged 6.5% over the
last seven years.

Macomb County is located within five hundred miles of one half of the United States' population and a major
portion of the Canadian market. The County is linked to these important areas by an extensive transportation
network consisting of highways, rail, and air. In addition, the County’s eastern boundary borders Lake St. Clair
which links Lakes Huron and Erie giving the County direct access to the world’s busiest international
waterway. Macomb County is the location of choice for manufacturers because of an abundance of industrial
tand ready for development, a highly skifled labor force, a strong local economy and locat govermment support
for County wide economic expansion.

There are more than 2,000 manufacturing businesses focated in Macomb County, including maijor facifities of
each of the Big Three automotive companies including the General Motors Technical Center, the world's
largest engineering and design center. Macomb Counly is also headquarters for General Motors North
American Operations. Macomb is the only county in the nation with two DaimlerChrysler assembly plants -
and also the only county with two DaimlerChrysler stamping plants. At two million square feet,
DaimlerChrysler's Sterling Heights Stamping Plant is the largest of all of its stamping operations. In addition,
more than 40 Fortune 100 companies have facilities in Macomb County.




Macomb County contains approximately 22,000 acres of industrial and institutional land. The County is
positioned well for more growth due to the fact that its land is only 50 percent developed. It is significant {o
note that Macomb County already has sufficient sewer and water capacity to serve the undeveloped balance
of the County. The combination of these factors makes Macomb County a strategic location for manufacturing
facilities in the Midwest. New and ongoing construction of full service industrial parks, manufacturing plants,
office centers, research and development facilities, retail centers and residential construction continue to

expand the existing economic base.

People are one of the County's richest resources. From college degrees, to high tech training, to practical
experience, Macomb's work force of over 420,000 has it all. Macomb County continues to be a major
manufacturing center, however the County experienced a major shift in employment during the decade of the
1990’s as it diversified its employment base away from manufacturing to the service sector. The percentage of
total County jobs in the manufacturing sector decreased from 35% in 1980 to 26% in 2000. Adding definition
to Macomb's robust and diverse work force is an agricultural heritage most evident in the northern portions of
the County, where second and third generation farmers maximize nature’s weaith.

There has been substantial industrial development in the County over the past thity years. A mile wide
industrial corridor 12 miles long, located between Mound and Van Dyke Roads, comprises large industrial
establishments including General Motors Technical Center, DaimlerChrysler Corporation’s Warren Truck
Assembly Plant, Sterling Heights Stamping Plant, Sterling Heights Assembly Plant and the paint and vinyl
plants of Ford Motor Company, as well as the Detroit News and Detroit Free Press Sterting Heights printing
plant and General Dynamics Land Systems. General Dynamics designs, manufacturers and supports
armored weapons systems and electronic products for the U.S. Army.

Electrical service is provided by the Detroit Edison Company. Consumers Energy Company and the
Southeast Michigan Gas Company supply natural gas. All three utilities have the capacity to supply large
industrial customers. SBC provides telephone service.

Municipal water and sanitary sewer service is available in most of Macomb County's urbanized areas. Large
tracts of vacant industrial and commercial land have access to these services.

There are over 2,988 retail trade establishments conveniently located throughout Macomb County offering the
consumer a full range of products and services.

Several large shopping malls are located in the County including the Macomb Mall located in the City of
Roseville and Lakeside Shopping Center located in the City of Sterling Heights. Lakeside Mall opened in
1976. It is the area's largest shopping mall and empioys approximately 2,200 people. This multi-level,
enclosed, climate-controiled regional mall is located on 545 acres and has 51 acres of lakes, parking lots for
8,000 vehicles and 1,485,000 square feet of gross leasable space. The major stores in the mall are Marshall
Field’s {206,000 square feet), J.C. Penney (215,000 square feet), Sears (312,000 square feet) and Lord &
Taylor (160,000 square feet). There are approximately 180 other mall stores, speciaity shops, restaurants and
other retail spaces in the mall.

Higher education is available to County residents at Macomb Community College, Baker College and
Davenport University.

Macomb Community College, (MCC) has three campuses located in the County which offer 127 degree and
certificate programs as well as continuing education courses, counseling, cultural activities and community
services 1o a current enrollment of 27,000 students. The College operates the 1,200 seat Macomb Center for
the Performing Arts, which is one of the finest facilities of its kind in the State of Michigan. MCC s accredited
by efeven state, national and occupational associations, including the North Central Association. The Coilege
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now has a Bachelors Degree Partnership Program. This program, in conjunction with Wayne State University,
Central Michigan University, University of Detroit/Mercy, Oakland University and Walsh College offers fifteen

different Bachelor Degree programs.

Baker College of Clinton Township has an enrollment of over 4,000 students. it is accredited by the North
Central Association of Colleges and Schools and offers a variety of Certificates, Associate’s, Bachelor's and
Master’s degree programs. Baker College recently completed a multi-million dollar expansion of its Clinton
Township Campus including a Student Center and a 40,000 square foot classroom building.

There are 240 public and 53 non-public primary and secondary schools throughout the Macomb Intermediate
School District. In addition to the standard curriculum, direct services for special education students are
provided through three schools for the handicapped, a nursing home, the Macomb Regicnal Center, a special
education work activities program, programs for the severely emotionally impaired, and the Continuing
Education for Youth Program. Macomb County's public schools also provide a variety of vocational and job
training programs through its high schools and vocational skill centers.

The students of Macomb County are also served by a number of other institutions located outside of the
County. These include Lawrence Technological University, Oakland University, University of Detroit/Mercy,
University of Michigan-Dearborn, Wayne State University and Walsh College.

Eight general hospitals with a capacity of over 2,000 beds serve the area. There are also several special care
facilities and 24 private nursing homes within the County.

A full range of family living quarters is available in Macomb County including residential facilities in modern
urbanized areas, rural settings, historic villages and scenic waterfront sites along numerous infand lakes and
the shoreline of beautiful Lake St. Clair. There is a wide range of affordable housing throughout Macomb
County. The median value of an owner-occupied housing unit in 2000 was $139,200. The vast majority of
Macomb County's housing, 76 percent, is owner occupied, ranking it among the highest in the nation.

There are 6,500 acres of parkland located in Macomb County offering picnic sites, fishing, swimming, nature
hiking and boating facilities.

Approximately thirty miles of shoreline along Lake St. Clair provide access to fun and sports on the waters of
the Great Lakes. Public and private marinas provide docking facilities for more than 9,000 boats, ranking
Macomb County first in the State of Michigan in the number of boat slips available at its marinas.

Several highways and thoroughfares traverse Macomb County providing regional and statewide continuity for
movement of people, goods and services. Interstate 94 runs along the eastern horder of the County and
continues across southern Michigan to Chicago. Interstate 696 crosses the southern portion of the County
providing a vital link between 1-94 and |-75. M-63 helps provide an important link to the “Thumb Area” of the
State. M-59 provides an East-West link between [-84 and 1-75 across the County’s midsection, paralleling I-
696, which is, located nine miles to the south.

Macomb County has nearly 70 miles of main line railroad tracks owned by two companies, CONRAIL and
Grand Trunk Western Railroad. CONRAIL operates a service line along the western portion of the County
serving the area’s primary industrial corridor. This area is commonly referred to as the “Golden Mile” because
of its large concentration of major industrial facilities. The Grand Trunk Western line serves the eastern
portion of the County and connects Detroit-Windsor to the Port Huron-Sarnia area.




MAJOR INITIATIVES

The Macomb County Community Action Committee, established and funded by Macomb County Government,
won a major victory when the federal Base Realignment and Closure Commission (BRACY} issued its final
report. The BRAC recommended that Selfridge Air National Guard Base in Harrison Township and the Tank
Automotive and Armaments Command (TACOM) in Warren remain open. In addition, the BRAC Report calls
for a net addition of military jobs at Seifridge as well as the transfer of 1,150 research and management center
jobs from across the country to TACOM, further solidifying that facility as the military’s premier center for

ground vehicle development and research.

For many years, Clinton Township was known as the burial ground for southeast Michigan because it was
home to four cemeteries. Now a bedroom community that includes a community college, a first-class hospital
and a variety of top-notch restaurants and banquet halls, Clinton Township is establishing an identity as an
entertainment center. In the next few years, the township will be home to a new “lifestyle” shopping center
complete with high-end restaurants and a new 14-screen movie theater. In November, a groundbreaking
ceremony was held to kick off the development of the Mall of Partridge Creek, a $600 million, 55-acre project
on M-59 between Garfield and Romeo Plank Road, four miles east of Lakeside Shopping Center in Sterling

Heights.

Partridge Creek will include two upscale department stores in Nordstrom and Parisian. Both plan two-level,
129,000 square foot buildings. The 600,000 square foot center will feature 90 specialty stores and several sit
down restaurants. The shopping center is the first regional malt built in the county in 30 years. Six builders
are working on a variety of single family homes to be built in the 117 acre residential portion of the project. A
senior citizen assisted living center and a condominium development will also be included. Karen MacDonald,
a spokeswoman for the Taubman Co., the developer of the shopping center, said she anticipates the
construction of the center will require about 1,500 temporary construction related jobs and create about 2,000
permanent jobs in the shops, restaurants and related businesses in the completed shopping center.

A $46 Million high rise condominium project will be built on land purchased at Miller Marina in St. Clair Shores.
The 17 story, 77 unit Yacht Harbor Residence will be constructed on 1.6 acres of land. This new project at
Miller Marina is adjacent to the previously announced $500 Million condominium and retail development
known as One Water Place. Both projects have direct waterfront access to Lake St. Clair.

General Motors has announced that it will invest $332 million to upgrade its Warren Transmission plant,
further securing work for the 1,200 people who work at the plant. Coupled with an upgrade made at the plant
over the past two and a half years, GM will have spent $663 million just in this decade to retool the piant for
the automaker’s new six-speed transmission. The new front-wheel-drive six speeds to be built at the Warren
plant will be used in the new 2007 Saturn Aura, the 2007 Pontiac G6 and in GM'’s family of new crossover
vehicles—the Saturn Outlook, the GMC Acadia and the Buick Enclave.

Daimler-Chrysler will invest $106 million at its Warren Truck Assembly plant on a building expansion and new
machinery — a move that helps protect more than 1,300 jobs. Workers atthe assembly plant and the Warren
Stamping plant next door on Mound Road, south of Nine Mile Road, make the Dodge Ram and Dodge Dakota
pickups. The facilities are the only Chrysler plants in the United States currently operating three shifts.

PTI Engineered Plastics, Inc. will soon begin construction of its new home, a 95,000 square foot facility
located at the southeast corner of 23 Mile Road and Corporate Drive in Macomb Township. PTiis aresearch
technology based company that specializes in the research, design and building of prototype production
molding tools for the manufacture and assembly of prototype and production molded plastic components. The
company, which serves the automotive, consumer, and medical products industries, is investing nearly $12
million in the building and new machinery and equipment. In addition to retaining 112 current jobs, this project
will enable the company to increase its workforce through the creation of approximately 52 new jobs.

YD) 3 ) 3 D ) b D sl N Iy



I3 3333333303033 3333031333303 )13 ) ))

Concord International’s SMW Automotive Corporation and Alutech, located in facilities on Stephens and
Regency Drive in Warren are manufacturers of cast iren, aluminum and forged steel components for auto
chassis and frame systems. Having secured a new contract from General Motors for the production of control
arms for the Corvette, Cobalt and Silverado models, the companies are investing $10 million in new machinery
and equipment at the facility. With a combined workforce of 87 employees, SMW/Alutech will be adding up to
32 additional jobs to accommodate the increased production volume.

Comcast Corporation, the nations leading cable communications services company, has announced plans to
increase it's presence in Sterling Heights. The company will be hiring more than 200 new associates to work
at the Sterling Heights call center, located on Van Dyke Avenue between 15 and 16 Mile Roads. To
accommodate the company’s plans, the current facility will grow to 86,000 square feet with the construction of
an 18,000 square foot addition. Comcast reports that their investment in this expansion will approach $4.5
million. The workforce at the site will nearly double, bringing total employment to approximately 435.

Witzenmann USA has recently made a significant investment in new machinery and equipment for their
operations in Warren. The company is a supplier of stainless steel tubing and other flexible metallic
components for auto exhaust systems. Their major customers are General Motors, DaimlerChrysler and
Caterpillar. Having estabiished their Warren operation in 2000, Witzenmann's latest $3 million investment will
allow the company to increase their workforce to up to 70 employees.

Chesterfield Township based MacLean Vehicle Systems; a leading manufacturer of automotive and industrial
fasteners has recently invested more than $2.6 million in the upgrade of their manufacturing processes for the
addition of a new productline. Located in the R.C. Schmidt Industrial Complex, the company anticipates that
its expanded operation will aid in the retention of 74 jobs and the creation of up to nine new jobs.

TrynEx International, headquartered in Warren, is in the process of increasing manufacturing capacity for its
highly successfui line of salt spreaders that are widely employed for seasonal use by commercial property
maintenance providers. The company has also developed spreading systems that are specially designed for
the dispersal of sand, grains and seeds. With the construction of an 18,000 square foot addition to their
facility, which is located in the vicinity of Stephans and Groeseck Highway, TrynEx will be retaining 26 current
jobs and expect to create seven new jobs over the next two years.

Beaumont Hospitai started construction on a $50 Million ambulatory care and office facility in Macomb
Township and a 40,000 square foot medical office building in Warren. St. John Health announced plans to
build a $20 Million physicians building at 23 Mile and Romeo Plank that will offer outpatient surgery, diagnostic
services and 24 hour urgent care. St. Joseph Mercy of Macomb has completed a $120 Million renovation at
its Clinton Township campus. Mount Clements General Hospital opened its $50 Million Surgical Center and
will soon be breaking ground on the $19 Million Ted B. Wahby Cancer Center.

After two decades on the drawing board, a new sanitary sewer line stretching from 26 Mile through the viliage
of New Haven into Lenox Township is expected to boost development in the area. Another new sewer line
running northwest from 21 Mile Road and Gratiot is expected to provide a development boost in Chesterfield
Township.

Five northern Macomb County Townships have formed a purchase of Development Rights Committee that will
use state and federal grant money to pay farmers the development value of their land to ensure it will remain
agricultural. This effort comes at a critical time in Macomb County. In the past 40 years Macomb County has
fost 87,000 acres of farmiand and 1,400 farms to development.




The Southeast Michigan Council of Governments (SEMCOG) reported that Macomb County had the second
highest number of net new hausing units in the seven county region in 2005. The 3,985 net new housing units
were a decrease of 23% below the 5,208 for 2004. Five of Macomb County’s cities and townships ranked in
the top ten communities in the region for total new units authorized in 2005. Macomb Township ranked
second in the region with 814 units authorized followed by fourth place Shelby Township at 692, Chesterfield
Township at 517, Washington Township at 452 and the city of Sterling Heights with 398 units.

The Southeast Michigan Council of Governments also reported that Macomb County added the most people
{43,000) and the most households (26,000) of any county in southeast Michigan between the 2000 U.S.
Census and July 2005. During the twelve months ending July 1, 2005, Macomb Township took first place in
the State for population growth followed by Shelby Township in second place and Chesterfield Township in
fifth place. Wayne State University’s Center for Urban Studies released data showing that Macomb County
attracts more residents from it's neighboring counties than it loses, which, when combined with new residents
from outside the tri-county area makes Macomb County the growth leader in the seven county region.

Macomb County’s annual unemployment rate for 2005 of 6.8 percent was slightly higher than the Michigan
unemployment rate of 6.7 percent. The National unemployment rate was 5.1 percent.

Since its inception in the year 2000, the Macomb County Senior Prescription Drug Discount Program has
saved senior citizens over $17 million. Applicants must be age 60 or over, a resident of Macomb County and
have no prescription coverage. Seniors save an average of 30 percent on each prescription. There is also a
mail-order component, which gives seniors an even bigger discount. The Macomb County Senior Prescription
Drug Discount Program was the first of its kind in the nation.

FINANCIAL iINFORMATION

As demonstrated by the statements and schedules included in the financial section of this report, the County
continues to meet its responsibility for sound financial management.

Budgeting Controls. The County maintains budgetary controls that are designed to ensure compliance with
legal provisions embodied in the annual appropriated budget approved by the Macomb County Board of
Commissioners. Activities of the general fund and special revenue funds are included in the annual county
budget. Project length financial plans are adopted for the capital projects funds. The level of budgetary
control {that is, the level at which expenditures cannot legally exceed the appropriated amount) is established
by function and activity within an individual fund. The County also maintains an encumbrance accounting
system as one technique of accomplishing budgetary control on a line item basis.

Pension Trust Fund. The County has a Defined Benefit Pension Plan referred 1o as the Macomb County
Employee's Retirement System (MCERS). It is worthy to note that MCERS is fully funded. The annual
actuarial valuation continues to reflect a positive trend in the funding of the MCERS. A detailed discussion of
the performance of Macomb County’s pension plan can be found in the notes to the financial statements.

Health Care Trust Fund. The County began to pre-fund Retiree Health Care benefits through the
establishment of a trust for that purpose in 1997. The trust held funds in excess of $89 million at year-end,
which are restricted for future payment of Retiree Health Care expenses. The County’'s long term goal is to
fully fund its Retiree Health Care liability.

Debt Administration. Macomb County has received the highest possible credit rating from both Moody’s
Investors Service (Aaa) and Standard & Poor's {AAA), two of the country’s most prestigious Wall Street rating
agencies. Only two other counties of 83 in Michigan and 34 other counties of 3,066 in the nation enjoy this
distinction. A detailed discussion of Macomb County’s long-term debt can be found in the MD&A as well as the
notes to the financial statements.
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Cash Management. Cash temporarily idle during the year was invested by the County Treasurer.
Investments, except those of the Retirement Systems and Deferred Compensation Plan, are administered by
the Treasurer in compliance with the provisions of Public Act 20 of 1943 as amended. Significant policies

include:

» Investments of the County are held in the County's name

« Investments are in U.S. Treasury obligations, banker's acceptances, certificates of deposit, and
commercial paper top rated by not less than two of the four rating services: Standard and Poors, Moody’s
Investors Service, Fitch Investors Services and Duff and Phelps.

« Only federal and state-chartered banks and savings institutions, which are members of FDIC, are utilized.

» State iaw requires the use of in-state banks.

The County's investment policy is to minimize credit and market risks while maintaining a competitive yieid on
its portfolio. Additional data related to investments is listed in the notes to the financial statements. The
County's investment policy is reviewed periodically by the Board of Commissioners.

Risk Management. The County is partially self-insured for losses of a general liability nature up to $250,000
per claim. Liability claims at the Martha T. Berry Medical Care Facility are self insured by the County up to $1
million in the aggregate. The County is a defendant in various lawsuits in which plaintiffs seek damages of an
indeterminable amount. The General Liability Internal Service Fund has been established to account for the
self-insured aspects of this program. The Risk Management and Contingencies and Commitments notes to
the basic financial statements contain additional information concerning risk management. The Statistical
Section of the CAFR includes a complete schedule of insurance coverage maintained by the County.

AWARDS AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a Certificate
of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to Macomb County for its Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report (CAFR) for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2004. The Certificate of Achievement is a
prestigious national award recognizing conformance with the highest standards for preparation of state and
local government financial reports.

In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government unit must publish an easily readable and
efficiently organized comprehensive annual financial report, whose contents conform to program standards.
Such CAFR must satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. Macomb County has received a Certificate
of Achievement for the last twenty consecutive years. We believe that our current report continues to conform
to the Certificate of Achievement program requirements, and we are submitting it to the GFOA for
consideration.

The National Association of Counties (NACo) recognized Macomb County for its commitment to excellence by
awarding the County fourteen NACo Achievement Awards. NACo presents the awards annually, to counties
across the country, for innovative programs that enhance service to citizens or improve county management,
service or structure. In 2005, for the 24™ consecutive year, Macomb County received more NACo awards
than any of the other 82 counties in Michigan. These awards are listed in the Macomb County Board of
Commissioners Annual Report that is sent to all households in Macomb County.




tion of the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report on a timely basis was
rvice of the entire staff of the Finance Department. Each member of the
tion for the contribution made in the preparation of this report.

Acknowledgments. The prepara
made possible by the dedicated se
department has my sincere apprecia

In closing, | would also like to thank the Macomb County Board of Commissioners for the leadership they have
shown during the past year in supporting the operations of the County.

Sincerely, -

A,

“ David M. Diegel
Finance Director
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Certificate of
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Presented to
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For its Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report
for the Fiscal Year Ended
December 31, 2004
A Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial
Reporting is presented by the Government Finance Officers
Association of the United States and Canada to
government units and public employee retirement

systems whose comprehensive annual financial

reports (CAFRs) achieve the highest

standards in govemment accounting
and financial reporting.
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Report of Independent Auditors PricewaterhouseCoopers Plaza
1900 St. Antoine Street

Detroit, Ml 48226-2263
Telephone (313} 394 6000

To the Board of Commissioners Facsimile (313) 394 6555

Macomb County, Michigan

In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of other auditors, the financial statements of
the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented
component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Macomb
County, Michigan (the “County”), which collectively comprise the County’s basic financial
statements as listed in the table of contents, present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the
aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining
fund information of the County, at December 31, 2005, and the respective changes in financial
position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof for the year then ended in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We also have
audited the aggregate non-major governmental funds, the aggregate internal service funds, and
each fiduciary fund type as of and for the year ended December 31, 2005, as displayed in the
County's basic financial statements. Certain special revenue funds and component units are
accounted for as of September 30, 2005 and for the year then ended, and have been combined
with the December 31, 2005 financial statements. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the County's management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these
financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit the financial statements of the
Macomb County Road Commission (the "Road Commission™), which statements reflect total
assets of $757,861,948 (48% of government-wide total assets) and total revenues of
$84,100,645 (12% of government-wide total revenues) for the year then ended. Those
statements were audited by other auditors whose report thereon has been furnished to us, and
our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for the Road Commission, is based on
the report of the other auditors. Further, the net assets of the Road Commission, as of
September 30, 2004, were restated by the other auditors in the amount of $3,531,293 (as
disclosed in Note 11). We conducted our audit of these statements in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit and the report of other auditors provide a reasonable
basis for our opinions.
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In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated June
28, 2006 on our consideration of the County's internal control over financial reporting and on
our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant
agreements and other matters. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be read in conjunction with this
report in considering the results of our audit.

The management's discussion and analysis on pages A-3 through A-17 and the required
supplementary information on pages C-1 through C-7 are not a required part of the basic
financial statements but are supplementary information required by accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America and by the Government Accounting
Standards Board. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of
inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the
required supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information and express
no opinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the County's basic financial statements. The accompanying combining
and individual nonmajor fund financial statements, introductory section and statistical section
are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic
financial statements. The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements have
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements
and, in our opinion, are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial
statements taken as a whole. The introductory section and statistical section has not been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and,
accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

June 28, 2006
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MACOMB COUNTY, MICHIGAN
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Required Supplemental Information

As management of the County, we offer this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of
the County for the year ended December 31, 2005. Readers are encouraged to read it in conjunction
with the letter of transmittal, which is located at the beginning of this report, and the accompanying basic
financial statements.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

» The assets of the County exceeded its liabilities by $366.7 million at year- end.

» The net assets of the County increased by $16.8 million in fiscal 2005. Of this increase, $24.1 million
is restricted in its use as a reptacement for State Revenue Sharing payments.

» The General Fund reported a loss of $9.1 million for the year. Unreserved fund balance was $53.3
million, or 12.0% of the total 2006 County operating budget. Totat fund balance was $53.6 million.

» The County maintained its AAA credit rating with Standard & Poors and its Aaa rating with Moody's
Investor Service.

> The County issued $19.4 million in bonds for the construction of a new District Court facility in the City
of New Baltimore and the construction of a high frequency emergency radio cormnmunications system.

» The County advance refunded $2.7 mittion in bonds, resulting in long-term interest savings of
approximately $.1 miilion.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements: 1) government-wide financial statements,
which focus on the County as a whole, 2) fund financial statements, which provide a more detaiied view
of the County’s major funds and 3) notes to the financial statements, which provide additional information
that is essential to gain a full understanding of the data presented in the financial statements.

Government-wide financial statements consist of the Stafement of Net Assets and the Statement of
Activities and provide readers with a broad overview of the activities of the County as a whole. One of the
more important questions citizens and other readers of the financial statements often ask is “Is the
County as a whole better or worse off this year than it was a year ago?” In other words, did the financial
condition of the County improve or decline over the course of the past year. The government-wide
statements report information in a manner that is intended to help answer these questions.

The government-wide statements are prepared using the full accrual basis of accounting, which is similar
to that employed by businesses in the private sector.

The Statement of Net Assets presents information on all of the assets and liabilities of the County, with
the difference between the two reported as nef assets. Net assets can be thought of as one way of
measuring the financial strength of the County. Increases or decreases in net assets over time may
serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial condition of the County is improving or deteriorating.

A-3




MACOMB COUNTY, MICHIGAN
Management's Discussion and Analysis
Required Supplemental Information

Non-financial factors such as changes in the property tax base, population and condition of roads and
bridges must also be considered when assessing the financial condition of the County.

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the net assets of the County have changed
over the course of the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are recognized as soon as the
underlying transactions take place, regardless of the timing of the related cash flows. As a result, certain
revenues and expenses reported in these statements are related to items that will only result in cash
flows in future years. Examples of such items are uncollected property taxes and earned but unused sick
and vacation leave.

The government-wide financial statements segregate the activities of the County into three categories: 1)
governmental activities, business-type activities and discretely presented component units. The basic
services of the County are classified as governmental activities and are financed primarily through
property taxes, user fees and intergovernmental revenues. Functions reported in this category include
general government, legislative, health and welfare, law enforcement and judicial. Business-type
activities operate like private businesses and are intended to recover the majority of their costs through
user fees. The business-type activities of the County include the Delinquent Tax Revoiving Funds,
Martha T. Berry Medical Care Facility, Community Mental Health and the Freedom Hill Park. Discretely
presented component units are legally separate entities, the majority of whose govering bodies are
appointed by the Board of Commissioners and for which the County is financially accountable. The
County reports the Road Commission, Macomb/St. Clair Workforce Development Board, the Public
Works Commission and the County of Macomb Hospital Finance Authority as discretely presented
component unils.

The government-wide financial statements begin on page B-1 of this report.

Fund financial statements are separate groupings of related accounts that are used to maintain control
over resources that have been segregated for specific purposes. Each fund of the County is considered
a separate accounting entity for which a seif-balancing set of accounts is maintained. Certain funds are
established in accordance with State law while others are required by bond or grant agreements or are
established at the discretion of management to enable it to more easily manage and report on the
activities of the many programs of the County. All the funds of the County can be divided into one of
three categories: governmental, proprietary or fiduciary.

Governmental funds are used to account for most of the basic services provided by the County and
report essentially the same functions as those reported as governmentai activities in the government-wide
financial statements. Governmental funds are accounted for using the modified accrual basis of
accounting, which focuses on the short-term inflows and outflows of cash and other financial assets that
can be readily converted into cash and the balances of them available for spending at year-end. Because
the focus of the governmental fund financial statements is narrower in scope than that of the government-
wide financial statements, reconciliations are provided in both the governmental fund balance sheet and
operating statement to help the reader better understand the relationship between the two.

A-4
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MACOMB COUNTY, MICHIGAN
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Required Supplemental Information

All of the governmental funds of the County are categorized as either major or nonmajor for presentation
in the financial statements. The purpose of such segregation is to focus the attention of the reader on the
more significant funds of the County. A fund is considered major if its assets, liabilities, revenues or
expenditures meet or exceed certain percentage threshalds in relation to all governmental funds taken as
whole. The thresholds used to determine a fund's status as major or nonmajor are set forth in GASB

Statement No. 34.

Information regarding major funds is presented separately in the basic financial statements while data for
all nonmajor funds is combined into a single, aggregated presentation. The General Fund and the
Revenue Sharing Reserve Fund are the only major governmental funds of the County. Individual fund
data for each of the nonmajor governmental funds is provided in the form of combining statements
elsewhere in this report.

Proprietary funds are classified as either enterprise funds or internal service funds and are accounted
for using the full accrual basis of accounting. Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions as
those presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial staternents and include the
Delinquent Tax Revolving Fund, Community Mental Health Fund, Freedom Hill Park Fund and the Martha
T. Berry Medical Care Facility Fund. Internal service funds, on the other hand, are used to centrally
account for services provided to other County departments and include phone services, fleet
management, copier replacement, workers' compensation insurance, general liability insurance and
compensated absences. Because the internal service funds predominately benefit governmental rather
than business-type functions, they have been included within the governmental activiies in the
government-wide financial statements. Data regarding the internal service funds has been combined into
a single, aggregated presentation in the basic financial statements. Information regarding the individual
internal service funds is provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report.

The proprietary fund financial statements begin on page B-8 of this report.

Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held by the County on behalf of others, including
those of the Employee Retirement System and the Retiree Health Care Trust as well as other agency
monies such as state education tax collections from local units of government. The activities of the
fiduciary funds are presented separately in this report but are not reflected in the government-wide
financial statements because the resources of those funds are not availabie to support the operations of
the County. Fiduciary funds are accounted for using the full accrual basis of accounting.

The fiduciary fund financial statements begin on page B-14 of this report.

Notes to the Financial Statements provide additional information that is essential to gain a full
understanding of the data presented in both the government-wide and fund financial statements and
begin on page B-19 of this report.

Required Supplementary information is presented following the notes to the financial statements and
includes schedules regarding the progress of the County in funding its pension obligations and a budget
to actual comparison for the major govermmental funds of the County.




MACOMB COUNTY, MICHIGAN
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Required Supplemental Information

Required supplementary information begins on page C-1 of this report.

Combining and individual funds statements of the nonmajor funds of the County are presented
immediately following the required supplementary information and begin on page D-1 of this report.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE COUNTY AS A WHOLE

The financial analysis of the County as a whole focuses on the net assets and changes in net assets of
the governmental and business-type activities of the County. As noted earlier, net assets and changes in
net assets may serve as one indicator of the financial health of the County. The assets of the County
exceeded its liabilities by $366.7 million at December 31, 2005 and increased by approximately $16.8
million for the year then ended.

Macomb County Primary Government Net Assets

Governmental Actvities Business-type Activities Totals
2004 2005 2004 2005 2004 2005
Current and other assets $ 274,379,310 $ 259,303,329 $ 100,330,992 $ 105372219 $ 374,710,302 $ 364,675,548
Capital assets 157,536,562 166,461,655 2,556,498 6,744,652 160,053,060 173,206,307
Total assets 431,915,872 425,764,984 102,887,490 112,116,871 534,803,352 537,881,855
Current liabilities 97,469,514 63,292,269 8,818,072 15,100,374 106,287,586 78,492,643
Long-term fiabilities 78,605,406 92,728,531 - - 78,605,406 92,728,531
Tolat liabilities 176,074,820 156,120,800 8,818,072 15,100,374 184,892,992 171,221,174
Net assets
Invested in capital assets,
net of related debt 103,036,562 110,591,655 2,556,498 6,744,652 105,593,080 117,336,307
Restricted 64,780,560 97,573,310 6,354,358 6,411,028 71,134,918 103,984,338
Unrestricted 88,023,830 651,479,219 85,158,562 83,860,817 173,182,392 145,340,036
Total Net Assets $ 255,840,952 $ 269,644,184 § 94069418 $ 97,016,497 $ 349,910,370 $ 366,660,681

Approximately $117.3 million, or 32.0% of the County's net assets represents its investment in capital
assets, net of any outstanding debt used to acquire those assets. These assets are used by the County
to provide services to the public; consequently, they are not available for future spending. Although the
County's investment in its capital assets is reported net of any related debt, it should be noted that the
resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources since the asseis themselves
cannot be used to liquidate the outstanding debt obligations. Another $104.0 million, or 28.4%, of the
County's net assets represents resources that are subject to external restrictions regarding their use.
Approximately 50% of the net assets included in this category represent the net assets of the Revenue
Sharing Reserve Fund. The remaining balance of the County’s net assets are unrestricted and may be
used to meet the County’s ongoing obligations. Positive balances in all three categories are reported at
December 31, 2005.
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As indicated in the following schedule, the net assets of the County increased by $16.8 million for the
year ended December 31, 2005. The components of this change were an increase of $13.8 million in
governmental activities and an increase of $3.0 million in business-type activities. The components of
these changes are discussed in the following section.

Revenues

Program revenue
Charges for services
Operating grants and contributions
Capital grants and contributions

General revenue
Property laxes
Intergovermmental revenues
Investment income

Expenses
Legislative
Judicial
General government
Public safety
Public works
Health and welfare
Recreation and culiure
Interest and fees on long-term debt

Increase (decrease) in net assets
before transfers
Net transfers

Increase (decrease) in net assets
Net assets, beginning of year

Net assets, end of year

Macomb County Primary Government Changes in Net Assets

Govemmental Activities Business-type Activities Totals
2004 2005 2004 2005 2004 2005
$ 46441446 $ 47465835 % 154126501  § 158372941  § 200567947 $ 205838776
50,190,070 54,003,340 357,944 288 451 50,548,014 54,291,791
3197973 1,538,463 - - 3,197,973 1,538,463
145,946,433 153,325,600 - - 145,946,433 153,325,600
8,260,654 2,435,590 - - 8,260,654 2,435,590
3,432,645 6,456,366 1,052,437 1,856,037 4,485,082 §,312,403
257,469,221 265,225,194 155,536,882 160,517 428 413,006,103 425,742,623
1,958,277 2,076,701 - - 1,958,217 2,076,701
32,738,381 37,466,334 - - 32,738,381 37,466,334
49,414,817 52,597,031 865,989 702,662 50,280,806 $§3,299,693
60,512,543 67,117,831 - - 60,512,543 §7,117 931
2,133,523 953,845 - - 2,133,523 953,845
71,578,296 76,036,023 157,780,177 163,185,851 229,358,473 239,221,874
2,982,626 2,976,004 1,130,182 1,131,003 4,112,808 4,107,007
3,423,082 3,762 691 - 3.423,082 3,762,691
224,741,545 242,986,560 159,776,348 165,019,516 384,517,893 408,006,076
327127676 22238,634 {4,239,466) (4,502,087} 28,488,210 17,736,547
{1,974.217) (8.435,402) 2,655,143 7,449,166 680,926 {986,236)
30,753,458 13,803,232 (1,584,323) 2,947,079 29,169,136 16,750,311
225,087 493 255,840,952 95,653,741 94,069,418 320,741,234 349,910,370
$ 255840,952 8§ 260644184 5 94069418 § 97016497 § M9910370 $ 366560,681
A7
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Governmental activities. Key components of the $13.8 million increase in the net assets of the

County's governmental activities in 2005 are as follows:

» Property tax revenue increased by $7.4 miilion, or 5.1%, as a result of increases in property
values throughout the County.

» Charges for services increased $1.0 million, or 6.4%, primarily the result of the Sheriff
Department contracting with the City of Mount Clemens to provide police and dispatching
services beginning in July 2005.

» Intergovernmental revenues decreased $5.8 miltion, the majority of which was the result of a $4.7
million reduction in State Revenue Sharing payments, which were phased out by the State of
Michigan in 2004. Public Act 357 was enacted by the State legislature in 2004 to serve as a
substitute funding mechanism for State Revenue Sharing. Under its provisions, the collection of
property taxes will be accelerated over the course of three years, whereby the County will
eventually levy 100% of its property taxes in July rather than December. This gradual shift will
take place as follows: 1/3 of the 2005 County levy was made in July 2005, 2/3 of the 2006 levy
will be made in July 2006 and 100% of the 2007 levy will be made in July 2007. Each year
thereafter, 100% of the levy wili be made in July. Beginning in 2004, three annual instaliments,
each equal to 1/3 of the December 2004 property tax levy, will be recognized as revenue and
placed in a restricted fund known as the Revenue Sharing Reserve Fund. Beginning in 2004,
and each year thereafter until its fund balance is exhausted, the Revenue Sharing Reserve Fund
will transfer to the General Fund each year an amount determined by the State of Michigan that
approximates the amount of revenue sharing that would have been distributed by the State in
fiscal 2004 if it not been discontinued. The fund balance of the Revenue Sharing Reserve Fund
is expected to be exhausted in 2011. The amount placed in the Revenue Sharing Reserve Fund
in 2005 was $37.7 million, of which $14.1 million was subsequently transferred to the General

Fund.

» Judicial expenditures increased $4.7 million, or 14.4%, of which $1.6 miilion was due to an
increase in court appointed attorney fees. In 2004, the County performed an analysis of its
accrual for unbilled fees and determined that a downward adjustment was warranted. As a result,
the accruat was reduced by approximately $1.3 million, which in turn resulted in an increase in
2005 over the prior year. Actual expenses incurred in 2005 were consistent with the previous
four to five years, exclusive of the accrual adjustment. The remaining judicial expenditure
increase of $3.4 million was due primarily to increases in salaries and fringe benefits.

» Public safety expenses increased by $6.6 million, or 10.9%, compared to the prior year, of which
$4.6 million was experienced in the Sheriff Department. The Sheriff Department began
contracting with the City of Mount Clemens to provide police and dispalching services in July
2005, which required the addition of 27 positions to the budget, thereby resulting in additional
expenses of $1.1 million over the prior year. The remaining increase of $3.5 million, or 5.8%, was
caused by increases in salaries and fringe benefits.
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> Health and welfare expenditures increased by $4.4 million, or 6.2% over the prior year, $2.2
million of which relates to the Heaith Department. The increase experienced at the Health
Department has three basic components: increases in the costs associated with salaries and
fringe benefits of roughly $1.0 million, an increase of approximately $.7 million in the cost of
pharmaceutical drugs and another $.5 million in design and engineering fees incurred in
conjunction with a new morgue facility. The remaining $2.2 million increase in Health and
Welfare expenditures can be attributed to increases in salaries and fringe benefits.

The components of the County’s governmental revenues and expenditures are presented below.

Governmental Activities Revenues By Source Governmental Activities Expenses By Function
Charges for Other
L Legisiative
services
Other activities 1% Judiciat

18%

2% Health and
welfare
30%
General
Grants and government
contributions Pubiic safety 23%
Property taxes 22% 27%

58%

Business-type activities. The net assets of the County’s business-type activities increased
approximately $2.9 million during the year. The majority of this increase is attributable to a $4.1 mittion
surplus at the Martha T. Berry Medical Care Facility and a $1.2 million deficit in the Delinquent Tax
Revolving Fund. The surplus at Martha T. Berry is due to transfers totaling $4.4 million that represent
the cost of capital assets of Martha T. Berry that were paid for from the governmental capital projects
funds. The restricted fund equity of Martha T. Berry has been increased to reflect the capitalization of
these assets in the accounts of Martha T. Berry. The unrestricted equity of Martha T. Berry decreased
$.1 million in fiscal 2005. The deficit in the Delinguent Tax Revolving Fund was due primarily to a
decrease in collection fees associated with the delinquent tax rolls.
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE COUNTY'’S MAJOR FUNDS

Governmental funds. As previously mentioned, the focus of govemmental funds is to provide information
on near-term inflows, cutflows and remaining balances of spendable resources. Such information is
useful in assessing the County’s ability to meet its current financing requirements. The fund balance of
governmental funds is segregated into one of three categoeries: reserved, designated and unreserved.
Reserved fund balance represents that portion of the net assets that may only be spent for specific
purposes and are not available for new spending. Examples of fund balance reserves include amounts
required to pay debt service, bond proceeds that may only be spent on projects for which the bonds were
issued and amounts required to meet long-term contractual commitments and encumbrances.

' Fund balance designations are established to represent that portion of net assets that are intended to be
spent for certain purposes and differ from fund balance reserves in that they can be redirected and used
for new spending if necessary. Unreserved fund balance represents the portion of net assets that is
available at year-end for new spending.

The combined ending fund balances of all governmental funds was $176.5 million at December 31, 2005,
an increase of $21.2 miilion over the prior year. The $21.2 million increase consists of a $3.1 million
decrease in the General Fund, a $24.0 million increase in the Revenue Sharing Reserve Fund, a
combined increase of $1.0 million in the Special Revenue and Debt Service funds and a $5.3 million
increase in the Capital Projects funds.

General Fund - The General Fund is the primary operating fund of the County. All revenues and
expenditures are recorded in the General Fund unless otherwise reguired by statute, contractual
agreement or policy. A year-to-year comparison of General Fund revenues by source is presented below.

Generat Fund Revenue By Source

Increase %

Source 2004 2005 (Decreass) Change

Taxes $ 108,024,702 $ 115,340,337 $ 7,315,635 6.8%
Licenses and permits 397,172 391,385 (5.777) -1.5%
Federal and State grants 14,756,398 8,421,712 (6,334,686) -42.9%
Charges for services 26,754 510 30,297,038 3,542 528 13.2%
Investment income 2,564,527 4,703,646 2,139,119 83.4%
Admin charges to other funds 10,516,996 11,087,868 570,872 5.4%
Fines and forfeilures 1,058,973 1,045,629 {13,344) -1.3%
Other revenue 208,739 166,929 (39,810) -18.3%
Transfers from other funds 19,668,740 22,724 515 3,055,775 15.5%
$ 183,948,757 $ 194,179,069 3 10,230,312 5.6%

The $7.3 million increase on property tax revenue represents a 6.8% increase over the prior year and is
due to the continued increase in taxable values throughout the County.
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The $6.3 million decrease in Federal and State grants can be attributed primarily to the elimination of
revenue sharing payments from the State of Michigan as discussed previously.

The increase in charges for services revenue of just over $3.5 million is the primarily the resuit of a new
contract negotiated between the Sheriff Department and the City of Mount Clemens to provide law
enforcement and dispatching services to the City as well as internal charge-backs made by the Facilities

and Operations department for repairs and maintenance performed by skilled trades personnel.

Investment income increased approximately $2.1 million as market interest rates continued to recover in
2005.

Transfers from other funds increased approximately $3.1 million over the prior year, primarily as a result
of an increase in the transfer from the Revenue Sharing Reserve Fund, as previously discussed.

A year-fo-year comparison of General Fund expenditures by function is presented below.

General Fund Expenditures By Function

increase %

Function 2004 2005 {Decrease) Change
Legislative $ 1,958,277 $ 2,076,701 $ 118,424 6.1%
Judicial 19,451 435 22 779,494 3,328,059 17.1%
Generai government 48,848,120 54,425,069 5,576,939 11.4%
Public safety 51,927,325 56,691,858 4,764,533 9.2%
Health and welfare 775874 712,784 (63,190) -8.1%
Other 4,732,839 5,480,571 747,732 15.8%
Capital outlay 722,118 B02,454 80,335 11.1%
Transfers to other funds 58,307,955 60,347,238 2,039,283 3.5%
$ 186,724,044 $ 203,316,159 $ 16,592,115 8.9%

The $3.3 million increase in Judicial expenditures is the result of increases in salaries and fringe benefits
as well as an increase in court appointed attorney fees as discussed previously.

The $5.6 miliion increase in General Government expenditures represents an 11.4% increase, the largest
components of which consist of increases in the Facilities & Operations and Information Technology
departments of $2.6 million and $.9 million, respectively. The increase in Facilities and Operations is due
largely to increases in utility costs and building repairs and maintenance of $.8 million and $1.0 million,
respectively. The increase in building repairs and maintenance is a result of an increase in charge-backs
made to other County departments. These charges are offset by a corresponding increase in revenue in
the Facilities and Operations department. Approximately one-half of the increase in the Information
Technology department is attributable to an increase in software maintenance agreements related to new
systemns that were implemented in 2005.
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The $4.7 million increase in Public Safety expenditures represents a 9.2% increase, which is a result of
increases in salaries and fringe benefit costs at the Sheriff Department, including the positions added
during the year in connection with the contracts with the City of Mount Clemens.

Revenue Sharing Reserve Fund - The Revenue Sharing Reserve Fund reported property tax revenue of $37.7
million in fiscal 2005, of which $14.1 million was subsequently transferred to the General Fund, resulting
in a surplus of $24.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2005. The fund balance is restricted in its
entirety and was $52.8 miilion at year-end.

The fund balances of the County's nonmajor governmental funds were approximately $70.1 miliion at
year-end, an increase of approximately $6.2 million over the prior year. Of the $70.1 million, $40.5 million
is reported in the capital projects funds, all of which is designated or restricted for use in the construction,
remodeling, renovation and maintenance of new or existing facilities.

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

The budget for each fiscal year is adopted by the Board of Commissioners in December of the prior year
and may be amended from time to time throughout the year to reflect changing operational demands.

A comparison of budgeted and actual revenues is presented below.

General Fund Revenue Budget and Actual By Source

Budget
Source Adopted Final Actual Variance
Taxes $ 116,743,661 $ 116,743,661 $ 115340337 $ (1,403,324)
Licenses and permits 392,000 392,000 391,395 (605}
Federal and State grants 18,314,760 7,994 860 8,421,712 426,852
Charges for services 23,925,970 26,474,362 30,297,038 3,822,676
Investment income 3,191,000 3,191,000 4,703,646 1,512,646
Admin charges to other funds 9,997,108 10,229,081 11,087,868 858,787
Fines and forfeitures 904,050 938,465 1,045,629 107,164
Other revenue 23,450 23,450 166,929 143,479
Transfers from other funds 8,655,000 19,155,000 22,724,515 3,569,515

$ 182,146,999 $ 185,141,879 § 194,179,069 $ 9,037,190

The original and final revenue budgets of the General Fund for fiscal 2005 were $182.1 million and
$185.1 million respectively, an increase of $3.0 million of final over originally adopted. Approximately
$1.2 million of the increase resuited from the new Sheriff contracts with the City of Mount Clemens. The
budget for Federal and State grants was also decreased by $10.5 and reclassified as “Transfer from
Other Funds” to account for the transfer from the Revenue Sharing Reserve Fund as required by Public
Act 357.
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Charges for Services revenues exceeded budget by $3.8 million, consisting primarily of recording fees,
which exceeded budget by approximately $1.5 million, and Personal Services, which exceeded budget by
roughly $1.2 million.

Investment revenue was approximatety $1.5 million over budget as a result of higher than expected
market interest rates.

The $3.6 million favorable variance in the Transfers from Other Funds category was due to contributions
from the Revenue Sharing Reserve Fund exceeding budget. The budget for the transfer from the
Revenue Sharing Reserve Fund was maintained at that same level as was budgeted for State Revenue
Sharing payments in prior years, thereby resulting in actual exceeding budget.

A comparison of budgeted and actual expenditures is presented below.

General Fund Expenditures Budget and Actual By Level of Control

Budget
leve! of Control Adopted Final Actual Variance
Salaries and fringe benefits $ 106,880,835 $ 111,301,306 $ 106,759,993 $ 4541313
Operating 40,150,173 39,715,737 35,217,551 4,498,186
Capital outlay - departmental 251,700 318,416 190,335 128,081
Capital outlay - nondepatmental 1,050,000 1,067,770 B0Z,454 265,316
Transfers to other funds 69,683,555 70,107,354 60,347,238 9,760,116

$ 218,016,263 $ 222,510,583 $ 203,317,571 $ 19,193,012

The original and final expenditure budgets of the General Fund for fiscal 2005 were $218.0 million and
$222.5 million, respectively, an increase of $4.5 million of final over originally adopted. Approximately
$4.4 million was in the area of salaries and fringe benefits, of which $1.1 million relates to Sheriff
Department personnel added during the year in connection with the contracts with the City of Mount
Clemens for law enforcement and dispatching services. Another $1.4 million increase relates to
adjustments in fringe benefit budgets related to employee heaith care that were necessary because
actual costs exceeded ariginal estimates and another $1.2 million was made in the Facilities and
Operations department in conjunction with the increase in revenues discussed previously.

Actual General Fund expenditures were approximately $19.2 million below budget. Of the total, $4.5
million was in the area of safaries and fringe benefits, which can be attributed to vacant positions,
employees not yet at their maximum salaries.

The final budget includes $70.1 million in transfers to other funds. Actual transfers were approximately

$60.3 million, resuiting in a favorable variance of $9.8 million. Budgeted transfers are maintained at
conservative levels due to the uncertainty of outside revenue sources.
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in summary, General Fund expenditures exceeded revenues by $9.1 million for the year ended
December 31, 2005. Unreserved fund balance was $53.3 million or 12.0% of the total 2006 County

operating budget.

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital assets. The County categorizes its capital assets as follows: land, land improvements, buildings
and improvements, machinery, equipment and vehicles and construction in progress. The County's
investment in capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, was $166.5 million for governmental
activities and $6.7 million for business-type activities.

Macomb County’s Capital Assets
(net of accumulated depreciation)

Governmental Avtivities Business-type Activities Total
2004 2005 2004 2005 2004 2005
Land $ 9233484 $ 12,543,652 $ - $ - $ 9233484 $ 12,543,652
Land improvements 2,761,707 4,626,135 108,408 212,237 2,870,115 4,838,372
Buildings and improverments 116,026,766 118,583,388 1,941,386 2,584,704 117,968,152 121,168,092
Machinery, equipment and vehicles 16,039,387 16,066,106 413,445 391,157 16,452,832 16,457 263
Construction in progress 13,475,219 14,642,374 93,259 3,556,554 13,568,478 18,198,928

$ 157,536,563 $ 166,461,655 $ 2,556,498 $ 6,744,652 3 160,093,061 § 173,206,307

Major capital asset activity during the year included the following:

¥» Construction continued on the addition and renovation project at the Martha T. Berry Medical Care
Facility. Approximately $2.1 million was expended in 2005. The project is scheduled for final
completion in 2006,

> The County purchased three parcels of land in the City of Mount Clemens for approximately $2.8
million for future use.

Additional information regarding the County's capital assets can be found in the Note 3 to the basic
financial statements.
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Long-term debt. The County's fong-term debt was $88.8 million at December 31, 2005, all of which
related to governmental activities. All outstanding obligations are backed by the full faith and credit of the

County. The components of the total liability are presented below.

Macomb County's Long-Term Debt - Governmaental Activities

Balance New Debt Debt Balance
Beginning of Year Issued Retired End of Year
General obligation bonds $ 72,750,000 $ 22,255,000 s 6,235,000 $ 88,770,000

The total debt of the primary government increased by $16.0 million during the year, consisting of two
new issues totaling $22.2 million and $6.2 million of debt retired.

The County issued $19.4 million of general obligation bonds in December 2005, consisting of $13.5
million for the purpose of constructing a high frequency emergency radio communications system and
$5.9 million for the purpose of constructing a District Court facility in the City of New Baltimore. The
County also issued $2.9 million of refunding bonds in December 2005 to advance refund $2.7 million of
bonds issued in prior years. The advance refunding will result in long-term interest savings of
approximately $.1 miilion.

The general obligation bonds of the County are rated Aaa by Moody’s Investor Service and AAA by
Standard & Poors, the highest rating awarded by each agency.

State statute limits the total amount of general obligation debt of the County to 10% of the assessed value
of all property in the County. Assessed value is generally 50% of true market value. Management,
however, believes that the taxable value of all property in the County is a more practical and conservative
base on which to base the calculation of the County's debt limit. The assessed and taxable values of ail
property in the County as of December 31, 2005 was $35.6 billion and $28.6 billion, respectively.
Therefore, the County's debt limitation was $2.86 billion at year-end. The County’s outstanding debt at
December 31, 2005 of $88.8 million was well below the limit based on either assessed or taxable vaiue.

Additional information regarding the long-term obligations of the County may be found in the Note 4 to the
basic financial statements.
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ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGET AND RATES

The following factors were considered when developing the 2006 budget:

> The General Fund experienced a deficit of $9.1 million in fiscal 2005, following a deficit of $2.8 million
in fiscal 2004. Legacy costs associated with employee health care and pension obligations continue
to present the largest challenge to balancing the County budget. Health care costs have increased at
double digit rates for the past several years and this trend is expected to continue into the
foreseeable future. A 10% increase was budgeted for 2006. In addition, new pension benefits and
stock market declines over the past several years have significantly increased the County’s funding
requirement to its defined benefit pension plan in each of the past three years. This trend is also
expected to continue for the next several years as the required employer contribution moves closer to
normal cost. In order to address the deficit, the Board of Commissioners requested all departments
to cut their 2006 budgets by 3%, which is expected to result in savings of $5.8 miflion. The County
also negotiated health care concessions with its employee unions that are expected to reduce health
care costs by $2.5 million a year beginning in 2006. In addition, the Board of Commissioners will be
performing an extensive review of discretionary programs in 2006 to determine if further budgetary
savings can be realized by eliminating or reducing expenditures on programs that are not required by
State statute.

¥ Salaries will increase 2.5 % in 2006 in accordance with collective bargaining agreements.

» Property tax revenues are expected to increase 5.5% in 2006.

» Market interest rates are expected to improve slightty during 2006. However, higher rates are also
expected to result in a reduction in recording fees collected through mortgage refinancings.

> The advent of GASB Statements No. 43 and 45 related to postemployment health care benefits will
require the County to disclose its funding progress relative to its Retiree Health Care Fund beginning
in 2006. The County has been very proactive in recognizing its liability for retiree health care and
began designating funds for this purpose in 1994. The County has contributed approximately $68.0
million toward the unfunded liability since 1994. Investment earnings have increased the fund
balance of the Retiree Health Care Fund to $89.7 million as of December 31, 2005.

» Inflationary trends in the region compare favorably to national indices.
» Although the County is facing significant budgetary challenges at this time, its financial condition

remains strong as demonstrated by the financial statements and other schedules included in this
report.
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CONTACTING THE COUNTY FINANCE DEPARTMENT

This financial report is designed to provide the citizens, taxpayers, investors, creditors and others with a
general overview of the finances of the County. Questions concerning any information contained in this
report or requests for additional information should be addressed to the attention of the Finance Director
at the following address: Macomb County Finance Department, 12" Floor County Building, Mt. Clemens,
Ml. 48043. Requests can also be made by phone at 586-463-5250.
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MACOMB COUNTY, MICHIGAN
Government-Wide Statement of Net Assets
December 31, 2005

Primary Government

Governmental Business-type Component
Activities Activities Totad Units
ASSETS
Cash and pooled investments 5 146,562,777 5 60,074,810 206,637 587 s 77,654,727
Receivables:
Property taxes 83,770,079 14,057 965 97,828,044 -
Accrued interest 2,354,899 498,632 2,854,531 402,387
Trade accounts, net 11,374,117 7,475,708 18,849,825 6,237,679
Special assessments - - - 83,025,000
Inventories 412,469 - 412,469 3,404,769
Due from other governments 7,308,727 10,916,105 18,224,832 9,979,083
Intemal balances 954,195 (954,195) - -
Due from fiduciary funds 1,968,655 9,870,771 11,839,426 -
Due from component units 4,091,953 - 4,091,953 -
Due from funds with different year end dates - - » -
Surplus property - - - 53,039
Capital assets, net:
Assets being depreciated 139,275,629 6,744,652 146,020,281 335,064,713
Assets not being depreciated 27,186,026 - 27,186,026 535,467 015
Other assets 505,458 3,431,423 3,936,881 1,196,878
Total assets 425,764,984 112,116,871 537,881,855 1,052,485,290
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 9,280,550 14,903,566 24,184,116 14,006,308
Accrued wages payable 1,451,043 181,412 1,632,455 1,859
Accrued interest payable 707,535 - 707,535 211,419
Deposits - - - -
Due to fiduciary funds - - -
Due to other governments 546,193 15,396 561,589 -
Due to primary government - - - 4,091,953
Compensated absences 1,000,000 - 1,000,000 -
Accrued workers compensation claims 800,000 - 800,000 106,690
Accrued general liability claims 850,000 - 850,000 16,765
Deferred revenue 44,286,948 - 44,286,948 78,642,597
Long-term debt maturities due within one year 4,470,000 - 4,470,000 4,775,000
Long-term liabilities:
Compensated absences 5,604,495 - 5,604,495 1,438,284
Accrued workers compensation claims 990,146 - 990,146 281,613
Accrued general liability claims 1,833,890 - 1,833,890 1,603,773
Long-term debt maturities due in more than one year 84,300,000 - 84,300,000 78,380,000
Total Liabilities 156,120,800 15,100,374 171,221,174 183,556,261
NET ASSETS
investment in capital assets, net of related debt 110,591,655 6,744 652 117,336,307 787,376,728
Restricted for
Capital projects 30,280,638 - 30,280,638 -
Debt service 7,666,450 - 7,666,450 1,395,041
Long-term receivables {Block Grants) 6,854,606 - 6,854,606 -
Revenue Sharing Reserve Fund 52,771,616 - 52,771,616 -
Mental Health risk reserve - 6,411,028 6,411,028 -
Unrestricted 61,479,219 83,860,817 145,340,036 80,157,260
Totai Net Assets $ 269,644,184 $ 97,016,497 366,660,681 $ 868,929 029
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements B-1




MACOMB COUNTY, MICHIGAN

Government-Wide Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended December 31, 2005

Program Revenues

Charges for Operating Grants Capital Grants Net (Expense)
Functions/Programs Expenses Services and Contributions _and Contributions Revenue
Primary government
Governmental activities
Legislative 2,076,701 - - - (2,076,701)
Judicial 37,466,334 6,665,548 13,055,757 - (17,745,029)
Generai government 52,597,031 20,084,839 2,372,162 1,638,463 (28,601,567)
Public safety 67,117,931 8,931,457 333,114 - (57,853,363)
Public works 853,845 - - - (953,845)
Health and welfare 76,036,023 11,473,586 38,183,710 - (26,378,727}
Recreation and cufture 2,976,004 310,405 58,600 (2,606,999)
Interest and fees on long-term debt 3,762,691 - - - (3,762,691)
Total governmental activities 242 986,560 47,465,835 54,003,340 1,538,463 (139,978,922)
Business-type activities
Delinguent tax collections 702,662 6,366,332 - - 5,663,670
Community Mental Health 145,168,642 139,402,600 - - (5,766,042)
Martha T. Berry Medical Care Facility 18,017,209 12,339,924 288,451 - {5,388,834)
Freedom Hill Park 1,131,003 264,085 - - {866,918)
Tolal business-type activities 165,019,516 158,372,941 288,451 - (6,358,124)
Total primary governement $ 408,006,076 $ 205838776 % 54,291,791 3 1,638,463  $(146,337,046)
Compaonent Units

Public Works 17,594,809 12,546,563 - - {5,048,246)

Road Commission 66,515,464 13,622,270 - 69,739,866 16,746,672

Workforce Development Board 17,689,562 - 17,743,733 - 54171

Hospital Finance Authority - - - - -

$ 17,743,733 % 69,739.866  § 11,752,597

Total component unils

The accompanying notes are an intergal part of these financial statements

$ 101,759,835

$ 26,068,833

B-2
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MACOMB COUNTY, MICHIGAN

Government-Wide Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended December 31, 2005

Changes in net assets
Net {(expense) revenue (from page B-2)

General revenues:
Property tax
Intergovernmental revenues - restricted
Intergovernmental revenues - unrestricted
Investment earnings

Transfers - internal aclivities

Total general revenues and transfers
Change in net assets

Net assets, beginning of year

Net assets, end of year

Primary Government

Governmental Business-Type Component
Activities Activities Total Units
$(139,978,922) $ (6,358,124) $(146337,046) $ 11,752,597
153,325,600 - 153,325,600 -
492 672 - 492 872 -
1,942,918 - 1,842,918 -
6,456,366 1,856,037 8,312,403 5,400,132
{8,435,402) 7,449 166 (986,236) -
153,782,154 9,305,203 163,087 357 5,400,132
13,803,232 2,947,079 16,750,311 17,152,729
255,840,952 94,069,418 349,910,370 851,776,300
$ 269,644,184 $ 97,016,497 $ 366,660,681 $ 868,929,029

The accompanying notes are an intergal part of these financial statements




Assets
Cash and pooled investments
Taxes receivable
Accrued interest receivable
Accounts receivable, net
Due from other governments
Due from governmentat funds
Due from business-type units
Due from fiduciary funds
Due from compenent units
Advances to other funds
Other assets

Total Assets

Liabilities and Fund Balances

Liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities

Accrued compensation and benefits

Due to other governments
Due to governmental funds
Due to business-type units
Due to fiduciary funds
Deferred revenue

Tolal Liabilities

Fund Balances
Reserved
Debt service
Revenue sharing
Advances to other funds
Long-term receivables
Capital projects
Unreserved
Designated
Subsequent year budget
Capital projects
Programs - special projects
General fund
Special revenue funds
Undesignated
General fund
Special revenue funds

Total Fund Balances

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances

MACOMB COUNTY, MICHIGAN

Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds
December 31, 2005

Major Funds Nonmajor Total
General Revenue Sharing Governmental Governmental
Fund Reserve Fund Funds Funds

$ 38,597,041 $ 14,998,874 65,746,726 119,342,641
45,881,813 37,772,742 115,524 83,770,079
2,261,203 - 93,696 2,354,899
1,356,563 - 9,940,507 11,297,07¢
3,180,486 - 3,806,000 6,986,486
2,720,276 - - 2,720,276
954,195 - - 954,195
1,968,655 - - 1,968,655
4,091,953 - - 4,091,953
300,000 - 30,000 330,000

51,335 - 104,920 156,255

$ 101,363,520 $ 52,771,616 79,837,373 233,972,509
$ 3,132,887 3 - 4,754,151 7,887,038
- - 625,506 625,506

1.193.084 - 257,959 1,451,043
98,434 - 443,086 541,520

- - 2,720,276 2,720,276

43,337 526 - 949,422 44 286,948
47,761,931 - 5,750,400 57,512,331

- - 7,666,450 7,666,450

- 52,771,616 - 52,771 616

300,000 - 30,000 330,000

- - 6,854,606 6,854,606

- - 30,280,638 30,280,638

40,924,419 - - 40,924,419

- - 15,727,131 15,727,131

1,149,977 - - 1,149,877

- - 3,272,733 3,272,733

11,227,193 - - 11,227,193

- - 6,255,415 6,255,415

53,601,589 52,771,616 70,086,973 176,460,178

$ 101,363,520 $ 52,771,616 79,837,373 233,972,509

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial stalements B-4
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MACCMB COUNTY, MICHIGAN

RECONCILIATION OF THE FUND BALLANCES ON THE BALANCE SHEET OF

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005

Total fund balances for governmental funds

Amounts reported for governemntal activities in the Government-Wide Statement of Net Assets
are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outiays as expenditures, However, in the statement of
activities, the cost of those assets is capitalized and allocated over their estimated useful
lives.

Capital assels
Land
Land improvements
Buildings and inprovements
Machinery, equipment and vehicles
Construction in progress
Accumulated depreciation

Long-term bonded debt is not due and payable in the current period and, therefore, is not reported
in the governmentai funds. However, bonded debt is recorded as tong-term fiabilities in the
Government-Wide Statement of Net Assets. (See Note 4)

Bonds issued in prior years
Bonds issued during the current year
Bond principal repayments

Accrued interest payable on long-term debt at year-end is not recorded in the governmental funds,
but is recorded as a liability in the Statement of Net Assets

Accrued compensated absences not funded at year-end are not recorded in the governmental funds,
but is recorded as a liability in the Statement of Net Assets

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain activities such as
insurance, compensated absences, workers' compensation and central invenlory to individual
governmental funds. The assets and liabilities of the internal Service Funds are included
in the governmental activities in the Government-Wide Statement of Net Assets

Net assets of governmental activities reported in the Government-Wide Statement of Net Assets

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

$ 176,460,178

12,543,652
7,063,500
175,145,425
41,316,656
14,642,374
(85,423,241)

(72,750,000)
(22,255,000)
6,235,000

(707,535)

(361,619)

17,734,794

$ 269,644,184




MACOMB COUNTY, MICHIGAN
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds
Year Ended December 31, 2005

Major Funds Nonmajor Total
General Revenue Sharing Governmental Governmental
Fund Reserve Fund Funds Funds
Revenues
Taxes $ 115,340,337 5 37772742 8 212,521 $ 153,325,600
Licenses and permits 391,385 - 811,480 1,202,875
Federal & State grants 8,421,712 - 49,268,310 57,690,022
Other grants - - 287,371 287,371
Charges for services 30,297,038 - 15,535,330 45,832,368
Investment income 4,703,646 365,826 1,386,894 6,456,366
Charges to other funds for administrative services 11,087,868 - - 11,087,868
Fines and forfeitures 1,045,629 - 745,089 1,790,718
Other revenue 166,929 - 413,603 580,532
Total Revenues 171,454,554 38,138,568 68,660,598 278,253,720
Expenditures
Current
Legislative 2,076,701 - - 2,076,701
Judicial 22,779,494 - 12,589,978 35,369,472
General government 54,425,059 - 1,298,738 55,723,797
Public safety 56,691,858 - 8,190,901 64,882,759
Public works - - 953,845 953,845
Health and welfare 712,784 - 73,155,641 73,868,425
Recreation and cultural - - 2,903,999 2,903,999
Cther 5,480,571 - - 5,480,571
Capital outfay 802,454 - 22 968,613 23,771,067
Debt service
Principal - - 3,560,000 3,560,000
Interest and fees - - 3,064,278 3,064,278
Bond issue costs - - 288,528 288,528
Total Expenditures 142,968,921 - 128,974,521 271,943,442
Excess of Revenues over (under) Expenditures 28,485,633 38,138,568 {60,313,923) 6,310,278
Other financing sources (uses)
Issuance of debt - - 22,255,000 22,255,000
Transfers in 22,724,515 - 61,316,539 84,041,054
Transfers out {60,347,238) (14,069,515} (13,995,723) {88,412 ,476)
Bond discounts - - (204,554} {204,554)
Payment to refunding debt escrow agent - - (2,801,633) {2,801,633)
Total other financing sources {uses) (37,622,723) {14,069,515) 66,569,629 14,877,391
Net change in fund balances {9,137,090) 24,069,053 6,255,706 21,187,669
Fund Balances, beginning of year 62,738,679 28,702,563 63,831,267 155,272,509
Fund Balances, end of year $ 53,601,589 $ 52,771,616 3 70,086,973 $ 176,460,178
B-6

The accompanying noles are an inlegral part of these financial statemenis
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MACOMB COUNTY, MICHIGAN

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds

Amounts reported for governemntat activities in the Statement of Activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital cutlays as expenditures, However, in the statement of
activities, the cost of those assets is capitalized and allocated over their estimated useful

lives.

Expenditures for capital assets

Expenditures reported as capital outlay but capitalized in business-type units (See Note 5)
Expenditures reported as capital outlay but not capitalized

Current year depreciation expense

Repayment of debt principat is recorded as an expenditure in the governmental funds, but
is recorded as a reduction of long-term liabilities in the Statement of Net Assets. (See Note 4)

The proceeds received as a result of issuing of bonds are recorded as revenue in the

governmental funds, but are recorded as increases in long-term liabilities in the
Statement of Net Assets. (See Note 4)

The change in amount of accrued compensated absences not recorded in the governmental funds
but is recorded as an operating expense in the Government-Wide Statement of Activities.

The change in amount of accrued interest payable is not recorded in the governmentai funds,
but is recorded as interest expense in the Government-Wide Statement of Activities.
Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain activities such as
insurance, compensated absences, workers' compensation and centrat inventory to individual
governmentaf funds. The net income (loss) attributable to those funds is reported with

governmental activities

Change in net assets of governmental activities reported in the Statement of Activites

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

B-7

$ 21,187,669

23,771,067
(4,470,615)
(1,534,408)
(9.214,407)

6,235,000

(22,255,000}

(16,461)

(78.698)

179,085

$ 13,803,232



ASSETS
Current assets

Cash and pooled investments
Receivables:

Property laxes

Accrued interest

Trade acoounts, net
Inventories
Due from other govermniments
Due from govemmental funds
Due from business-type units
Due from fiduciary funds
Other assels

Total current assels

MNoncurrent assets
Capital assels, net:
Assets being depreciated
Assels not being depreciated

Total noncurrent assets

Tolal Assets

LIABILITIES
Current lfabilities

Accounts payable
Accrued wages payable
Due to other governments
Due to govermmerial funds
Due {o fiduciary funds
Compensated absences
Claims and judgements
Deferred revenue

Total current liabilities
Noncurrent liabilibes
Claims and judgements
Compensated absences and accrued wages payable
Advances from other funds
Total noncurrent liabilities
Total Liabilities
NET ASSETS
investment in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted

Unrestricted

Total Net Assels

MACOMB COUNTY, MICHIGAN
Statement of Net Assets
Proprietary Funds
December 31, 2005

Major Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Delinquent Tax

Community

Martha T Berry

Revolving Mental Health Medical Care Facility
b 56,710,767  § 3,299,037 130
14,057,965 - -
499,632 - .
2,813,345 2,940,133 1,680,350
- 10,916,105 -
9,870,771 - -
- 3,348,580 82,843
83,952,480 20,503,855 1,763,343
34 966 5,603,689
- 34,966 5,603,689
83,952,480 20,538,621 7367032
446,382 13,972,910 461,340
1,027 - 171,400
- 15,396 -
. - 954,195
447,409 13,988,306 1,586,935
447,409 13,988,306 1,586,935
- 34,966 5,603,689
- 6,411,028 i
83,505,071 104,521 176,408
3 83,505,071 % 6,550,515 § 5,780,097
B-&

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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ASSETS
Current assels

Cash and pooled investments
Receivables:

Property taxes

Accrued interest

Trade accounts, net
Inventories
Due from other govemments
Due from governmental funds
Due from business-type units
Due from fiduciary funds
Cther assets

Total cumrent assets

Noncurrent assets
Capital assets, net:
Assets being depreciated
Assets not being depreciated

Total nencurrent assets

Total Assets

LIABILITIES
Currenl fabilities

Accounts payable
Accrued wages payable
Due to other governments
Due 1o governmental funds
Due to fiduciary funds
Compensated absences
Claims and judgements
Deferred revenue

Total cumrent liabilities

Noncurrent habilities
Claims and judgements
Compensated absences and accrued wages payable
Advances from other funds

Total noncurrent Kabilities
Total Liabilities
NET ASSETS
Investment in capital assets, pet of related debt
Restricted

Unrestricted

Total Net Assets

MACOMB COUNTY, MICHIGAN
Statement of Net Assets
Proprietary Funds
December 31, 2005

Major Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Governmental Activities-

Freedom Hill Internal
Park Totals Service Funds
3 64,856 60,074,810 5 27,220,136
- 14,057,965 -
- 498,632 -
41,880 7,475,708 77,047
- - 412,469
- 10,916,105 322,241
- 9,870,771 -
- 3,431,423 349,203
106,736 106,326,414 28,381,096
1,105,997 6,744 652 1,173,289
1,105,997 5,744,652 1,173,289
1,212,733 113,071,066 29,554 385
22,934 14,903,566 766,613
8,985 181,412 1,393
- 15,396 4,673
- 954,195 -
. . 1,000,000
- - 1,650,000
31,919 16,054, 569 3,422,679
. - 2,824 036
- 5,242 876
- - 330,000
. . 8,396 912
31,919 16,054,569 11,819,501
1,105,997 6,744,652 -
- 6,411,028 -
74,817 83,860,817 17,734,794
$ 1,180,814 $ 97,016,497 17,734,794
B-9

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements




MACOMB COUNTY, MICHIGAN
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets
Proprietary Funds
Year Ended December 31, 2005

Major Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Delinquent Tax Community Martha T Berry
Revolving Mental Health Medical Care Facility
Operating Revenues
Charges for services 3 6,366,332 § 139,365,332 $ 12,339,924
Qther - 37,268 288,451
Total operating revenues 6,366,332 139,402,600 12,628,375
Operating Expenses
Personal services 340,638 22,014,371 12,742124
Contractual services - 115,338,472 1,944 532
Utilities - 284,329 630,541
Repairs and maintenance - 48,938 621,848
Benefits and claims expenses - - -
Supplies and services 362,024 7,463,556 1,878,942
Depreciation - 18,976 199,222
Totat Operating Expenses 702,662 145,168,642 18,017,209
Operating Income (Lass) 5,663,670 {5,766,042) {5,388,834)
Nonoperating revenues
Investment income 1,799,367 66,670 -
Total Nonoperating Revenues 1,799,367 56,670 -
income before Transfers 7,463,037 {5,709.372) {5,388,834)
Transfers
Transfers in - 5,765,711 5,065,185
Transfers out (8,655,000} - -
Other (See note 5) - - 4,422,754
Net Transfers {8,655,000) 5,765,711 9,487,939
increase (decrease) in net assets {1,191,963) 56,339 4,099,105
Net assets, beginning of year 84,697,034 6,494,176 1,680,992
Net assets, end of year $ 83,505,071 $ 6,550,515 § 5,780,097
j The accompanying nates are an infegral part of these financial statements B-10
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_— MACOMB COUNTY, MICHIGAN
P Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets
Proprietary Funds
— Year Ended December 31, 2005
A
— Major Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds Governmental Activities-
-— Freedom Hill Internal
Park Totals Service Funds
f— Operating Revenues
Charges for services $ 264085 $ 158,335673 § 8,774,978
—_ Other - 325,719 -
A
Total operating revenues 264,085 158,661,392 8,774,978
r
F )
Operating Expenses
— Personal services 705,002 35,802,135 -
-— Contractual services - 117,283,004 -
Utilities 150,947 1,065,817 -
— Repairs and maintenance 88,493 759,279 -
- Benefils and daims expenses - - 2,797,263
Supplies and services 122,298 9,826,820 5,746,093
— Depreciation 64,263 282,461 459,172
—_— Tota! Operating Expenses 1,131,003 165,019,516 6,002,528
_F
Operating income (Loss) {866,918) (6,358,124) (227,550)
f—
— Nonoperating revenues
Investment income - 1,856,037 -
F
- Total Nonoperating Revenues - 1,856,037 -
_~ income before Transfers {866,918) {4,502,087) (227,550)
-~ Transfers
F Y Transfers in 802,655 11,633,551 406,635
Transfers out - (8,655,000) -
- Other {See note 5) 47,861 4,470,615 .
-
Net Transfers 850,516 7,449,166 406,635
f——
— Increase (decrease) in net assets {16,402) 2,947 079 179,085
~ Net assets, beginning of year 1,197,216 94,069,418 17,555,709
—_—
Net assets, end of year ps 1,180,814 $ 97,016,497 17,734,794
_—
_—
—_—
_F
F_
p—
F )
_— The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements B-11
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Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Cash received from customers
Cash received from (paid for) interfund services
Cash payments to employees
Cash payments to suppliers

Net cash provided by (used in) Operating Activities

Cash Flows From Noncapital Financing Activities
Transfers in
Transfers out

Net cash provided by (used in) Noncapital Financing Aclivities

Cash Flows From Capital and Retated Financing Activities
Proceeds from sale of capital assets
Acquisition of capital assets

Met Cash used in Capital and
Related Financing Activities

Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Interest received on investments

Net cash provided by !Invesling Activities
increase (decrease) in cash and shor-term investments
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided (used)
by operating activities
Operating income (loss)
Adjustments 1o reconcile operating income to net cash
provided by (used in) operating activities:
Depreciation
Increase in taxes receivable
Decrease (increase) in accounts receivable
Increase in inventory
Decrease {increase) in amounts due from other governments
Decrease (increase) in amounts due from other funds
Decrease (increase) in other assets
Increase {decrease) in accounts payable
Increase (decrease) in accrued employee benefils
Decrease in amounts due to other govemments
Decrease in amounts due to cther funds
Decrease in deferred revenue
Decrease in accrued claims and judgements

Net cash provided by (used in) Operating Aclivities

The accompanying notes are an integrat part of these financial statements

F_
MACOMB COUNTY, MICHIGAN p
Combining Statement of Cash Flows - Proprietary Funds
Year Ended December 31, 2005 -~
F
Major Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds p
Delinquent Tax Community Martha T Berry
Revolving Mental Health Medical Care Facility -
$ 4510729 $ 134,918,797 % 13,778,117 -
(2,846,034} (1,749,396} (1,331,897} -
(329,847) (22,014,371) {12,595,085)
{138,615) {113,678,374) (4,916,320) o
1,186,233 (2,523,344} (5.065,185) -
-
- 5,765,711 9,487,939
(8,655,000) - . -
A
(8,655,000) 5,765,711 9,487,939
~—
- - am—
- - (4,422,754}
-
—
- . {4,422,754)
—_,
A
1,604,082 56,670 .
_—
1,604 -
604,082 56.670 .
(5.864,685) 3,299,037 - -—
62,575,452 - 150 -~
$ 56,710,767 $ 3,299,037 $ 150 -
-,
-,
5,663,670 $ (5,766,042) $ {5,388,834)
-,
- 18,976 199,222 -
{1,505,156} - -
-
(24,466) 57,637 1,149,742
- - - —
178,404 (2,367,221) -
(2,641,573) - _ -,
- {205,606) -
223,409 8,495,089 (14,833) -
791 - 147,039 oy
{504,375) {466,154} -
(204,461) (787,564) {1,157 .521) -—
- {1,502,459) -
- . . _—
1,186,233 § (2,523,344} (5,065,185) -
_—,
-
—~~,
-
-
-,
B-12 -
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MACOMB COUNTY, MICHIGAN
Combining Statement of Cash Flows - Proprietary Funds
Year Ended December 31, 2005

Major Business-type Activities - Enlerprise Funds  Governmental Activities
Freedom Hill Internal
Park Totals Service Funds

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Cash received from customers $ 242,844  § 153,450,587 § 133,886
Cash received from {paid for} interfund services (17,240} (5,944 ,567) 8,737,448
Cash paymenis to employees (696,912) (35,646,215) (1.432,607)
Cash payments to suppliers (344,653) {119,077,962) (8.533,607)
Net cash provided by (used in) Operating Activities (815,861) (7,218,157 {1.654,880)
Cash Flows From Noncapital Financing Activities
Transfers in 850,516 16,104,166 406,635
Transfers out - (8,655,000} -
Net cash provided by {used in) Noncapital Financing Activities 850,516 7,449 166 406,635
Cash Flows From Capital and Related Financing Activities
Proceeds from sale of capital assets - - -
Acquisition of capital assels (47,861} {4,470,615) {832,627)
Net Cash used in Capital and
Relaled Financing Activities (47,861} (4,470,615) {832,627}
Cash Fiows From Investing Activities
Interest received on investiments - 1,660,752 -
Net cash provided by Investing Activities - 1,660,752 -
Increase (decrease) in cash and short-term investrents {13,206) {2.578,854) {1.5206.872)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 78,062 62,653,664 28,741,008
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 64,856 3 650,074,810 3 27,220,136

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided (used)
by operating activities
Qperating income (foss) $ {866,918) $ {6,358,124) $ {227,550)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash
provided by (used in) operating activities:

Depreciation 64,263 282 461 459,172
Increase in taxes receivable - (1,505,166} -
Decrease (increase) in accounts receivable (21,141) 1,161,772 {52,495}
Increase in inveniory - - (72,876)
Decrease (increase) in amounts due from other governments - (2,188,817) (346)
Decrease (increase) in amounts due from other funds - (2,641,573} 108,088
Decrease (increase) in other assels - {205,606) 86,542
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable {155) 8,703,510 56,637
Increase (decrease) in accrued employee benefits 8,050 155,920 (310,415)
Decrease in amounts due to other governments - {970,529) -
Decrease in amounts due to other funds - (2,149,546) -
Decrease in deferred revenue - (1,502,459) -
Decrease in accrued claims and judgements - - {1,141,637)
Net cash provided by (used in) Operating Activities $ (815861 § (7,218,157 § {1,094,880})
The accompanying notes are an imtegral part of these financial statements B-13
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MACOMB COUNTY, MICHIGAN
Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets
Fiduciary Funds
December 31, 2005

Employee Retirement and
Postretirement
Health Care Benefits

Agencz Funds

ASSETS
Cash and pooled investments $ 28,167,056 $ 31,061,987
Receivables
Accrued interest 1,279,999 -
Other 1,161,782 3,410,255
Total receivables 2,441,781 3,410,255
Investments, at fair value
US Government obligations 20,664,485 -
Corporate Bonds 45,948,746 -
Preferred Stock 36,863,843 -
Common Stock 315,385,035 -
Foreign Stock 122,074,794 -
Limited partnerships 18,124,324 -
Mutual funds 251,277,241 -
Total investments 810,338,468 -
Securities lending collateral 36,706,226 -
Due from fiduciary funds 463,086 1,312,774
Other assets - 4,843
Total Assets 878,116,617 $ 35,789,859
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 249,101 $ 7,829,822
Accrued compensation and benefits - 993,221
Deposits - 11,189,411
Due to other governments - 5,906,634
Due to governmental funds 1,968,655 -
Due to business-type units - 9,870,771
Due to fiduciary funds 1,775,860 -
Obligations under securities lending 36,706,226 -
Total Liabilities 40,699,842 $ 35,789,859
NET ASSETS
Net assets held in trust for pension
and other postemployment benefits $ 837,418,775

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements B-14
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MACOMB COUNTY, MICHIGAN
Statement of Changes In Fiduciary Net Assets
Fiduciary Funds
Year Ended December 31, 2005

Employee Retirement and
Postretirement
Health Care Benefits

ADDITIONS
Contributicns
Employer $ 23,668,855
Employee 5,966,391
Total contributions 29,635,246

Investment income

Net appreciation in fair value of assets 51,627,251
Interest 4,161,697
Dividends 13,311,219
Securities lending 201,833
69,202,000
Less investment expenses
Management and custodial fees 2,441 450
Securities lending agent fees 79,618
Net investment income 66,680,932
Total additions 96,316,178
DEDUCTIONS
Benefit payments 41,852 358
Refunds of contributions 257,433
Administrative expense 270,915
Total deductions 42,380,706
Net increase in net assets 53,935,472
NET ASSETS
Beginning of year 783,481,303
End of year $ 837,416,775

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements  B-15




MACOMB COUNTY, MICHIGAN

Combining Statement of Net Assets - Component Units

December 31, 2005
Workforce Hospital
Public Road Development Finance
Works (1) Commission (1) Board Authority Total
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 38,999,761 3 38,647,321 $ - $ 7,645 $ 77654727
Receivables:
Accrued interest 51,184 351,203 - - 402,387
Trade accounts, net 2,996,425 3,241,254 - - 6,237,679
Special assessments 83,025,000 - - - 83,025,000
Inventories - 3,404,769 - - 3,404,769
Due from other governments - 7,774,659 2,204,424 - §,979,083
Surplus property - 53,039 - - 53,039
Capital assets, net:
Assets being depreciated 162,497,646 172,567,067 - - 335,064,713
Assets not being depreciated 4,841 257 530,625,758 - - 535,467,015
Other assets - 1,196,878 - - 1,196,878
Total assets 292 411,273 757,861,948 2,204 424 7,645 1,052 485,290
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ 4,318,454 $ 9,626,223 61,631 - 14,006,308
Accrued wages payable - - 1,859 - 1,859
Accrued interest payable 211,419 - - - 211,419
Due to primary government 2,005,190 - 2,086,763 - 4,091,953
Accrued workers compensation claims - 106,690 - - 106,680
Accrued general liability claims - 16,765 - - 16,765
Deferred revenue 78,642 597 - - 78,642,597
Long-term debt maturities due within one year 4,775,000 - - 4,775,060
Long-term liabilities:
Compensated absences - 1,438,284 1,438,284
Accrued workers compensation claims - 281,613 - 281,613
Accrued general liability claims - 1,603,773 - - 1,603,773
Long-term debt maturities due in more than one year 78,380,000 - - - 78,380,000
Total Liabilities 168,332,660 13,073,348 2,150,253 - 183,556,261
NET ASSETS
Investment in capital assets, net of related debt 84,183,903 703,192,825 - - 787,376,728
Restricted for
Debt service 1,395,041 - - - 1,395,041
Unrestricted 38,499,669 41,595,775 54,171 7,645 80,157,260
Total Net Assets $ 124,078,613 $ 744,788,600 $ 54,171 $ 7,645 $ 868,929,029
(1) - Year-end September 30, 2005
The accompany notes are an intergal part of these financial statements B-16
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MACOMB COUNTY, MICHIGAN
Combining Statement of Activities - Component Units
For the Year Ended December 31, 2005

Program Revenues
Charges for Operating Grants Capital Grants Net {(Expense)

Functions/Programs Expenses Services and Contributions _and Contributions Revenue
Public Works (1)}
Pubtic works $ 14069632 $ 12,546,563 § - 3 - % (1,523,069)
Interest on long-term debt 3,625,177 - - - {3,525,177)
Total public works 17,594,809 12,546,563 - - {5,048,246)
Road Commission (1)
Public works 66,515,464 13,522,270 - 69,739,866 16,746,672
Total Road Commission 66,515,464 13,622,270 - 69,739,866 16,746,672
Workforce Development Board
Health and Weifare 17,689,562 - 17,743,733 - 54,171
Total Workforce Development Board 17,689,562 - 17,743,733 - 54,171

Hospital Finance Authority
Health and Welfare - - - _ .

Total Workforce Development Board - - - - -

Total Component Units $101,799.835 § 26,068,833 § 17,743,733 $ 69,739,866 $ 11,752,597

{1) - Year ended September 30, 2005



MACOMB COUNTY, MICHIGAN
Combining Statement of Activities - Component Units
For the Year Ended December 31, 2005

Workforce Hospital
Public Road Development Finance
Works (1) Commission (1) Board Authority Total
Changes in net assets
Net (expense) revenue $ (5.048246) % 16,746,672 $ 54171 $ - $ 11,752,597
General revenues:
Investment earnings 4,561,623 838,509 - - 5,400,132
Total general revenues, contributions
and transfers 4,561,623 838,509 - - 5,400,132
Change in net assets (486,623} 17,585,181 54,171 - 17,152,729
Net assets, beginning of year (as restated) (2) 124,565,236 727,203,419 - 7,645 851,776,300
Net assets, end of year $124,078,613 $ 744,788,600 $ 54,171 3 7,645  $ 868,929,029

{1) - Year Ended September 30, 2005

(2) - Restatement of beginning net assets of the Road Commission. See Note 11.

SRR NN P




111)1111111l)ll)]l]l]lllllllllll]ll))lll)lll

MACOMB COUNTY, MICHIGAN
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
December 31, 2005

Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The basic financial statements of Macomb County (the County) have been prepared in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing such principles.
All financial statements are for the year ended December 31, 2005, except as follows: the financial
statements of the Child Care, Community Services, Friend of the Court, Health Grants, Veterans’ Services
and certain MSU Extension, Prosecuting Attorney, Senior Citizens and Sheriff Special Revenue Funds, the
Community Mental Health Enterprise Fund, and the Road Commission and Public Works Component Units,
which are reported as of and for the year ended September 30, 2005.

Financial Reporting Entity - Macomb County was incorporated in 1818 and includes an area of 482 square
miles with the county seat located in the city of Mt. Clemens. The County operates under an elected Board of
Commissioners (26 members). The Board of Commissioners is a legislative body that is also responsible for
the administration of the County. The County provides many services to residents, including law
enforcement, administration of justice, community development and enrichment, parks and recreation and
human services.

As defined by generally accepted accounting principies established by the Governmentai Accounting
Standards Board, the financial reporting entity consists of the primary government as well as its component
units, which are legally separate organizations for which the elected officials of the primary government are
financiaily accountable. Financial accountability is defined by GASB Statement No. 14, “The Financial
Reporting Entity”, as appointment of a voting majority of the component unit's board, and either (a) the abhility
of the primary government to impose its wilt on the component unit, or (b) the possibility that the component
unit will provide a financial benefit to or impose a financial burden on the primary government. The
accompanying financial statements present the financial position and results of operations of Macomb County
(the primary government) and its component units. The component units discussed below are included in the
County’s reporting entity because of the significance of their operational or financial relationships with the
County. In conformity with generally accepted accounting principles, the financial statements of component
units have been inciuded in the financial reporting entity either as blended component units or as discretely
presented component units.

Blended Component Units — Blended component units are legally separate from the County, but are so intertwined
with the County that they are, in substance, the same as the County. They are reported as part of the County
and blended into the appropriate funds.

The Macomb County Criminal Justice Building Authority (MCCJBA) is governed by a three-member
board appointed by the County’s Board of Commissioners. Although legally separate from the County, the
MCCJBA is reported as if it were part of the primary government because its sole purpose is to finance and
construct certain County Buildings.

The Macomb County Building Authority is governed by a seven-member board appointed by the County
Board of Commissioners. Although legally separate from the County, the Building Authority is presented as a
biended component unit because its sole purpose is lo finance and construct certain County Buildings.




MACOMB COUNTY, MICHIGAN
Notes to Basic Financial Statements (continued)
December 31, 2005

Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Blended Component Units {concluded) -

The Macomb County Employee’s Retirement System (the “System”) is govermed by a seven-member
board. Although it is legally separate from the County, the System is reported as if it were part of the primary
government because its sole purpose is to administer the Macomb County Employees’ Retirement System.

The Macomb County Retiree Health Care Board consists of five members of the Board of Commissioners,
the County Treasurer and the County Finance Director. Although legally separate from the County, the Board
is reported as if it were part of the County since its sole purpose is to administer the Macomb County Retiree

Health Care Plan and Trust.

Discretely Presented Component Units

The Macomb/St. Clair Workforce Development Board (Michigan Works!) is governed by a separate board
appointed by the County Board of Commissioners. Michigan Works! receives federal funds under the Job
Training Partnership Act to operate employment and training programs that lead to unsubsidized employment
for unskilled adults and youth. Its activities are included in the County’s financial statements as the County is
financially responsible for the entity and the exclusion of such activities would be misleading to the County's
financial statements. Separate independently audited financial statements of Michigan Works! are not

prepared.

The Macomb County Road Commission is governed by a separate board appointed by the County Board
of Commissioners. The Road Commission constructs, operates and maintains primary and local roads within
the County. The Road Commission’s activities are included in the County’s financial statements as the
exclusion of such activities would be misleading to the financial statements. Complete financial statements of
the Road Commission can be abtained from the Road Commission administrative offices, 156 Mallow St., P,
0. Box 2347, Mt. Clemens, MI, 48046-2347.

The Drainage Districts are governed by separate boards composed of the Public Works Commissioner, the
Chair of the County Board of Commissioners and Chair of the Finance Committee of the Board of
Commissioners. Each Drainage District is a separate legal entity with the power to contract, sue and be sued
and hold, dispose of and manage real property. The primary function of the Drainage Districts is to direct the
construction and maintenance of drains, sewers and water supply systems within the County. The activities
of the Drainage Districts are included in the County's financial statements as the exclusion of these activities
would be misleading. Separate independently audited financial statements of the Drainage Districts are not
prepared.

The County of Macomb Hospita! Finance Authority is governed by a five-member board appointed by the
Macomb County Board of Commissioners. The Authority was created pursuant to Public Act 38 of 1969 for
the purpose of providing hospitals within the County the opportunity to finance capital projects at favorable
interest rates. Public Act 38 allows hospitals to finance capital projects through the Authority, which enjoys
the County’s excellent credit rating.  Separate independently audited financial statements of the Hospital
Finance Autharity are not prepared.

B-20
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MACOMB COUNTY, MICHIGAN
Notes to Basic Financial Statements (continued)
December 31, 2005

Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {continued)

Basic {Government-Wide) and Fund Financial Statements-

The activities of the County are categorized as either governmental or business-type in both the government-
wide and fund financial statements. The majority of the County’s activities are governmental activities and are
supported primarily by property taxes, charges for services and intergovernmenta! revenues while business-
type activities are supported by fees and charges for services.

For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from these statements. However,
interfund activity between governmental activities and business-type activities has not been eliminated so as
to not distort the direct costs and program revenues of the various functions.

The basic (government-wide) financial statements report information on the County as a whole. These
statements focus on the sustainability of the County as an entity and the change in aggregate financiai
position resulting from the activities of the fiscal period and consist of the Statement of Net Assets and the
Statement of Activities.

The Statement of Net Assets presents information on all of the assets and liabilities of the County, with the
difference between the two reported as net assets. Net assets are classified into one of three categories for
accounting and financial reporting purposes:

» Invested in capital assets, net of related debt. This category represents the cost of the County's capital
assels, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by any outstanding debt used to acquire those
assets.

» Restricted. Assets are considered restricted when constraints are placed on their use by external
sources such as creditors and grantors, or imposed by statute.

> Unrestricted. Net assets that do not meet the definition of the two preceding categories are considered
unrestricted and can be used for new spending. Designations are often placed on unrestricted net assets
to indicate that internal restrictions have been placed upon their use. However, designations differ from
restrictions in that they may be subsequently removed or modified by management or the Board of
Commissioners.

The Statemnent of Activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function are
offset by program revenues. Program revenues are segregated into three categories: charges for services,
operating grants and capital grants. Charges for services are those revenues generated from charges to
customers or applicants who purchase, use or directly benefit from the goods and services provided by a
given function or segment. Operating and capital grants are those restricted to meeting the operational or
capital requirements of a particutar function or segment. Taxes and other revenues not specificaily
associated with a particular program are reported as general revenues in the Statement of Activities.
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MACOMB COUNTY, MICHIGAN
Notes to Basic Financial Statements (continued)
December 31, 2005

Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Basic {Government-Wide) and Fund Financial Statements (continued)-

Fund financial statements report information at the individual fund level and are, in substance, very similar
to the financial statements presented in the previous financial reporting model. The focus of the fund financial
slatements is on the major funds of both governmental and business-type activities. Major individual
governmental and proprietary funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements. Non-
major funds are consolidated into a single column within each fund type in the basic financial statements and
are detailed in the supplementary information. Funds are classified as governmental, proprietary or fiduciary.
The fiduciary funds are included in the fund financial statements but are excluded from the government-wide
financial statements since these assets are being held for the benefit of third parties and are not available to

support the activities or obligations of the County.
The County reports the following major governmental funds:

» The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the County. It accounts for all financial resources except
those required to be accounted for in another fund.

» The Revenue Sharing Reserve Fund is required by the State of Michigan and accounts for property tax
collections that serve as a substitute for Stale revenue sharing payments. This funding mechanism
involves a gradual shift in the collection of County property taxes from December to July of each year.

The County reports the following major enterprise funds:

» The Definguent Tax Revolving Fund accounts for the County’s annual purchase of delinquent real
property taxes from each of the local taxing jurisdictions in the County and their subsequent collection.
In addition, the operations of the personal property tax collection division of the Treasurer's Office are

reported here.

» The Community Mental Health Fund accounts for the activities of delivering an array of mental health
services to County residents.

» The Martha T. Berry Medical Care Facility accounts for the activities of delivering long-term nursing care
to County residents.

» The Freedom Hill Park fund accounts for the operations of the Freedom Hill County Park.

Financial information regarding the County’s Internal Service Funds is presented in summary form as part of
the proprietary fund financial statements. Since the principal users of the services of these funds are the
County's governmental activities, the financial statements of the internal service funds are consolidated into
the governmental activities in the entity-wide financial statements. Surpluses or deficits of the internal service
funds are allocated back to the governmental activities within the government-wide financial statements.

B-22

1)) ) 3 ) ) ) 3 ) 0 ) ) s ) s 1y a1y



11]\ll)ll)l]lllllllllll)llll!lllll))llllllll

MACOMB COUNTY, MICHIGAN
Notes to Basic Financial Statements (continued)
December 31, 2005

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {continued)

Basis of Presentation - Fund Accounting {concluded) - The accounts of the County are organized on the basis of
funds, each of which is considered a separate accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted
for with a separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues
and expenditures, or expenses as appropriate. Government resources are allocated to and accounted for in
individual funds based upon the purpose for which they are to be spent and the means by which spending
activities are controlled. The funds of the County are classified into three broad categories: governmental,
proprietary and fiduciary.

Governmental Funds

General Fund - The General Fund is the general operating fund of the County. It is used to account for ali
financial resources except those required to be accounted for in other funds.

Special Revenue Funds - Special revenue funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources
{(other than expendable trusts or major capital projects) that are legally restricted to expenditure for specific
purposes.

Debt Service Funds — Debt service funds are used to account for the accumulation of resources for, and the
payment of, principal, interest and related costs of general long-term debt nol being accounted for in
proprietary funds.

Capital Projects Funds - Capital projects funds are used to account for the acquisition, construction or renovation
of major capital facilities other than those accounted for in proprietary funds.

Proprietary Funds

Intemal Service Funds - Internal services funds are used to account for goods and services provided to other
departments and governmental agencies on a cost-reimbursement basis. The County utilizes separate
internal service funds to account for compensated absences, workers’ compensation insurance, liability
insurance and central services such as inventory and telephone.

Enterprise Funds - Enterprise funds are used to account for the activities of the County’s business-type
activities. The operations of these funds are financed primarity through user fees and are intended to recover
the cost of services provided.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing goods and services in connection with the principal
ongoing operations of any particular proprietary fund. Operating expenses for proprietary funds include cost
of sales and services, administrative expenses and depreciation of capital assets. Revenue not meeting this
definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.
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MACOMB COUNTY, MICHIGAN
Notes to Basic Financial Statements (continued}
December 31, 2005

Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {continued)

Fiduciary Funds

Employees’ Retirement Fund - The Employees’ Retirement Fund is used to account for the accumulation of
resources for pension benefit payments to qualified employees.

Retiree Health Care Trust Fund — The Retiree Heaith Care Trust Fund is used to account for the accumulation of
resources to provide health care benefits to County retirees.

Agency Funds - Trust and agency funds are used to account for assets held by the County in a trustee capacity
or as an agent for individuals, private organizations, other governments and/or other funds. The County
reports the following agency funds: general agency for items such as court fees collected and passed
through to the State of Michigan, payroll and benefits for employee withholdings such as gamishments and
union dues and miscellaneous agency, which is used to account for monies such as library penal fines.

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting — Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenses are
recognized and reported in the financial statements.

The government-wide financial statements as well as the financial statements of the proprietary funds and
pension trust funds are accounted for using the full accrual basis of accounting. Their revenues are
recognized when they are eamed and their expenses are recognized when they are incurred without regard
lo the receipt or payment of cash or its equivalent.

The governmental fund financial statements are prepared using the modified accrual basis of accounting.
Revenues of governmental funds are recognized when they become both measurable and available.
“Measurable” means that the amount of the transaction can be determined and “available” means collectible
within the current period or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current period. For this
purpose, the County considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of year-end.

Federal grants, state distributions and grants, property taxes and interest earned are accrued since they are
both measurable and available. Special assessments are recognized as revenues only to the extent that
individual installments are due within one year. Licenses and permits, fines and forfeitures and other
revenues are recorded when received in cash because they are generally not measurable until actually
received. Expenditures are generally recognized under the modified accrual basis of accounting when the
related fund liability is incurred, with the exception of principal and interest on general long-term debt, which is
recognized when due. The majority of the funds of the County are accounted for using the medified accrual
basis of accounting. Because the governmental fund financial statements are presented on a different
measurement focus and basis of accounting than the government-wide financial statements, a reconciliation
is provided after each governmental fund financial statement that briefly explains the adjustments necessary
to reconcile the fund financial statements o the government-wide financial statements.
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MACOMB COUNTY, MICHIGAN
Notes to Basic Financial Statements (continued)
December 31, 2005

Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Inventories - Inventories are valued at cost. Cost is determined by the first-in, first-out method. Inventories in
the General Fund and the Road Commission (component unit) consist of expendable items held for
consumption. The cost is recorded as an expenditure at the time individual inventory items are consumed.
Inventories reported in the General Fund are equally offset by a fund balance reserve that indicates that they
do not constitute “available spendable resources” even though they are a component of net current assets.
Under current governmental accounting principles, establishing a reserve for inventories determined on the
consumption basis is optional. As a matter of policy, the Road Commission has elected not to establish a fund
balance reserve for its inventories.

Surplus Property — Surplus property is recorded at the lower of cost or market and represents currently available
expendable resources.

Other Assets — Other assets represent deposits and prepaid expenses.

Budgetary Accounting - In establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial statements, the County
foliows these procedures:

» Prior to October 1, the County Finance Director submits to the Board of Commissioners a proposed
operating budget for the year commencing January 1. The annual operating budget includes proposed
expenditures and the means of financing them for the General Fund, Friend of the Court, Health, County
Library, Medical Care Facility, Parks, Social Services, Community Services Agency, Senior Citizens
Services and Child Care Special Revenue Funds. For those Special Revenue Funds and component
units without annual operating budgets (MSU Extension Grants, Sheriff Grants, Urban County Block
Grant, Prosecuting Attorney Grants, Health Grants, Other Special Revenue Funds and Michigan Works!),
legai authorization for spending is obtained through approval of the Board of Commissioners or other
appropriate authoritative body. Similarly, legal authorization for the spending of Debt Service Funds and
Capital Projects Funds is provided by Board of Commissioners’ approval of bond ordinances, grant
agreements, construction contracts and special assessment rofls.

» A public hearing is conducted to obtain taxpayer comments and prior to December 31, the budget is
legally enacted through passage of a resolution by the Board of Commissioners.

Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during the year for all funds.
Expenditures may not legally exceed budgeled appropriations at the function and object level within an
individual department. Management cannot amend the enacted budget without the consent of the Finance
Committee of the Board of Commissioners. The Finance Committee is authorized to transfer budgeted
amounts within the legal levels of budgetary control. Any revisions that alter the total expenditures of any
legal level of budgetary control must be approved by the Board of Commissioners. During the year,
supplemental budgetary appropriations were not significant in relation to the original appropriations as
adopted. Unexpended appropriations lapse at year-end. Encumbrances open at year-end are reappropriated
in the following year. Budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting
principies. Budgeted amounts, as presented in the financial statements, represent final budget authorization,
including all amendments approved during the year.
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MACOMB COUNTY, MICHIGAN
Notes to Basic Financial Statements (continued)
December 31, 2005

Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Capital Assefs — Capital assets of the primary government, inciuding jand, land improvements, buildings,
equipment and vehicles, are reported in the government-wide financial statements and the applicable
proprietary fund financial statements. Capital assets utilized for govemmental activities are only capitalized in
the government-wide financial statements and are fully expended in the governmental funds. Capital assets
of the component units, including infrastructure assets such as roads, bridges and drains, are reported in the
Public Works and Road Commission Component Units. The County capitalizes assets whose initial purchase
price equals or exceeds $5,000 and whose estimated useful life exceeds one year. The Road Commission
capitalizes assets whose initial cost equals or exceeds $1,000 and estimated useful life exceeds one year.
Capital assets are valued at historical cost or estimated historical cost. Donated properties are recorded at
fair market value at the date of donation.

Depreciation of all exhaustible capitat assets is allocated against the various functions in the Statement of
Activities with accumulated depreciation reftected in the Statement of Net Assets. Depreciation has been
provided over the following estimaled usefui fives using the straight-line method: land improvements - 10-20
years, buildings and improvements — 25-50 years, equipment - 3-20 years, vehicles - 5 years and
infrastructure 8-50 years.

Compensaled Absences — County employees earn vacation and sick leave benefits based on length of service.
Both fully vest upon completion of a probationary period of six months. Upon separation from service,
employees are paid accumulated vacation and sick pay based upon the nature of separation (death,
retirement or termination). Certain limitations have been placed on the number of hours of vacation and sick
leave that may be accumulated and carried over for payment at separation of service. Unused hours
exceeding these limitations are forfeited. Accumulated unpaid vacation, sick pay and other employee benefit
liabilities have been accrued in the Compensated Absences Internal Service Fund.

Encumbrances — Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts and other commitments for
the expenditure of monies are recorded in order to reserve that portion of the applicable appropriation, is
employed as an extension of formal budgetary integration in the General Fund and Special Revenue Funds
Encumbrances outstanding at year-end are reported as reserves of fund balances since they do not
constitute expenditures or liabilities. In addition, the encumbrances outstanding at year-end are re-
appropriated and spent under authorization of a new budget.

Property Taxes - The County property tax is levied each December 1 based on the taxable vaiue of property as
of the preceding December 31.  Taxes are billed and collected for the County by the local units within the
County and are payable in one installment no later than February 28 of the following year, at which time they
become delinquent and subject to penalty. Taxable value is established annually by the local units, accepted
by the County and equalized by the State of Michigan to approximate 50% of market value (SEV). The
annual increase in taxable value is limited by State statute to the rate of inflation or 5%, whichever is less.
Taxable value reverts to SEV when a property is sold or when SEV drops below taxable value. The taxable
value of real and personal property in Macomb County for the December 1, 2004 levy (calendar 2005
revenue) was $26,980,530,368. The County operating tax rate for the 2004 levy was 4.20 milfs.
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MACOMB COUNTY, MICHIGAN
Notes to Basic Financial Statements {continued)
December 31, 2005

Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {concluded)

Propedy Taxes {conciuded) — The State eliminated State Revenue Sharing in 2004 and enacted Public Act 357 to
provide for a gradual shift in County tax levies from December to July to serve as a substitute funding
mechanism for State Revenue Sharing. The gradual shift takes place over a three year period as follows: in
2005, one-third of the taxes were levied on July 1, and two-thirds on December t; in 2006, two-thirds of the
taxes will be levied on July 1 and one third on December 1 and the 100% of the taxes will be levied on July 1
beginning in 2007 and each year thereafter.

The County, through its Delinquent Tax Revolving Fund, purchases annually from the municipalities within the
County, at face value, the delinquent real property taxes receivable, as certified to the County as not collected
as of March 1. The Delinquent Tax Revolving Fund is self-supporting at this time. Collection of these
delinquent property taxes will be used to purchase future delinquent real property taxes from municipalities
within the County.

Use of Estimates - The preparation of financial statements, in conformity with generally accepled accounting
principles, requires management to make significant estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets, liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results
could differ from such estimates.

Application of FASB Pronouncements - The County and its component units apply all applicable pronouncements of
the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) in accounting for their proprietary operations (excluding
intemnal service funds), unless those pronouncements conflict with guidance issued by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board after November 30, 1989, as prescribed by GASB Statement No. 20.

Note 2 - Deposits and Investments

Primary Government Deposits and Investments - The County maintains a cash and investment poof that is
available for use by all funds, except the Pension Trust Fund and the Retiree Health Care Trust Fund. In
addition to their participation in the pool, certain funds also maintain separate investment accounts, consisting
primarily of cerlificates of deposit and money market accounts. Each fund’s portion of the pool as well as any
amounts in separate accounts are reported as “Cash and Pooled Investments”. The Board of Commissioners
adopts a depository resolution, including a list of authorized institutions, each year as recommended by the
County Treasurer. The provisions of the depository resolution are as follows:

» Certificates of deposit must be with institutions with locations in the State of Michigan, shall not
exceed 75% of the portfolio and the amount with any one institution may not exceed 25% of the total
portfolio.

» Commercial paper must be rated A-1 by Standard & Poors and P-1 by Moodys and may not exceed
75% of the total portfolio.

» Banker's acceptances with any one institution may not exceed 20% of the total portfolio.
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MACOMB COUNTY, MICHIGAN
Notes to Basic Financial Statements (continued)
December 31, 2005

Note 2 — Deposits and Investments {continued)

Primary Government Deposits and Investments {continued) —

» Government investment pools may not exceed 50% of the total portfolio.

> The total of deposits and investments with any one institution may not exceed 50% of the
capitalization of that institution.

The deposits and investments of the primary government at December 31, 2005 are presented below.

Percent Ratings Avg Days
Amount of Total S&P Moodys to Maturity
Cash on hand $ 55,963 0.02% Not Rated Not Rated N/A
Bank and money market accounts 18,358,594 7.84% Not Rated Not Rated N/A
Certificates of deposit 176,775,290 75.47% Not Rated Not Rated 113
Subtotal - depsoits 195,189,847
Commercial paper
General Electric 30,851,199 13.17% A-1 P-1 175
Citigroup Financial 1,275,524 0.54% A-1 P-1 149
US Obligations
Fannie Mae 1,067,275 0.46% AAA AAA 26
US Treasury securities 470,340 0.20% AAA AAA 0-12
S Treasury securities 3,325,425 1.42% AAA AAA 13-60
US Treasury securities 2,043,492 0.88% AAA AAA 61-120
234,223,102 100.00%
Timing effect of different year-ends 3476472

Amount reported at Decemnber 31, 2005

Amount reported in primary government
Amount reported in agency funds

_$ 237.609574_

$ 206,637,587

31,061,987

_S 237.699.574

Deposits - The deposits of the primary government are subject to custodial credit risk, which is the risk that the
deposits may not be returned in the event of a bank failure. The custodial credit risk assumed by the County
is measured by categorizing deposits in one of three categories: 1) insured or collateralized with securities
held by the County or its agent in the County’'s name, 2) collateralized with securities held by the counter-
party’s trust department or agent in the County’s name and 3} uninsured and uncoflateralized.
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MACOMB COUNTY, MICHIGAN
Notes to Basic Financial Statements (continued)
December 31, 2005

Note 2 — Deposits and investments {continued)

Primary Government Deposits and Investments (continued) —

At year-end, the book value of the deposits of the primary government was $195,189,847, with corresponding
bank balances of $207,907,725 . Qualifying deposits are insured by the FDIC up to $100,000. Of the bank
balances of the primary government, $800,000 was insured and the remaining $207,107,725 was uninsured
and uncollateralized. The County believes that it is impractical to insure all deposits given the size of the
portfolio and the limits of insurance established by the FDIC. As a result, the County evaluates each
institution with which it deposits funds and assesses the level of risk associated with each institution and
adjusts its deposits accordingly.

Investments - Investments of the primary government are subject to various types of risks as defined below in
accordance with GASB Statement No. 40:

» Credit Risk is a measure of the creditworthiness of the issuers of the instruments being held and
represents the risk that the issuer or other countyparty to an investment will not fulfill its obligations.
Statutes of the State of Michigan authorize the County to invest in the following instruments:
obligations of the U.S. Treasury and its agencies and instrumentalities, commercial paper rated within
the two highest classifications established by not less than two standard rating services, bankers’
acceptances, investment pools of the Treasurer of the State of Michigan, and repurchase
agreements. At year-end, ail of the commercial paper held by the County was rated A-1 by Standard
& Poors and P-1 by Moody's investor Service. In addition, the entire portfolio of investments issued
by the United States Treasury or agencies of the United States were rated AAA by Standard & Poors
and Aaa by Moody's.

> Concentration of Credit Risk is the risk of loss measured by the magnitude of the County’s investment in
a single issuer. As defined by GASB Statement NO. 40, the County is exposed to concentration of
credit risk if more that 5% of its portfolio is invested in instruments issued by a singie issuer. At year-
end, the County held $30.851,199 of commercial paper issued by General Electric, which
represented 13.17% of the portfolio. No other investments exceeded the 5% threshold.

» Interest Rate Risk is the risk that the fair value of the County’s investments will be adversely affected by
changes in market interest rates and is measured primarily by average days to maturity. Although the
County investment policy does not limit investment maturities as a means of fimiting its exposure o
interest rate risk, the County manages this risk by purchasing a mix of short and longer term
investments. Information regarding the County's exposure to interest rate risk is presented below:

Maturities Fair Value Percent of
{Years) us Treasury US Agency Corporate Total Total
Less than 1 $ 470,340 $ 1067275 $ 32,126,723 $ 33,664,338 86.25%
1-5 3,325425 - - 3,325,425 8.52%
610 2,043,492 - - 2,043,492 5.23%
$ 5,839,257 $ 1,067,275 $ 32,126,723 $ 39,033,255 100.00%
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MACOMB COUNTY, MICHIGAN
Notes to Basic Financial Statements {continued)
December 31, 2005

Note 2 - Deposits and Investments {continued)

Component Unit Deposits and Investments —

Deposits - The deposits of the component units are subject to same custodial credit risk described previously
The component units do not participate in the

in relation to the deposits of the primary government.

investment pool of the primary government and their portfolios consist entirely of bank accounts and
certificates of deposit. The book value of the deposits of the component units was $77,654,727 at year-end,
with corresponding bank baiances of $80,074,793. Of the bank balance, $900,000 was insured and the
remaining $79,174,793 was uninsured and uncollateralized.

Retiree Health Care Trust Fund Investments — The investments of the Retiree Health Care Trust Fund (the “Fund”)
are held in a bank-administered trust fund. A summary of the investments of the Fund at December 31, 2005

are presented below:

Percent

tnvestment Type Amount of Total
Equity Mutual Funds $ 46,207.287 50.04%
Commeon Stock 13,548,618 14.67%
Foreign Stock 14,094,844 15.26%

Bond Mutual Funds

US Treasuries 4,695,378 8577%
US Agencies 8,466,469 5.09%
Corporate 5,323,893 917%
$ 92336489 100.00%

» Credit Risk is a measure of the creditworthiness of the issuers of the instruments being held and
represents the risk that the issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fufill its obligations.
Statutes of the State of Michigan authorize the component units to invest in the following instruments:
obligations of the U.S. Treasury and its agencies and instrumentalities, commercial paper rated within
the two highest classifications established by not less than two standard rating services, bankers’
acceptances, investment poois of the Treasurer of the State of Michigan, repurchase agreements and
corporate bonds rated in the top four major grades as determined by at ieast two national ratings
agencies. At December 31, 2005, the Fund's investments in debt securities were rated by Standard

& Poors as follows:

Percent of

Quality Rating US Treasury US Agency Corporate Total Total
AAA $ 4695378 $ 8.466469 $ 1,386430 $ 14548277 78.70%
AA - - 924,287 924,287 5.00%
A - - 1,663,717 1,663,717 9.00%
BAA - - 1,349,459 1,349,459 7.30%
$ 4695378 $ 8,466,469 $ 5,323,893 $ 18485740 100.00%
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MACOMB COUNTY, MICHIGAN
Notes to Basic Financial Statements {continued)
December 31, 2005

Note 2 - Deposits and Investments {continued)

Retiree Health Care Trust Fund Investments {concluded) —

»  Concentration of Credit Risk is the risk of loss measured by the magnitude of investments in a single
issuer. As defined by GASB Statement NO. 40, the County is exposed to concentration of credit risk if
more that 5% of its portfolio is invested in instruments issued by a single issuer. Investments in
instruments issued by the US Government, as well as those held in mutual funds and investment
pools are exempt from this requirement. None of the investrments in common or foreign stock
exceeded the 5% threshold at December 31, 2005.

> Interest Rate Risk is the risk that the fair value of investments in debt securities will be adversely
affected by changes in market interest rates and is measured primarily by average days to maturity.
The entire portfolio of debt securities of the Retiree Health Care Trust Fund is held in one bond index
mutual fund that consists of a mix of corporate, US Treasury and US Agency securities. Therefore,
the information regarding the Fund's exposure to interest rate risk is presented for the mutual fund as

a whole:
Maturities Fair Value Percent of
(Years) US Treasury Us Agency Corporate Total Total
15 $ 2.084,748 $ 3,759,112 $ 2,363,809 $ 8,207,669 44.40%
6-10 1,972,059 3.555917 2,236,035 7,764,011 42.00%
11 or more 638,571 1,151,440 724,049 2,514,060 13.60%

$ 4,695,378 $ 8.468,469 $ 5323893 $ 18,485,740 100.00%

Employees’ Retirement System Deposits and Investments - A summary of the investments of the System at
December 31, 2005 is presented below:

Percent

Investment Type Amount of Total
Cash and pooled investments $ 28,167,056 3.77%
Preferred stock 36,863,843 4.94%
Common stock 301,836,417 40.45%
Foreign stock 107,879,950 14.47%
Limited patnerships 18,124,324 243%
US Treasury obligations 16,009,709 2.15%
US Agencies 4,654,776 0.62%
Corporate bonds 45,948,746 6.16%
Mutual funds 186,584,214 25.01%
$ 746,169,035 100.00%
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MACOMB COUNTY, MICHIGAN
Notes to Basic Financial Statements (continued)
December 31, 2005

Note 2 - Deposits and Investments (continued)

Employees’ Retirement System Deposits and Investments (continued)

Deposits - The deposits of the Macomb County Employee’s Retirement System (the “Systemn”) are subject to
custodial credit risk, which is the risk that the deposits may not be returned in the event of a bank failure. The
custodial credit risk assumed by the System is measured by categorizing deposits as previously described.
At year-end, the book value of the deposits of the System was $28,167,056 , with corresponding bank
balances of $28,310,813 . Qualifying deposits are insured by the FDIC up to $100,000. Of the bank balances
of the System, $200,000 was insured and the remaining $28,110,813 was uninsured and uncollateralized.

Investments - The investments of the System are subject to various types of risks as defined below in
accordance with GASB Statement No. 40:

> Credit Risk is a measure of the creditworthiness of the issuers of the instruments being held and
represents the risk that the issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its obligations.
Statutes of the State of Michigan authorize the System to invest in the following instruments:
obligations of the U.S. Treasury and its agencies and instrumentalities, commercial paper rated within
the two highest classifications established by not less than two standard rating services, bankers’
acceptances, investment pools of the Treasurer of the State of Michigan, repurchase agreements,
Corporate stocks and corporate bonds rated in the top four major grades as determined by at least
twe national ratings agencies. Corporate stock cannot exceed sixty five percent {65%) of the total
portfolio. The System also participates in securities lending transactions (see Note 7). At December
31, 2005, the System'’s investments in debt securities were rated by Standard & Poors as follows:

Percent of

Quality Rating US Treasury US Agency Corporate Total Total
AAA $ 16,009,709 $ 4,654,776 $ 8002517 $ 28,667,002 43.03%
AA - - 7,499,302 7,499,302 11.26%
A - - 10,457,634 10,457,634 15.70%
BAA - - 17,572,228 17,572,228 26.38%
B or lower - - 2,417,065 2,417,065 3.63%
$ 16,009,709 $ 4,654,776 $ 45,948,746 $ 66,613,231 100.00%

» Interest Rate Risk is the risk that the fair value of investments in debt securities will be adversely
affected by changes in market interest rates and is measured primarily by average days to maturity.
A summary of the maturities of the System’s debt securities at December 31, 2005 were as follows:

Maturities Fair Value Percent of
{Years) US Treasury US Agency Corporate Total Total
1-5 3 - $ 4654778 $ 41,879,381 $ 46,534,157 69.86%
6-10 16,009,709 - 4,069,365 20,079,074 30.14%
$ 16,009,709 $ 4,654,776 $ 45948746 $ 66,613,231 100.00%
B-32

-~

.“j‘]‘l,‘,,',’,,JIJ,J]],)]]]]I)lIIIIIIIIlllll




'l)llillllillll!]1)))]]))l)l!llllll)l’llllllIl

MACOMB COUNTY, MICHIGAN
Notes to Basic Financial Statements (continued)
December 31, 2005

Note 3 — Capitat Assets

The following is a summary of capital asset activity of the governmental actlivities of the County for the year
ended December 31, 2005:

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Governmental activities
Capital assets not being depreciated
Land $ 9233484 $ 3310168 § - $§ 12543652
Construction in progress 13,475,219 23,765,623 22,598 468 14,642,374
Total capital assets not being depreciated 22,708,703 27,075,791 22,508,468 27,186,026
Capital assets being depreciated
Land improvements 4,984,358 2,079,142 - 7,063,500
Buildings 167,654,084 7,491 341 - 175,145,425
Machinery, equipment and vehicles 43,828,397 4,709,303 976,300 47,561,400
Total capitaf assets being depreciated 216,466,839 14,279,786 976,300 229,770,325
Less accumulated depreciation for
Land improvements 2222652 214,713 - 2,437 365
Buildings 51,627,318 4934719 - 56,562,037
Machinery, equipment and vehidles 27,789,010 4,524 146 817,862 31,495,294
Total accumulated depreciation 81,638,980 9,673,578 817,862 90,494,696
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 134,827,859 4,608,208 158,438 139,275,629
Governmental activities capital assets, net $ 157536562 $ 31.681,999 $ 22756906 $ 166,461,655

The primary government does not report any infrastructure assels as of December 31, 2005.

Depreciation expense was charged to the functions of the governmental activities as follows:

Governmental Internal Service
Governmental activities: Assels Assets Total
Judicial 3 2006862 % - § 2,096,862
General government 2,642,770 459172 3,101,942
Health and welfare 2,167,598 - 2,167,598
Recreation and culture 72,005 - 72,005
Public safety 2235172 - 2,235,172

$ 9.214407 $ 459,172  § 9,673,579
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MACOMB COUNTY, MICHIGAN
Notes to Basic Financial Statements (continued)
December 31, 2005

Note 3 — Capital Assets (continued)

The following is a summary of capital asset activity of the business-type activities of the County for the year
ended December 31, 2005:

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Business-type activities
Capital assets not being depreciated
Construction in progress $ 93259 § 3556554 % 93259 § 3,556,554
Total capital assets not being depreciated 93,259 3,556,554 93,259 3,556,554
Capitat assels being depreciated
Land improvements 337,934 117,120 - 455,054
Buildings 6,347,736 821,512 - 7,169,248
Machinery, equipment and vehicles 2,863,703 68,688 60,265 2,872,126
Total capital assets being depreciated 9,549,373 1,007.320 60,265 10,496,428
Less accumulated depreciation for
Land improvements 229,526 13.201 - 242 817
Buildings 4,406,350 178,194 - 4,584 544
Machinery, equipment and vehicles 2,450,258 90,976 60,265 2,480,964
Total accumuiated depreciation 7,086,134 282 461 60,265 7,308,330
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 2,463,239 724,859 ~ 3,188,098
Business-type activities capital assets, net $ 2556498 $ 4281413 § 93259 § 6744652
B-34
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MACOMB COUNTY, MICHIGAN
Notes to Basic Financial Statements (continued)
December 31, 2005

Note 3 — Capital Assets {continued)

The following is a summary of changes in the Public Works Component Unit capital assets for the year ended
September 30, 2005:

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Governmental activities
Capital assets not being depreciated
Land 3 1992428 §% - % - % 1,992,428
Construction in progress 2,631,869 1,429,811 1,212,851 2,848,829
Total capital assets not being depreciated 4,624,297 1,429 811 1,212,851 4,841,257
Capitaf assets being depreciated
Infrastructure 218,222 896 2,879,805 - 221,102,701
Less accumulated depreciation for
infrastructure 54,211,800 4,393,255 - 58,605,055
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 164,011,096 {1,513,450) - 162,497 646
Governmental activities capital assets, net $ 168635393 § (83.639) $ 1212851 $ 167,338,903
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MACOMB COUNTY, MICHIGAN
Notes to Basic Financial Statements (continued)
December 31, 2005

Note 3 — Capital Assets (concluded)

The following is a summary of changes in the Road Commission Component Unit capital assets for the year
ended September 30, 2005:

Balance Ending
Beginning Increases Decreases Balance
Governmental activities
Capital assets not being depreciated
Land 3 167942410 § 4624857 % - $ 172,567,067
Total capital assets not being depreciated 167,942,410 4,624 657 - 172,567,067
Capital assets being depreciated
{Larnd improvements 1,317,456 - - 1,317,456
Buildings 24,222 550 858,601 - 25,081,151
Machinery, equipment and vehicles 25,001 411 2,297,816 1,373,523 25,925,704
Infrastructure 745,714,960 51,084,503 - 796,799,463
Totat capital assets being depreciated 796,256,377 54,240,920 1,373.523 849,123,774
Less accumutated depreciation for
Land improvements 616,297 66,005 - 682,302
Buildings 4575329 504,408 - 5,079,737
Machinery, equipment and vehicles 18,870,456 2,470,089 1,373,145 19,967,400
Infrastricture 262,249,222 30,519,355 - 292 768,577
Total accumulated depreciation 286,311,304 33,659,857 1,373,145 318,498,016
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 509,945,073 20,681,063 378 530,625,758
Govemmental activities capital assets, net $ 677887483 § 25305720 § 378 $ 703,192,825
B-36
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MACOMB COUNTY, MICHIGAN
Notes to Basic Financial Statements (continued)

Note 4 — Long-Term Debt

December 31, 2005

The following is a summary of the long-term liability transactions for the year ended December 31, 2005:

Beginning Ending Due Within
Issue Bailance Additions Reductions Balance One Year
Primary Government
Governmental activities
Criminal Justice Bldg Authority
Series 1989 Jail Renovation 300,000 3% - 3 - § 300,000 $ -
Series 1996 Refunding 985,000 - 315,000 670,000 330,000
Series 2002-8 Refunding 5,525,000 - 280,000 5,245,000 275,000
Building Authority
Series 1996-A Wairen Satellite 625,000 - 175,000 450,000 225,000
Series 1999 Verkuilen Bldg 675,000 - 125,000 550,000 130,000
Series 2000 Clemens Center 3,475,000 B 2,825,000 650,000 150,000
Series 2002 MTB/Youth Herne 29,600,000 - 1,100,000 28,500,000 1,150,000
Series 2002-A Refunding 8,215,000 - 610,000 7,605,000 635,000
Series 2004 Warehouse 5,100,000 - 175,000 4,925,000 175,000
Series 2004-A Public Works Bldg 4,250,000 - 150,600 4,100,000 150,000
Series 2005 Clemens Refunding - 2,875,000 - 2,875,000 30,000
Series 2005 Commun System/Dist Court - 19,380,000 - 19,380,000 725,000
MI Transportation Fund
Series 2000-A Bridge Bonds 4,000,000 280,000 3,720,000 295,000
Series 2004-8 Bridge Bonds 10,000,000 - 200,000 9,800,000 200,600
72,750,000 22,255,000 6,235,000 88,770,000 4,470,000
Other liabilities
Compensated Absences 6,859,733 826,954 1,122,192 6,604,495 1,000,000
General liability claims 3,816,798 - 932,908 2,683,890 850,000
Workers' compensation claims 1,998,875 479,807 688,536 1,790,146 300,000
85,265,406 23,561,761 8,978,636 99,848,531 7,120,000
Component Units
Drain Commissioner
Special Assessment Debt 96,565,604 119,396 13,530,000 83,155,000 4,775,000
Road Commission
Compensated Absences 1,249,609 188,675 - 1,438,284 -
General liability claims 1,746,534 - 125,996 1,620,538 16,765
Workers' compensation claims 346,775 292,968 251,440 388,303 106,690
Total Road Commission 3,342,918 481,643 377,436 3,447 125 123,455
Grand Totals 185,173,928 § 24,162,800 § 22,885,072 $ 186,450,656 $ 12,018,455
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MACOMB COUNTY, MICHIGAN
Notes to Basic Financial Statements (continued)
December 31, 2005

Note 4 — Long-Term Debt (continued)

Long-term bonded debt of the Primary Government and Component Units consists of the following:

Interest Maturing Original Issue Balance
Issue Rate Date of lssue Through Amount End of Year
Primary Government
Governmental activities

Criminal Justice Building Authority
Series 1989 Jail Renovation 4.00-8.50%  9/1/1989 5/1/2008 3,800,000 300,000
Series 1996 Refunding 4.00-5.80 21171996 5/1/2007 3,190,000 670,000
Series 2002-B Refunding 2.00-4.00 1/1/2003 7172013 5,830,000 5,245,000

Macomb County Building Authority
Series 1996-A Warren Satellite Renovation 3.80-4.80 5/111997 5/1/2007 1,700,000 450,000
Series 1999 Verkuilen Bldg Renovation 4.00-4.90 117111999 5/1/2009 1,205,000 550,000
Series 2000 Clemens Center 470-570 81172000 5172020 4,000,000 650,000
Series 2002 MTB/Youth Home Renovation 3.50-5.00 5/1/2002 5172022 32,000,000 28,500,000
Series 2002-A Refunding 2.50-4.00 12/1/2002 5112015 8,885,000 7,605,000
Series 2004 Warchouse 2.00-5.00 51112004 5/1/2024 5,100,000 4,925,000
Series 2004-A Public Works Bldg 3.00-4.50 11/1/2004 5/1/2024 4,250,000 4,100,000
Series 2005 Clemens Refunding 3.25-5.00 12/1/2005 5/1/2020 2,875,000 2,875,000
Series 2005 Commun System/Dist Court 375450 121112005 117142025 19,380,000 19,380,000

Michigan Transportation Bonds
Series 2000-A Bridge Bonds 5.375-5.625  6/1/2000 1211215 5,000,000 3,720,000
Series 2004-B Bridge Bonds 3.00-4.75 51112004 12/1/2024 10,000,000 9,800,000
Total Primary Government 107,215,000 88,770,000
Public Works Component Unit
Special Assessment Debt
Busch Drain 3.80- 4.55 10/1/1998 5M1/2014 1,250,000 900,000
Green Enclosure 2.80-570 77111992 5112007 1,065,000 200,000
Hawken Drain 430-5.25 8/1/2000 5112015 795,000 550,060
Hayes Drain 4.50-5.20 8/1/2000 51172015 1,095,000 925,000
Plumbrook Bridge Replacement 4.00-500 8/1/2000 5/1/2015 2,800,000 2,200,000
17 Mife Road Drain & Branches 4.00-8.00 41111973 51112013 3,550,000 2,115,000
17 Mile Road Extension : 3.00-450  11/01/2001 11/01/2016 1,725,000 1,425,000
Sterling Relief Lateral 128 Extension 2.00-4.00 09/01/2003 1110172012 885,000 745,000
Warren Sanitary Refunding 4.40-4.45 121111997 11172007 4,750,000 880,000
Armada Viltage MCSSS 2.00 12311992 10/1/2011 1,170,060 410,000
Chesterfield New Haven, Lenox Section 5.00-10.00 51171998 1001/2007 2,775,000 525,000
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MACOMB COUNTY, MICHIGAN
Notes to Basic Financial Statements {(continued)

December 31, 2005
Note 4 — Long-Term Debt (continued)
interest Maturing Origina! Issue Balance
Issue Rate Date of Issue Through Amount End of Year
Public Works Component Unit
Special Assessment Debt
Macomb County Water Supply System #13
{Lenox Township Section 2} 4.80-5.50 31111994 5112008 1,590,000 435,000
Macomb County Water Supply System #14
{Lenox Tawnship Section 3 4.75-5.40 3111997 117172011 1,050,000 705,000
Macomb County Waste Water Treatment System -
Ammada Refunding Bonds 370-450 6111999 1111/2007 990,000 380,000
Lake St Clair Clean Water Initiative Series A 4.30-490 111/2001 10/1/2018 9,990,000 9,240,000
Lake St. Clair Clean Water Initiative
State Revolving Fund Series #1 (5186-01) 250 Various 10/01/2022 20,670,060 18,190,000
Lake St. Clair Clean Water Initiative Phase If, No. 2 04/01/2002  04/01/2023 5,000,600 4,695,000
Lake St. Clair Clean Water Initiative
State Revolving Fund Series #2 (5186-02) 2.50 Various  04/01/2022 13,630,000 11,995,600
Lake St Clair Clean Water Initiative
State Revolving Fund Series #3 (5186-03) 2.50 Varous  04/08/2022 2,640,000 2,320,000
Lake St. Clair Clean Water Initiative
State Revolving Fund Series #4 (5136-04) 2.50 Varigus 10/01/2022 5,550,000 4,885,000
Lake St Clair Clean Water Initiative
State Revolving Fund Series #5 (5186-05) 250 Various 10/01/2022 855,604 895,000
Lake St. Clair Clean Water initiative Series 2004A 4.375-5150  06/01/2004  10/01/2029 5,000,000 4,880,000
Lake St. Clair Clean Water Initiative Series 20048 4375-5150  06/1/2004 10/01/2029 14,000,000 13,660,000
Total Public Works Component Unit 102,825,604 83,155,000
Total Reporting Entity $ 210460604 § 171,925,000

All long-term obligations are presented as of December 31, 2005 except for the Special Assessment Debt
with Governmental Commitment and Road Commission obligations, which are presented as of September 30,
2005. Assessments receivable, including interest thereon, have been pledged for the payment of the Special
Assessment Debt with Governmental Commitment. The County has also pledged its full faith and credit for
the payment of the principal and interest on the Special Assessment Debt with Governmental Commitment.
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MACOMB COUNTY, MICHIGAN
Notes to Basic Financial Statements (continued)
December 31, 2005

Note 4 - Long-Term Debt {continued)

The annual requirements necessary to pay principal on the obligations of the Primary Government and
Component Units outstanding at year-end, exclusive of the compensated absences, general liability and
workers’ compensation accruals, are as follows:

Principal Maturities

Primary Govemment Public Works
Criminal Justice M| Transportation Special

Year Building Authority Building Authority Bonds Total Assessment Debt
20086 $ 3,370,000 3 605,000 495000 § 4,470,000 % 4,775,000
2007 3,475,000 615,000 660,000 4,750,000 4,515,000
2008 3,375,000 570,000 675,000 4,620,000 4,025,000
2009 3,480,000 270,000 740,000 4,490,600 3,915,000
2010 3,445,000 865,000 760,000 5,070,000 4,065,000
2011-2015 19,600,000 3,290,000 4,490,000 27,380,000 20,850,000
2016-2020 18,910,000 - 2,700,000 21,610,000 18,960,000
2021-2025 13,380,000 - 3,000,000 16,380,000 13,715,000
2026-2030 - - - - 8,335,000
3 69,035,000 % 6,215000 § 13,520,000 % 88,770,000 3§ 83,155,000

The annual requirements to pay interest on the obligations of the Primary Government and Component Units
outstanding at year-end, exclusive of the compensated absences accrual, are as follows:

Interest Maturities

Primary Government Public Works
Criminal Justice MI Transportation Special

Year Building Authority Building Authority Bonds Total Assessment Debt
20086 3 2,776,295 § 230,725 611,232 § 3,618,252 % 2,975,527
2007 2,726,426 208,775 588,126 3,523,327 2,821,699
2008 2,598,331 186,125 558,776 3,343,232 2,667,347
2009 2,469,579 170,600 528,618 3,168,797 2,538,007
2010 2,339,194 161,150 495 844 2,996,188 2,391,324
2011-2015 9,521,295 254,112 1,919,472 11,694,879 9,916,440
2016-2020 5,441,888 - 1,058,450 6,500,338 6,662,247
2021-2025 1,333,520 - 365,400 1,698,920 3,485,541
2026-2030 - - - - 959,054
3 29,206,528 § 1,211,487 § 6125918 § 36,543,933 % 34,417,186
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MACOMB COUNTY, MICHIGAN
Notes to Basic Financial Statements {continued)
December 31, 2005

Note 4 — Long-Term Debt {continued)

New Debl Issued - On December 1, 2005, the Macomb County Building Authority (the “Authority) issued
$2.875,000 of Series 2005 Refunding bonds to advance refund $2,675,000 of the $3,325,000 Macomb
County Building Authority Series 2000 Clemens Center bonds outstanding at December 1, 2005. The net
proceeds of $2,801,633 (after payment of $73,367 of issuance costs and underwriters discounts) were placed
in an irrevocable trust with an escrow agent and used to purchase obligations of the U. S. Treasury to provide
for future debt service payments on the refunded bonds. Therefore, the refunded bonds have been removed
from the accounts of the County. The remaining $650,000 Series 2000 Clemens Center bonds are due and
payable serially through May 1, 2009. The difference between the cash flows required to service the old debt
and the cash flows required to service the new bonds and complete the refunding was $201,150. The
economic gain realized by the County as a result of the refunding was $130,655, which represents the
difference between the present value of the debt service payments on the old and new debt. The refunding
bonds, issued in denominations of $5,000 or multiples thereof, bear interest from 3.25% to 5.00% and are due
serially through May 1, 2020. The bonds are to be repaid from rental payments received pursuant to a lease
agreement executed between the Authority and the County. Bonds maturing prior to May 1, 2015 are not
subject to redemption prior to maturity. Bonds maturing on or after May 1, 2015 are subject to redemption at
par plus accrued interest prior to maturity, on or after May 1, 2014,

In December 2005, the Macomb County Building Authority issued $19,380,000 of Series 2005 general
obligation limited tax bonds dated December 1, 2005 for the dual purpose of constructing a District Court
facility in the City of New Baltimore and also constructing a high frequency emergency radio communications
system. The bonds issued have been allocated to the projects as follows: $5,825,000 for the District Court
building and $13,555,000 for the communications system. Bonds totaling $16,725,000, issued in
denominations of $5,000 or multiples thereof, bear interest from 3.75% to 4.50% and are due serially through
November 1, 2023. The remaining $2,655,000 term bonds bear interest at 4.50% and are due November 1,
2025. The bonds are to be repaid from rental payments to be received pursuant to a lease agreement
executed between the Authority and the County. Bonds maturing prior to November 1, 2013 are not subject to
redemption prior to maturity. Bonds maturing on or after November 1, 2013 may be redeemed at par plus
accrued interest beginning November 1, 2012.

In prior years, the Lake St. Clair Clean Water Initiative Drain Drainage District (the “District”) entered into
various loan agreements with the Michigan Municipal Bond Authority, through its Stale Rewvolving Fund, to
borrow up to $43,465,000 for the purpose of defraying a portion of the cost of certain intra-county drain
projects located in the cities of Eastpointe, Roseville and St. Clair Shores (the “Cities”). Funds are drawn
down as construction costs are incurred and approved by the District and the Authority. During the year
ended September 30, 2005, the District drew down $119,365 and had drawn down $43,464,969 as of
September 30, 2005. The loans bear interest at a rate of 2.50% and are due serially through October 1, 2023
and were issued pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 20 of Act 40, Public Acts of Michigan, 1956, as
amended. The loans are to be repaid from assessments against the Cities. These assessments are a general
obligation of the Cities and are payable from City general funds or ad valorem taxes which may be levied by
the Cities. The County has also pledged its full faith and credit as additional security for the payment of the
principal and interest on the foans when due. The
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MACOMB COUNTY, MICHIGAN
Notes to Basic Financial Statements (continued}
December 31, 2005

Note 4 — Long-Term Debt {concluded)

Defeased debt - in prior years, the County defeased certain general obligation bonds by placing the
proceeds of new bonds in an irrevocable trust to provide for all future debt service payments on the old
bonds. Accordingly, the trust account assets and liability for the defeased bonds are not included in the
financial statements of the County. At December 31, 2005, the amount of defeased debt cutstanding but not
reported as long-term debt of the County totaled $2,675,000 and $ 250,000 for the primary government and

Public Works Component Units, respectively.

Note 5 — Interfund Receivables, Payables and Transfers

Due From Due To Due From Due To Primary
Fund Other Funds Other Funds Component Units Government
General Fund $ 5,643,126 3 - $ 4 091,953 3 -
Special Revenue
Emergency Management Grants - 909,423 - -
Friend of the Court - 65,637 - -
Senior Citizen Services - 2,251 - -
Social Wetlfare - 1,742,965 - -
- 2,720,276 - -
Business-type activities Funds
Delinquent Tax Revolving 9,870,771 - - -
Martha 7. Berry - 954,195 - -
9,870,771 954,195 - -
Fiduciary Funds
Pension Trust 463,086 904,270 - -
Retiree Health Fund - 2,840,245 - -
Agency Funds 1,312,774 9,870,771 - -
1,775,860 13,615,286 - -
Component Units
Public Works - - - 2,005,150
Michigan Works ! - - - 2,086,763
- - - 4,091,953

$ 17,289,757 $ 17,289,757 $ 4,091,953 3 4,091,953
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MACOMB COUNTY, MICHIGAN
Notes to Basic Financial Statements (continued)
December 31, 2005

Note 5 — interfund Receivables, Payables and Transfers {continued)

Fund Transfers In Transfers Out
General Fund 5 22,724,515 $ 60,347.238
Revenue Sharing Reserve - 14,069 515
Spedial Revenue
Child Care 13,428,216 -
Community Services Agency 875,245 -
Ermergency Managernent Grants - -
Friend of the Court 5472147 3,000,000
Health 12,595,893 -
Health Grants 366,924 -
Library 2,530,128 -
MSU Extension 120,839 95,839
Prosecuting Attorney Grants 602,273 35,790
Senior Citizens Services - Calendar 1,638,404 -
Sheriff Grants - Calendar 760,205 -
Social Welfare 29,990 -
Urban County Block Grant 202,169 196
Other Special Revenue 614,783 138,862
39,237,216 3,270,687
Debt Service Fund 6,143,253 -
Capital Projects Funds
Clemens center 52,000 -
District Court Building 72,795 -
E-911 Radio System 366,951 1.693.484
Martha T. Berry Renovation 2,097,899 -
Warehouse 122,469 -
General County Capital Projects Funds 13,223,956 9,031,552
15,936,070 10,725,036

Internal Service Funds
Equipment Revolving 406,635 -

Business-type activities

Delinquent Tax Revoiving - 8,655,000
Community Mental Health 5,765,711 -
Martha T. Berry Medical Care Facility 5,065,185 -
Fredom Hill Park 802,655 -

11,633,551 8,655,000
Subtotat 96,081,240 97,067 476

imbalance caused by the timing effects
of interfund transactions in funds with
different year-end reporting dates 986,236 -

$ 97,067 476 $ 97067476

B-43




MACOMB COUNTY, MICHIGAN
Notes to Basic Financial Statements (continued)
December 31, 2005

Note 5 — Interfund Receivables, Payables and Transfers {concluded)

The governmental capital projects funds of the County paid for certain capital improvements at the Martha T.
Berry and Freedom Hill Park business-type units during the year ended December 31, 2005. The value of the
reported assets totaled $4,470,615 and is reflected under the caption Transfers - Other in the Statement of
Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets of the Martha T. Berry and Freedom Hill business-
type units.

Interfund advances at December 31, 2005 were:

Advances Advances
Fund Receivable Payable
General Fund $ 300000 § -
Special Revenue - Library 30,000 -
Internal Service - Equipment Revolving - 330,000

$ 330,000 $ 330,000

Note 6 — Deferred Compensation

The County offers its employees a deferred compensation plan in accordance with Internal Revenue Code
Section 457. The plan, available to all County employees, permits them to defer a portion of their salary until
future years. The deferred compensation is not avaitable to employees until termination, retirement, death or
unforeseeable emergency. All amounts of compensation deferred under the ptan, ali property and rights
purchased with those amounts and all income attributable to those amounts are held in trust for the exclusive
benefit of participants and their beneficiaries. In accordance with GASB Statement No. 32, “Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Internal Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plans”, the assets of the
ptan are no longer reported as assets of the employer.

Note 7 - Employees’ Retirement System

Plan_Description and Provision - The County sponsors and administers the Macomb County Employees’
Retirement System (the “System”), a single employer defined benefit plan covering substantially all of the
County’s employees. The System was established in accordance with state statutes to provide retirement
benefits for the employees of the County and its several offices, boards and departments, including the
County Road Commission.

At December 31, 2004 (date of the most recent actuarial valuation) the System’s membership consisted of:

Relirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 1,640

Terminated employees entitied to benefits but not yet receiving them 234

Active employees covered by the plan 2,888

Total membership 4762
B-44
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MACOMB COUNTY, MICHIGAN
Notes to Basic Financial Statements {continued)
December 31, 2005

Note 7 — Employees’ Retirement System (continued)

Separate independently audited financial statements are not issued for the System; therefore, condensed
financial statements as of and for the year ended December 31, 2005 are presented below:

Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets

ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 746,169,035
Securities lending collateral 36,706,226
Receivables 2,148,746
Due From Qther Funds 463,086
Total assets 785,487,093
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 187,410
Due to other funds 904,270
Obligations under securities lending 36,706,226
Total Liabilities 37,797,906
NET ASSETS 3 747,689,187
Statement of Changes In Fiduciary Net Assets
ADDITIONS
Contributions
Employer $ 14,854,000
Employee 5,399,279
Investment income 60,747,829
Total additions 81,001,108
DEDUCTIONS
Benefit payments 32,554,707
Other expenses 444034
Total deductions 32,998,741
Net increase in net assets 48,002,367
Net assets held in trust , beginning of year 699,686,820
Net assets held in trust , end of year $ 747,689,187
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MACOMB COUNTY, MICHIGAN
Notes to Basic Financial Statements (continued)
December 31, 2005

Note 7 — Employees’ Retirement System (continued)

Retirement Benefits- The following is a summary of the benefits provided to the members of the system. Al
members become vested in the System after 8 years of service.

General Counfy- The majority of employees may retire if their age plus years of service equals or exceeds
70 and they have attained a minimum age of 50. The annual retirement benefit, payable monthly for life,
is computed at 2.4% of final average compensation for the first 26 years of service and 1% for every year
thereafter, with a maximum employer pension of 65%. Employees not covered by the provisions
described above may retire at age 55 with 25 or more years of service or age 60 with 8 years of service.
The annual retirement benefit, payable monthly for life, for these employees is computed at 2.2% of final
average compensation for each year of service, with a maximum employer pension of 66%

Sheriffl Department- Employees may retire at any age with 25 or more years of service or age 60 with 8
years of service. The annual retirement benefit for the Sheriff and deputies, payable monthly for life, is
computed at 2.64% of final average compensation multiplied by credited years of service with a maximum
employer pension of 66%. The factor for the undersheriff, captains, jail administrator, command officers,
corrections officers and dispalchers is 2.4% for the first 26 years of service and 1% for every year
thereafter, with a maximum employer pension of 66%.

Road Commission- Employees may retire at age 55 with 25 or more years of service, at age 60 with 8 years
of service or regardiess of age if their age plus years of service equals or exceeds 70. The annual
retirement benefit, payable monthly for life, is computed at 2.4% of finai average compensation multiplied
for the first 26 years of service and 1% for every year thereafter, with a maximum empioyer pension of
65%.

The System aiso provides death and disability benefits. If an employee leaves covered employment or dies
before 8 years of credited service, accumulated employee contributions plus interest at the rate of 3.5% per
year is refunded to the employee or designated beneficiary.

Basis of Accounting — The financial statements of the System are prepared using the accrual basis of
accounting. Employee and employer contributions are recognized in the period that the contributions are due.
Benefits and refunds are recognized when due and payable according to the terms of the plan.

Method Used to Value Investments — In accordance with GASB Statement 25, “Financial Reporting for
Defined Benefit Plans and Note Disclosures for Defined Contribution Plans”, investments are reported at fair
value, as indicated by quoted market prices as of December 31, 2005.

Funding Policy — The System’s funding policy provides for periodic employer contributions at actuarially
determined rates that, expressed as percentages of annual covered payroll, are designed to accumulate
sufficient assels to pay benefits when due. The County's required contribution for 2005 was $14,854,000.
Administrative costs of the System are financed from investment earnings. General County employees
contribute 2.5% or 3.5% of their annual salary to the System depending upon classification. Road
Commission employees contribute 3.5% of their annual salary. Sheriff employees contribute 4.0% of their
annual salary. The Counly contributes the remaining amounts necessary to fund the System, using the
actuarial basis specified by statute.
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MACOMB COUNTY, MICHIGAN
Notes to Basic Financial Statements (continued)
December 31, 2005

Note 7 — Employees’ Retirement System {concluded)

Annual Pension Cost and Net Pension_Obligation — During the year ended December 31, 2005, employer
contributions totaled $14,854,000, as required by the actuarial valuation of the plan as of December 31, 2003.
The normal cost and actuarial accrued fiability are determined using an entry age actuarial funding method.
Unfunded actuarial accrued liabilities (UAAL) due to benefit and assumption changes are being amortized as
a level percent of payroll over a 15 year closed period. Remaining UAAL is being amortized as a level
percent of payroll over an 8-year open period. The County has historically contributed 100% of the annual
required contribution. Three-year trend information regarding the County’s annual pension cost, percent
contribution and net pension obligation are presented below.

Year Ended Annual Pension Percentage of Net Pension
December 31 Cost {APC) APC Contributed Obligation
2003 3,042,099 100 -
2004 8,577,844 100 -
2005 14,854,000 100 -

Significant actuarial assumptions used in determining the annual required contribution inctude (2) a rate of
return on the investment of present and future assets of 7.5% per year compounded annually, (b} projected
salary increases of 5.0% per year compounded annually, attributable to infiation, (c) additionat projected
salary increases ranging from 1.2% to 5.0% for various members per year, depending on service, attributable
to seniority/merit, and (d) the assumption that benefits will not increase after retirement. The actuarial value
of assets was delermined using techniques that smooth the effects of short-term volatility in the market value
of investments over a five-year period.

Secunties Lending - The Macomb County Employees’ Retirernent System is authorized to participate in
securities lending agreements with its custodian. Such transactions involve loans of securities to
broker/dealers and other entities for collateral with a simultaneous agreement to return the collateral for the
same securities in the future and are perceived to be invisible to the third party money managers who
manage segments of the portfolic. The market for securities lending has developed to provide temporary
access to a large portfolio of securities for broker/dealers who have a need to borrow specific instruments.
Broker/dealers collateralize their borrowings (typically in cash) to 102% of the security value for domestic
securities and 105% for foreign securities and this collateral is adjusted daily to maintain the appropriate level.
The System had no credit risk exposure to borrowers at year-end since the borrowers had coltateralized the
securities on loan at 102%. In addition, the system is indemnified through its agreement with its custodian
should borrowers fail to return securities lent or fail to pay the System income distributions by the securities’
issuers white the securities are on loan. The System may not piedge or sell collateral securities, except in the
case of borrower default. The System periodically reviews the custodian’s practices to ensure fair distributions
by the securities’ issuers while the securities are on loan. The value of securities on foan at December 31,
2005 was $35,896,496.
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MACOMB COUNTY, MICHIGAN
Notes to Basic Financial Statements (continued)
December 31, 2005

Note 8 - Post Employment Benefits

The County and its Road Commission component unit provide certain health care benefits for the retirees and
beneficiaries currently receiving retirement benefits. In accordance with labor agreements and County policy,
substantially all of the County’s employees may become eligible for these benefits if they meet normal vesting
requirements while still working for the County. Hospitalization insurance is provided through insurance
companies, whose premiums are based on the benefits paid during the year. The County finances these
expenditures for General County and Sheriff Department retirees through the Retiree Health Care Trust Fund
of the primary government. All postemployment benefits of Road Commission retirees are accounted for in
the accounts of the Road Commission Component Unit. Post-employment benefit expenditures are
recognized when premiums are paid and totaled $11,597,651 in 2005, consisting of $9,297,651 for County
retiree health care, $2,300,000 for Road Commission retiree health care.

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board recently released Statement No. 43, “Financial Reporting for
Postemployment Benefit Plans Other Than Pension Plans™. The disclosure requirements of the new
pronouncement are very similar in nature to those set forth in GASB Statement No. 25, “Financial Reporting
for Defined Benefit Pension Plans and Note Disclosures for Defined Confribution Plans™ and will require
postemployment benefit pians to begin measuring and reporting the actuarially determined hability associated
with providing such benefits. The new pronouncement is effective for the Retiree Health Care Trust Fund for

the year ending December 31, 2006.

The Governmental Accounting Standards Beard also released Statement No. 45, “Accounting and Reporting
by Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions”. The new pronouncement is very similar in
nature to GASB Statement No. 27, “Accounting for Pensions by State and Local Government Employers” and
will require governmental entities to recognize the cost of providing retiree health care coverage over the
working life of the employee rather than at the time the health care premiums are paid. The new
pronouncement is effective for the County for the year ending December 31, 2007
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MACOMB COUNTY, MICHIGAN
Notes to Basic Financial Statements (continued)
December 31, 2005

Note 8 — Post Employment Benefits {concluded)

Separate independently audited financial statements are not issued for the System; therefore, condensed
financial statements as of and for the year ended December 31, 2005 are presented below:

Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets

ASSETS
Cash and investments 3 92,336,489
Receivables 293,035
Total assets 92,629,524
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 61,691
Due to other funds 2.840,245
Total Liabilities 2,901,936
NET ASSETS $ 89,727,588
Statement of Changes In Fiduciary Net Assets
ADDITIONS
Contributions $ 9,381,967
Investment income 5,933,103
Total additions 15,315,070
DEDUCTIONS
Benefit payments 9,297 651
Other expenses 84,314
Total deductions 9,381,965
Net increase in net assets 5,933,105
Net assets held in trust , beginning of year 83,794,483
Net assets held in trust , end of year 3 89,727,588

Note 9 — Contingencies and commitments

Grants — The County receives funds from various Federal and State units to finance specific activities. The
final determination of revenue is subject to the acceptance of project costs by the granting agency, usually
after a compliance audit. To the extent that costs are disallowed by the granting agency, County monies
would be required to reimburse the grant fund. The County does not believe that any disallowed costs would
be material to the financial statements.
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MACOMB COUNTY, MICHIGAN
Notes to Basic Financial Statements {continued)
December 31, 2005

Note 10- Risk Management

The County is exposed to various risks of loss related to property damage and loss, torts, errors and
omissions, employee injury (workers’ compensation) and medical benefits provided to employees and
retirces. The County has purchased commercial insurance for property damage coverage and certain
medical benefits, but is self-insured for workers’ compensation and general liability claims up to certain
fetention amounts, at which time reinsurance begins. The County also self-funds certain medical benefits of
employees and retirees. There were no significant reductions in insurance coverage in 2005 from the prior
year. Claims settled during the past three years have not exceeded the retention amounts. Liabilities inctude
estimates of claims incurred but not reported and are calculated considering the effects of inflation, recent
claim setiement trends and other economic and social factors.

Workers' Compensation - Since December 1, 1978, the County has been partially self-insured against workers’
compensation claims. Under the plan, the County is obligated to pay the first $350,000 of an individual
settlement or award with commercial insurance covering claims in excess of the retention to an aggregate of
$1,000,000 annually. At December 31, 2005, the primary government has accrued an aggregate of
$1,790,146 for unresolved workers’ compensation ctaims and claims incurred but not reported. At September
30, 2005, the Road Commission component unit has accrued an aggregate of $388,303 for unresolved
workers’ compensation claims and claims incurred but not reported. Changes is the estimated liabilities for
workers’ compensation claims for the past two fiscal years were as follows:

Primary Government Road Commission
Year Ended December 31, Year Ended September 30,
2004 2005 2004 2005
Estimated liability - beginning of year $ 1,882,080 § 1,998,875 $ 266,269 $ 346,775
Estimated claims incurred, inciuding
changes in estimates 996 177 479,807 251,440 292,968
Claims payments (879,382) (688,536) {170,934) (251,440)
Estimated liability - end of year 3 1998875 § 1,790,146 $ 346,775 388,303

General Liability — The County is a defendant in various lawsuits in which plaintiffs seek damages of an
indeterminable amount. Since December 1, 1977, the primary government has been partially seif-insured for
losses of a general liability nature. The County (excluding the Road Cormmission) is currently self-insured for
losses of a generat liability nature up to $500,000 per claim, with commercial insurance covering claims in
excess of the retention amount to an aggregate of $10.000,000 annually. The Road Commission Component
Unit is self-insured, within certain limits, for general liability claims arising prior to February 18, 1986 and
subsequent to January 17, 1993 and is completely seif-insured for claims arising within those dates. At
September 30, 2005, the Road Commission had an accrual of $1,620,538 for its unresolved general liability
claims. The General Liability Insurance Internal Service Fund has been estabiished to account for the self-
insured aspects of this program for the primary government. At December 31, 2005, the primary government
reported a balance of $2,693,890 for its unresolved general liability claims.

B-50

RN




MACOMB COUNTY, MICHIGAN
Notes to Basic Financial Statements (concluded)
December 31, 2005

Note 10- Risk Management (concluded)

Changes in the estimated liabilities for generat liability claims for the past two fiscal years were as follows:

Primary Government Road Commission
Year Ended December 31, Year Ended Seplember 30,
2004 2005 2004 2005
Estimated liability - beginning of year 5 2,980,836 5 3,616,798 $ 1,785,015 $ 1,746,534
Estimated daims incurred, including
changes in estimates 854,629 (610,153) 13,723 {62,100)
Claims payments {218,667) {322,755) (52,204) {63,896)
Estimated liability - end of year $ 3,616,798 $ 2,683,890 $ 1,746,534 s 1,620,538

Note 11 - Prior Period Adjustment

The net assets of the Road Commission Discretely Presented Component Unit were restated as of
September 30, 2004 by the other auditors to correct an error in the allocation of certain construction costs in
prior years. The net assets as of September 30, 2004 were decreased by $3,531,293 as a result of this
adjustment.
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MACOMB COUNTY, MICHIGAN

December 31, 2005

Required Supplementary Information

Budgetary Comparison Schedule - General Fund
Budgetary Comparison Schedule — Revenue Sharing Reserve Fund
Schedule of Funding Progress

Schedule of Employer Coniributions
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MACOMB COUNTY, MICHIGAN
Required Supplementary Information a—
Budgetary Comparison Schedule (GAAP Basis) - General Fund Revenues
Year Ended December 31, 2005 —~—
o
A
Budgeted Amounts Actual Variance with
Original Final Amounts Final Budget —
Taxes -~
Current property $ 116,143,661 $ 116,143,661 $ 114,558,777 § (1,583,884) .
Delinquent personal praoperty 600,000 600,000 780,560 180,560
=
116,743,661 116,743,661 115,340,337 (1,403,324)
-
Licenses and Permits 392,000 392,000 391,395 {605) -
State Grants
Revenue sharing 10,500,000 - - - -
Court financing 4,871,874 4,871,874 5,116,278 244,404 ~
Cigarette tax 492,761 492,761 492,672 {89}
Liquor tax 1,790,625 1,790,625 1,942,918 152,293 a——
Other 659,500 839,600 869,844 30,244
A
18,314,760 7,994,860 8,421,712 426,852
_—
Charges for Services -
Court costs and fees 1,462,600 1,462 600 1,547,763 85,163 '
Certified copies 745,600 745,600 787,365 41,765 a—,
Probation oversight fees 1,450,400 1,558,400 1,652,340 93,940
Land transfer tax 3,500,000 3,500,000 5,055,872 1,555,872 o=
Recording fees 4,167,500 4,167 500 4,958,063 790,563
Rents ; - 81,268 81,268 -
Sheriff road patrol 4,149,379 5,207,208 5,283,569 76,271 o~
Other sheriff services 499,646 459,646 683,636 183,990
Foster care 845,000 845,000 868,883 23,883 —-—
Attorney fees 1,160,600 1,220,000 921,342 (298,658}
Fublic works - pumping station 760,000 760,000 1,674,250 914,250 -
Personal services 695,000 1,880,000 1,940,658 60,658 -
Housing inmates 2,058,000 2,058,000 2,058,070 70
Soil erosion fees 475,000 475,000 469,675 (5,325} -
Commissions 913,000 913,000 964,315 51,315
Miscellaneous 1,044,845 1,182,318 1,349,969 167,651 -~
23,925,970 26,474,362 30,297,038 3.822,676 -
-~
Investment income 3,191,000 3,191,000 4,703,646 1,512,646
a—
Charges to Other Funds for
Administrative Services -
Data processing division 4,950,000 4,950,000 6,091,065 1,141,065 -
Other administrative charges 5,047,108 5,279,081 4,896,803 (282,278)
A
9,997,108 10,229,081 11,087,868 858,787
——
Fines and Forfeitures 904,050 938,465 1,045,629 107,164
“_
Other Revenue 23,450 23,450 166,929 143,479
L
Total Revenues 173,491,999 165,986,879 171,454 554 5467,675 .
Other Financing Sources
Transfers in 8,655,000 19,155,000 22,724,515 3,569,515 -
-—
Total Revenues and Other
Financing Sources $ 182146999 § 185141879 § 194,179069 & 9,037,190 —~—
-
a-m,
c1 -
-
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MACOMB COUNTY, MICHIGAN
Required Supplementary Information
Budgetary Comparison Schedule (GAAP Basis) - General Fund Expenditures
Year Ended December 31, 2005

Budgeted Amounts Actual Variance with
Original Final Amounts Final Budget
Legisiative
Board of Commissioners
Salaries and fringe benefits $ 2,007,149 $ 2,007,149 % 1834613 § 72,536
Operating 176,924 191,160 142,088 49,072
Department Total 2,184,073 2,198,309 2,076,701 121,608
Total Legislative 2,184,073 2,198,309 2,076,701 121,608
Judicial
Circuit court
Salaries and fringe benefits 4,486,642 4,486,642 4,382,282 104,360
Operating 4,620,077 4,749,077 4 577,936 171,141
Department Total 9,106,719 9,235,719 8,960,218 275,501
District Court - New Baltimore
Salaries and fringe benefits 1,001,624 1,001,624 999,732 1,892
Operating 266,538 301,538 275,178 26,360
Department Total 1,268,162 1,303,162 1,274,910 28,252
District Court - Romeo
Salaries and fringe benefits 824,846 799,155 780,047 19,108
Operating 226,417 251,417 226,376 25,041
Department Total 1,051,263 1,050,572 1,006,423 44,149
District Court - 3rd Class
Operating 59,000 59,000 48,869 10,131
Family Counseling
Salaries and fringe benefits 50,491 56,434 54,802 1,632
Operating 160,086 160,086 155,059 5,027
Department Total 210,577 216,520 209,861 6,659
Family Court - Juvenile Division
Salaries and fringe benefits 4,800,492 4,754,590 4,615,937 138,653
Operating 1,402,584 1,613,584 1,604,917 8,667
Department Total 6,203,076 6,368,174 6,220,854 147,320
Jury Commission
Operating 49,387 55,487 52,038 3,449
c-2




MACOMB COUNTY, MICHIGAN
Required Supplerentary information
Budgetary Comparison Schedule (GAAP Basis) - General Fund Expenditures
Year Ended December 31, 2005

Budgeted Amounts Actual Variance with
Original Final Amounts Final Budget
Judicial (concluded)
Probate Court - Mentail Division
Sataries and fringe benefits 869,344 869,344 817,855 51,489
Operating 319,015 319,015 297,735 21,280
Department Total 1,188,359 1,188,359 1,115,590 72,769
Probate Court - Wills and Estates Division
Salaries and fringe benefits 2,184,770 2,184,770 2,139,937 44,833
Operating 326,438 347,878 320,951 26,927
Department Totat 2,511,208 2,532,648 2,460,888 71,760
Probation - Circuit Court
Operating 166,830 166,830 154,583 12,247
Department Total 166,830 166,830 154 583 12,247
Probation - District Court
Salaries and fringe benefits 1,218,348 1,321,348 1,185,964 135,384
Operating 112,377 117,377 89,296 28,081
Department Total 1,330,725 1,438,725 1,275,260 163,465
Total Judicial 23,145,306 23,615,196 22,779,494 835,702
General Government
County Clerk
Sataries and fringe benefits 3,753,857 3,818,639 3,590,320 226,319
Operating 335,692 419,066 390,493 28,573
Department Total 4,089,549 4,235,705 3,980,813 254,892
Corporation Counsel
Salaries and fringe benefits 972,177 Q72177 868,393 103,784
Operating 42,624 42,624 32,631 9,983
Department Total 1,014,801 1,014,801 901,024 113,777
Elections
Operating 57,682 57,682 24,3920 33,292
c-3
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MACOMB COUNTY, MICHIGAN
Required Supplementary Information
Budgetary Comparison Schedule (GAAP Basis) - General Fund Expenditures
Year Ended December 31, 2005

Budgeted Amounts Actual Variance with
Criginal Final Amounts Final Budget
General Government {continued}
Facilities and Operations
Salaries and fringe benefits 6,853,625 8,038,625 7,655,416 483,209
Operating 9,341,550 9,287,964 8,259,052 1,028,912
Capital outlay - 53,626 53,626 -
Department Total 16,195,215 17,380,215 15,868,004 1,512,121
Finance
Administratton/Accounting
Salaries and fringe benefits 2,289,571 2,289,571 1,879,637 410,034
Operating 124,105 124,105 112,793 11,312
Department Total 2,413,676 2,413,676 1,992,330 421,346
Equalization
Salaries and fringe benefits 1,067,762 1,067,762 874,884 192,878
Operating 81,321 81,321 60,062 21,259
Department Total 1,149,083 1,149,083 934,946 214,137
Purchasing
Salaries and fringe benefits 1,278,213 1,323,213 1,321,275 1,938
Operating 244,086 244,086 242,203 1,883
Department Total 1,522,299 1,567,299 1,563,478 3,821
Reimbursement
Salaries and fringe benefits 822,308 822,308 769,203 53,105
Operating 112,252 112,252 98,656 13,596
Department Total 934,560 934,560 867,859 66,701
Human Resources
Salaries and fringe benefits 2,052,897 2,052,897 1,915,778 137,119
Operating 264,292 264,292 146,088 118,204
Department Total 2,317,189 2,317,189 2,061,866 255,323
Information Technology
Salaries and fringe benefits 4,423,630 4,423,630 4,196,368 227,262
Operating 1,661,383 1,651,383 1,651,293 90
Department Total 6,075,013 6,075,013 5,847,661 227,352
C-4




MACOMB COUNTY, MICHIGAN
Required Supplementary Information
Budgetary Comparisen Schedule (GAAP Basis) - General Fund Expenditures
Year Ended December 31, 2005

Budgeted Amounts Actual Variance with
Original Final Amounts Final Budget
General Government {(concluded)

MSU Extension

Salaries and fringe benefits 775,561 781,061 751,993 29,068

Operating 229,230 229,230 219,654 9,576

Department Total 1,004,791 1,010,291 971,647 38,644
Planning and Economic Development

Salaries and fringe benefils 2,175,292 2,175,292 2,072,833 102,459

Operating 181,395 181,395 167,167 14,228

Department Total 2,356,687 2,356,687 2,240,000 116,687
Piat Board

Operating 4,500 4,500 2,065 2,435
Prosecuting Attorney

Salaries and fringe benefits 8,680,460 8,930,127 8,067,866 862,261

Operating 624 170 624,170 612,298 11,872

Department Total 9,304,630 9,554,297 8,680,164 874,133
Public Works

Salaries and fringe benefits 4,430,362 4,430,362 3,746,872 683,490

Operating 295,001 315,001 262,034 52,967

Department Total 4,725,363 4,745,363 4,008,906 736,457
Register of Deeds

Salaries and fringe benefits 1,388,311 1,428,311 1,425,552 2,759

Operating 4,111,027 1,101,027 675,163 425,864

Department Total 2,499,338 2,529,338 2,100,715 428,623
Risk Management and Safety

Salaries and fringe benefits 327,106 327,106 259,678 67.428

Operating 53,324 56,324 31,899 24,425

Department Total 380,430 383,430 291,577 91,853
Treasurer

Salaries and fringe benefits 1,977,372 1,977,372 1,949,704 27,668

Operating 179,855 179,855 137,820 42,035

Department Total 2,157,227 2,157,227 2,087,524 69,703

Total General Government 58,202,033 59,886,356 54,425,059 5,461,297
c-5
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MACOMB COUNTY, MICHIGAN
Required Supplementary Information
Budgetary Comparison Schedule (GAAP Basis) - General Fund Expenditures
Year Ended December 31, 2005
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Budgeted Amounts Actual Variance with
Original Final Amounts Final Budget
Public Safety

Civil Service Commission

QOperating 48,870 48,870 25,773 23,097
Court Building Safety

Salaries and fringe benefits 1,007,480 1,007,480 923,505 83,975

Operating 49,379 49,379 42,631 6,748

Capital outiay 10,000 10,000 - 10,000

Department Total 1,066,859 1,066,859 966,136 100,723
Emergency Management

Salaries and fringe benefits 296,519 296,519 290,978 5,541

Operating 34,269 34,269 26,366 7,903

Department Total 330,788 330,788 317,344 13,444
Security

Salaries and fringe benefits 574,665 574,665 565,774 8,891

Operating 10,034 10,034 6,987 3,047

Department Total 584,699 584,699 572,761 11,938
Sheriff Department

Salaries and fringe benefits 43,206,518 45,978,629 45,744,895 233,734

Operating 8,099,040 9,138,090 8,181,205 957,885

Capital outlay 202,200 214,105 115,435 98,670

Department Total 52,507,758 55,331,824 54,041,535 1,290,289
Technical Services

Salaries and fringe benefits 721,289 721,289 720,714 575

Operating 43,608 43,608 34,916 8,692

Capital outlay 33,500 33,500 12,679 20,821

Department Total 798,397 798,397 768,309 30,088

Total Public Safety 55,337,371 58,161,437 56,691,858 1,469,579
C-6




Akl
-y
MACOMB COUNTY, MICHIGAN
Required Suppiementary Information -
Budgetary Comparison Schedule (GAAP Basis) - General Fund Expenditures -
Year Ended December 31, 2005
A
F
Budgeted Amounts Actual Variance with oy
Original Final Amounts Final Budget
Health and Welfare -
Water Quality Board P
Salaries and fringe benefits 3,780 3,780 280 3,500 pu
Operating 11,220 11,220 1,767 9,453
A
Department Total 15.000 15,000 2,047 12,953 -
Senior Citizens Services a—
Salaries and fringe benefits 18,669 18,669 13,211 5,458 —
Operating 268,557 268,557 92,420 176,137
—
Depariment Total 287,226 287,226 105,631 181,595 a—
Veteran's Affairs -
Salaries and fringe benefits 339,705 362,766 343,795 18,971 —
Operating 208,056 255,056 254,128 928 -
Capital cutlay 6,000 7,185 7,183 2
o~
Department Total 553,761 625,007 605,106 19,901 —
Total Health and Welfare 855,487 927,233 712,784 214,449 -
-
Other Current Operations
Non-Departmental Appropriations 7,557,938 6,546,928 5,480,571 1,066,357 -
=
Capital Outlay 1,050,000 1,067,770 802,454 265,316
—
Total Expenditures 148,332,708 152,403,229 142,968,921 9,434,308 ——
_
Other Financing Uses
Transfers Out 69,683,555 70,107,354 60,347,238 9.760.116 -
-~
Total Expenditures and Other
Financing Uses $ 218016263 $ 222510583 § 203316159 $ 19,194,424 -
alm,
-,
—,
-,
-
-
-
-
.,
)
-
c-7 -
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MACOMB COUNTY, MICHIGAN
r Required Supplementary Information
- Budgetary Comparison Schedule (GAAP Basis) - Revenue Sharing Reserve Fund
Year Ended December 31, 2005

F
A—
— Budgeted Amounts Actual Variance with
.y Original Final Amounts Final Budget
- Revenues
— Current property taxes $ 37,772,742 $ 37,772,742 $ 37,772,742 $ -

Investment income - - 365,826 365,826
A—
p-— Total Revenues 37,772,742 37,772,742 38,138,568 365,826
- Other Financing Uses
-— Transfers out (37,772,742) (37,772,742) (14,069,515) 23,703,227
- Total Other Financing Uses (37,772,742) (37.772,742) (14,069,515) 23,703,227
—

Net change in fund balances - - 24,069,053 24,069,053

—_—
— Fund balances, beginning of year - - 28,702,563 -
- Fund balances, end of year $ - 3 - $ 52771616 $ 24,069,053
A
—
F
—
J—
[ ]
—
F
—,
p—
p—
F
_—
—
—_—
A
—
-
F
A
F
—
A—
_ c-8
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM

MACOMB COUNTY, MICHIGAN

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS

Actuarial Actuarial Actuarial Accrued Unfunded UAAL as a
Valuation Value of Liability (AAL} AAL Funded Covered Percentage of
Date Assets Entry Age (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Covered Payroll
December 31 {a) (b} {b-a) {a/b) {c) {(b-a)c)

1998 503,458,791 415475313 (87,983,478) 121.18 100,795,108 {87.29)

1999 581,170,294 446,999,030 {134,171,264) 130.02 105,581,699 {127.08)

2000 635,685,439 497,584,613 (138,100,826) 127.75 105,284,539 {131.17)

2001 657,800,320 513,299,693 (144,500,627} 128.15 106,979,632 {135.07)

2002 645,539,428 578,104,382 (67,435,046) 111.66 121,299,445 {55.59)

2003 630,624,122 624,212,027 {15,412,095) 102.47 127,235,644 {12.11)

2004 674,857,869 664,487,155 {10,370,714} 101.56 134,258,243 (7.72)

SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS
General Employees Sheriff Employees Road Employees
Annuat Annual Annual
Year Ended Required Percentage Required Percentage Required Petrcentage
December 31 Contribution Contributed Contribution Contributed Contribution Contributed Total
1989 4,665,757 100 2,889,371 100 1,792,220 100 1,347,348
2000 2,837,566 100 2,170,690 100 1,492,430 100 3,000,686
2001 496,645 100 1,325,647 100 849,866 100 28¢.,158
2002 1,707,060 100 1,184,523 100 372,158 100 3,263,741
2003 842,903 100 1,235,022 100 964,174 100 3,042,099
2004 3,741,031 100 3,267,545 100 1,569,268 100 8,L7/7,844
2005 8,282,000 100 4,196,000 100 2,376,000 100 14,854,000
c-9
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Assets
Cash and pooled investments
Taxes receivable
Accrued interest receivable
Accounts receivable, net
Due from other governments
Due from governmental funds
Due from business-type units
Due from fiduciary funds
Advances to other funds
Surplus property
Other assets

Total Assets

Liabilities and Fund Balances

Liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Accrued compensation and benefits
Due to other governments
Due to governmental funds
Due to business-type units
Deferred revenue

Total Liabilities

Fund Balances
Reserved
Debt service
Advances to other funds
Long-term receivables
Capital projects
Unreserved
Designated
Capital projects
Programs
Undesignated

Total Fund Balances

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances

MACOMB COUNTY, MICHIGAN
Combining Balance Sheet

Nonmajor Fund Types
December 31, 2006

Special Debt Capital
Revenue Service Projects Total

15,312,085 $ 7,703,897 42,730,644 65,746,726
- 115,524 - 115,624

- - 93,696 93,696

9,521,998 - 418,508 9,940,507
3,754,852 - 51,148 3,806,000
30,000 - - 30,000
101,862 625 2,433 104,920
28,720,797 $ 7,820,146 43,296,430 79,837,373
2,849,804 - 1,904,347 4,754,151

- - 625,506 625,506

257,959 - - 257,959
443,086 - - 443,086
2,720,276 - - 2,720,276
795,726 153,696 - 949,422
7,066,851 153,696 2,523,853 9,750,400

- 7,666,450 - 7,666,450

30,000 - - 30,000
6,854,606 - - 6,854,606
5,241,192 - 25,039,446 30,280,638

- - 15,727,131 15,727,131
3,272,733 - - 3,272,733
6,255,415 - - 6,255,415
21,653,946 7,666,450 40,766,577 70,086,973
28,720,797 $ 7,820,146 43,296,430 79,837,373

D-1



MACOMB COUNTY, MICHIGAN
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes In Fund Balance

Nonmajor Fund Types

Year Ended December 31, 2005

Special Debt Capital
Revenue Service Projects Total
Revenues
Taxes 3 - 3 212,521 $ - 212,521
Licenses and permits 811,480 - - 811,480
Federal & State grants 49,268,310 - - 49,268,310
Other grants 287 371 - - 287,371
Charges for services 12,818,274 - 2,717,056 15,535,330
Investment income 175,344 332,252 879,298 1,386,894
Fines and forfeitures 745,089 - - 745,089
Other revenue 354,309 - 59,294 413,603
Total Revenues 64,460,177 544,773 3,655,648 68,660,598
Expenditures
Current
Judicial 12,589,978 - - 12,589,978
General government 1,208,738 - - 1,298,738
Public safety 8,190,901 - - 8,190,901
Public works 340,943 78,082 534,820 953,845
Health and welfare 73,155,641 - - 73,155,641
Recreation and cultural 2,903,999 - - 2,903,999
Capital outlay 957,826 - 22,010,787 22,968,613
Debt service -
Principal - 3,560,000 - 3,560,000
Interest and fees - 3,064,278 - 3,064,278
Bond issuance costs - 45,885 242,643 288,528
Totai Expendilures 99,438,026 6,748,245 22,788,250 128,974,521
Excess of Revenues over {under) Expenditures {34.977.849) (6,203,472) {19,132,602) (60,313,923)
Other financing sources {uses}
Issuance of debt - 2,875,000 19,380,000 22,255,000
Transfers in 39,237,216 6,143,253 15,936,670 61,316,539
Transfers out (3,270,667} - (10,725,036) (13,995,723}
Bond discounts - (27,482) (177,072) (204,554)
Payment to refunding debt escrow agent - (2,801,633) - (2,801,633}
Totat Other financing sources (uses) 35,966,529 6,189,138 24,413,962 66,569,629
Net change in fund balances 988,680 (14,334) 5,281,360 6,255,706
Fund Balances, beginning of year 20,665,266 7,680,784 35,485,217 63,831,267
Fund Balances, end of year $ 21,653,946 $ 7,666,450 3 40,766,577 70,086,973
D-2
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MACOMB COUNTY, MICHIGAN
Combining Balance Sheet

Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds

Child
Care (1)

December 31, 2005

COMET

Community
Services Agency (1)

Emergency
Management Grants

Friend
of the Court (1)

Assets
Cash and pooled investments 5 2467183
Accounts receivabile, net .
Due from other governments 42,462
Advances to other funds -
Other assets 30,841

992,566

18,747

3 1,496,704

230,371

1,759

918,043

50,370

874,084

Total Assels $ 2,540,486

1,011,313

$ 1,728,834

968,413

3

874,084

Liabilities and Fund Balances

Liabilities
Accounts payabie $ 690,397
Accrued compensation and benefits -
Due 1o other govermnments -
Due to governmental funds .
Deferred revenue -

$ -

39,759
166

58,990

909,423

65,637
727,686

Totat Liabilities 690,397

39,925

968,413

793,323

Fund Balances
Reserved
Advances to other funds -
Long-term receivables -
Capital projects -
Unreserved
Designated
Programs -
Undesignated 1,850,089

975,763

1,688,909

80,761

Total Fund Balances 1,850,089

975,763

1,688,909

80,761

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $ 2,540,486

3

1,011,313

$ 1,728,834

968,413

874,084

(1) - Balance sheet as of September 30, 2005




Assets

Cash and pooled investments
Accounts receivable, net

Due from other governments
Advances to other funds
Other assets

Total Assels

Liabilities and Fund Balances

Liabilities

Accounts payable

Accrued compensation and benefits
Due to other govemments

Due to govemmental funds
Deferred revenue

Total Liabilities

Fund Balances
Reserved
Advances to other funds
Long-term receivables
Capital projects
Unreserved
Designated
Programs
Undesignated

Total Fund Balances

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances

(1) - Balance sheet as of September 30, 2005

MACOMB COUNTY, MICHIGAN
Combining Balance Sheet

Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds (continued)

December 31, 2005

Macomb/St. Clair
Health Health County Employment MSU
Department Grants (1) Library and Training Extension
$ 2,836,494 212,751 521,190 82,380 210,647
282,908 - 11,691 - 5,678
578,929 20,035 - - 3,495
- - 30,000 - -
- 109 - - R
$ 3,698,331 232,895 562,881 82,380 219,820
$ 1,064,688 $ 24,210 101,884 78,246 959
149,305 19,740 22,234 4,134 895
95,757 145737 - - -
38,250 - - - 3,507
1,348,000 189,687 124,118 82,380 5,161
30,000
541,056 43,208 58,551 - 214,659
1,809,275 - 350,212 - -
2,350,331 43,208 438,763 - 214,669
S 3,698,331 232,895 562,881 82,380 219,820
D4
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Assets

Cash and pooled investments
Accounts receivable, net

Due from other governments
Advances to other funds

Other assets

Total Assets

Liabilities and Fund Balances

Liabilities
Accounts payable

Accrued compensation and benefits
De to other governments
Due to governmental funds

Deferred revenue

Total Liabilities

Fund Balances
Reserved

Advances to other funds
Long-term receivables

Capital projects
Unreserved
Designated
Programs
Undesignated

Total Fund Balances

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances

{1) - Balance sheet as of Septernber 30, 2005

MACOMB COUNTY, MICHIGAN
Combining Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds {continued)

December 31, 2005

M5U Prosecuting Prosecuting Senior Citizens
Extension {1) Attomey Grants Attorney Grants (1) Services
$ 450,833 $ 48111 $ 109,468 28,756
28 - - 10,764
- 82,246 11,400
$ 450,861 $ 48,111 3 191,714 50,920
3 §2,371 S 26,278 § - 6,655
7.347 2,406 - 8,059
426 - - _
20,144 28,684 - 14,714
430,717 11,712 191,714 32,458
- 7,715 - 3,748
430,717 19,427 191,714 36,208
$ 450,861 $ 48,111 $ 191,714 50,920
05



Assets

Cash and pooled investments
Accounts receivable, net

Due from other governments
Advances to other funds
Other assets

Total Assets

Liabilities and Fund Balances

Liabiiities

Accounts payable

Accrued compensation and benefits
Due to other governments

Due to govermnmental funds
Deferred revenue

Total Liabilities

Fund Balances
Reserved
Advances 1o other funds
Long-term receivables
Capital projects
Unreserved
Designated
Programs
Undesignated

Total Fund Bailances

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances

(1) - Balance sheet as of September 30, 2005

MACOMB COUNTY, MICHIGAN
Combining Balance Sheet

Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds (continued)

December 31, 2005

Senior Citizens Sheriff Sheriff Social
Services (1) Grants Grants (1) Welfare

$ . 626,062 43,486 -

- 26,106 - 2,312,364

2,746 126,520 144,884 126,512

$ 2,746 778,688 188,370 2,438,876

12,623 181,344 371,146

2,500 - .

- - - 201,000

2,251 - - 1,742 965

- - 26,283

2,251 15,123 181,344 2,341,394

495 763,565 7,026 -

R N - 97,482

495 763,565 7,026 97,482

$ 2,746 778,688 188,370 2,438,876

0-5
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Assets

Cash and pooled investments
Accounts receivable, net

Due from other govemments
Advances to other funds
Other assets

Total Assets

Liabilities and Fund Balances

Liabilities

Accounts payable

Accrued compensation and benefits
Due to other governments

Due to govermmentaf funds
Deferred revenue

Total Liabilities

Fund Balances
Reserved
Advances to other funds
Long-term receivables
Capital projects
Unreserved
Designated
Programs
Undesignated

Total Fund Balances
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances

{1} - Balance sheet as of September 30, 2005

MACOMB COUNTY, MICHIGAN
Combining Balance Sheet
Monmajor Special Ravenue Funds {concluded)
December 31, 2006

Urban County Veterans' Other Special Total
Block Grant Trust Fund {1} Revenue Special Revenue
$ 1,449,220 3 1,609 $ 3,734,425 15,312,085
6,854,706 - 17,753 9,521,998
£5,480 - 537,645 3,754,852
- - - 30,000
36 - - 101,862
3 8,359,442 $ 1.809 3 4,289,823 28,720,797
$ 19,138 % - H 165,325 2,849,804
842 - 938 257,959
- - - 443,086
- - - 2,720,276
- - 795,726
19,980 - 166,263 7,066,851
- - - 30,000
6,854,606 - - 6,854,606
1,265,810 - 3,875,282 5,241,192
- 1,809 3272733
218,946 - 148,278 6,255,415
8,339,462 1,809 4,123,560 21,653,846
3 8,359,442 § 1809 % 4,269,823 28,720,797
D-7



MACCMB COUNTY, MICHIGAN

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Revenues
Licenses and permits
Federal & State granis
Other grants
Charges for services
Investment income
Fines and forfeitures
Other revenue

Total Revenues

Expenditures

Current
Judicial
General government
Public safety
Public works
Heaith and welfare
Recreation and cultural

Capital outiay

Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenues over
{under) Expenditures

Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers in
Transfers out
Total Other financing sources {uses)
Met change in fund balances
Fund Balances, beginning of year

Fund Batlances, end of year

(1) - Year ended September 30, 2005

Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds
Year Ended December 31, 2005

Child Community Emergency Friend
Care {1) COMET Services Agency (1) Management Grants of the Court (1}

- - $ 104,280 $ - -

8,840.668 171,055 10,572,805 1,538,463 6,221,633
1,120,281 - 2625116 - 606,550

- 33,767 - - 1,743

. 378,337 - -

5,343 5,407 159,580 - 1,414
9,466,292 588,566 13,461,781 1,538,463 6,831,340

- - - - 9,292,218

- 939,449 - 1,538 463 -

23,380,538 - 14,128,126 -

13,970 14,918 188,980 - 11,269
23,394,508 954,367 14,317,106 1,538,463 9,363,487
{13,428,216) (365.801) (855,325) - (2,472,147)
13,428,216 - 875,245 - 5,472,147

- - - (3,000,000}
13,428,216 - 875,245 - 2,472,147
- {365,801} 19,920 - -
1,850,089 1,341,564 1,668,989 - 80,761
1,850,089 975,763 b 1,688,909 3 - 80,761
D-8
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MACOMB COUNTY, MICHIGAN
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds {continued}
Year Ended December 31, 2005

Heaith Health County Employment MSU
Department Grants {1) Library and Training Extension
Revenues
Licenses and permits 3 707,200 3% - 3 - 3 - 8 -
Federal & State grants 6,051,759 2,604,454 58,800 - 6,745
Other grants - - - - 22,501
Charges for services 1,688,232 357,503 257,476 3,250,742 49 816
Investment income - - - - -
Fines and forfeitures - - 52,929 B B
Other revenue 55,711 - - - -
Total Revenues 8,502,902 2,961,957 369,005 3,250,742 79,062
Expenditures
Current
Judicial - - - - -
General government - - - - .
Public safety - - - - -
Public works - - - - -
Health and welfare 20,963,560 3,080,379 - 3,250,742 112,395
Recreation and cudtural - - 2,903,999 - -
Capital outlay 240,325 398,500 1,157 - 281
Total Expenditures 21,203,885 3,478,879 2,905,156 3,250,742 112,676
Excess of Revenues over
(under) Expenditures (12,700,983) (516,922) (2,536,151) - (33,614)
Other financing sources {uses)
Transfers in 12,595,893 366,924 2,630,128 - 25,354
Transfers out - - - - (71,209)
Total Other financing sources (uses) 12,595,893 366,924 2,530,128 - (45,855)
Net change in fund balances (105,090) {149,998) (6,023) - (79,469)
Fund Balances, beginning of year 2,455,421 193,206 444,786 - 294,128
Fund Balances, end of year 3 2,350,331 § 43,208 $ 438,763 s - $ 214,659
(1) - Year ended September 30, 2005
D-9
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MACOMB COUNTY, MICHIGAN -~
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance -

Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds {cantinued)
Year Ended December 31, 2005 Y
-,
MSU Prosecuting Prosecuting Senior Citizens -
Extension {1) Attorney Grants Attorney Grants (1} Services -

Revenues

Licenses and permits $ - % - % -5 - P,

Federal & State granis 563,822 88,512 1,092,601 138,270

Other grants - - - - -_

Charges for services 205,682 . 62 280,127

Investment income - - 1,419 - -,

Fines and forfeitures - - 103,083 -

Other revenue - - - - -

—~
Total Revenues 769,504 88,512 1,197,165 418,397
-~
Expenditures

Current _—,

Judicial - 130,642 1,815,974 -
General government . - - - _~
Public safety - B - -
Public works - - - - —
Health and welfare 732,876 - - 2,036,831 Py
Recreation and cultural - - - -

Capitat outlay 7,208 - - 2,055 o~
Total Expenditures 740,084 130,642 1,815,974 2,038,886 oy,
Excess of Revenues over -—

(under) Expenditures 29,420 (42,130) (618,808} {1,620,489)
-,
Other financing sources {(uses)
Transfers in 95,485 43,855 568,418 1,630,066 -
Transf - 7 .

ransfers out (24.630) (35,790} -
Total Other financing sources {uses) 70,855 43,855 522,628 1,630,066 -,
Net change in fund balances 100,275 1,725 (96,181) 9,577 _~—
Fund Balances, beginning of year 330,442 17,702 287,895 26,629 -~
Fund Balances, end of year $ 430,717 5 19,427 3 151,714 $ 36,206 -
A=

(1) - Year ended September 30, 2005
-,
-
-
)
—
-
=
—_—
_~—
-—
-,
a—in,
-

D-10
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MACOMB COUNTY, MICHIGAN
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Honmajor Special Revenue Funds {continued}
Year Ended December 31, 2005

Senior Citizens Sheriff Sheriff Social
Services (1) Grants Grants {1) Welfare
Revenues
Licenses and permits $ - % - 8 - % -
Federal & State grants 52,543 846,013 2,905,771 1,347,579
Other grants - 89,687 175,183 -
Charges for services - 160,528 159,670 248,330
investment income - - - -
Fines and forfeitures - 202,240 - -
Other revenue - - - -
Total Revenues 52,543 1,298,468 3,240,624 1,595,918
Expenditures
Current
Judicial - - - -
General government - - E -
Public safety - 1,028,406 3,939,684 -
Public works - - - -
Healih and welfare 60,386 - - 1,625,908
Recreation and cultural - - - -
Capital outlay - 13,078 62,028 -
Total Expenditures 60,386 1,041,484 4,001,712 1,625,908
Excess of Revenues over
{under) Expenditures {7.843) 256,984 (761,088) (29,990)
Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers in 8,338 168,336 591,869 29,990
Transfers out - - .
Total Other financing sources {uses) 8,338 168,336 591,869 29,990
Net change in fund balances 495 425,320 (169,219) -
Fund Balances, beginning of year - 338,245 176,245 §7,482
Fund Bafances, end of year $ 495 £ 763,565 $ 7,026 $ 97,482

{1) - Year ended Septernber 30, 2005

D-11




MACOMB COUNTY, MICHIGAN
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds {concluded)

Year Ended December 31, 2005

Urban County Veterans' Other Special Total
Block Grant Trust Fund (1) Revenue Special Revenue
Revenues
Licenses and permits $ - -3 - 3 811,480
Federal & State grants 3,731,727 63,128 2,372,162 49,268,310
Other grants - - - 287,371
Charges for services 593,605 - 1,214,545 12,818,274
Investment income - - 138,415 175,344
Fines and forfeitures - - 8,500 745,089
Other revenue 22,029 - 104,825 354,309
Total Revenues 4,347,361 63,128 3,838,447 64,460,177
Expenditures
Cuirent
Judicial - - 1,351,144 12,589,978
General government - - 1,298,738 1,298,738
Public safety - - 744,899 8,190,901
Public works 340,943 - - 340,843
Health and welfare 3,663,374 62,997 157,529 73,155,641
Recreation and cultural - - - 2,903,999
Capital outlay - 4,057 957,826
Total Expenditures 3,904,317 62,997 3,556,367 99,438,026
Excess of Revenues over
(under) Expenditures 443,044 131 282,080 (34,977,849}
{ther financing sources (uses)
Transfers in 202,169 - 614,783 39,237,216
Transfers out (198} - {138,862) {3,270,687)
Total Other financing sources (uses) 201,973 - 475,921 35,966,529
Net change in fund balances 645,017 131 758,001 988,680
Fund Balances, beginning of year 7,694,445 1.678 3,365,559 20,665,266
Fund Balances, end of year 5 8,339,462 1,809 $ 4,123,560 3 21,653,946
(1} - Year ended September 30, 2005
D-12
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MACOMB COUNTY, MICHIGAN
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Child Care Fund
Year Ended September 30, 2005

Varance with

Fina! Budget
Finat Actual Favorable
Budget Amounts {Unfavorable)
Revenues
Federat & State grants $ 7,335,000 $ 8,840,668 $ 1,505,668
Charges for services 1,220,000 1,120,281 (99,719)
Other revenue 150 5,343 5,193
Total Revenues 8,555,150 9,966,292 1,411,142
Expenditures
Salaries and fringe benefits 7,978,978 7,275,358 703,620
Operating 17,125,793 16,105,180 1,020,613
Capitta Qutlay 16,300 13,970 2,330
Total Expenditures 25,121,071 23,394,508 1,726,563
Excess of Revenues over {under) Expenditures {16,565,921) {13,428,216) 3,137,705
Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers in 16,565,821 13,428,216 (3,137,705)
Total Other financing sources (uses) 16,565,921 13,428,216 {3,137,705)

Net change in fund balances - - -

Fund Balances, beginning of year 1,850,089 1,850,089 -
Fund Balances, end of year $ 1,850,089 3 1,850,089 $ -
D-13




MACOMB COUNTY, MICHIGAN

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Community Services Agency

Year Ended September 30, 2005

Revenues
Licenses and permits
Federal & State grants
Charges for services
investment income
Other revenue

Total Revenues
Expenditures
Salaries and fringe benefits
Operating
Capital outlay
Total Expenditures
Excess of Revenues over {under) Expenditures
Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers in

Transfers out

Total Other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances
Fund Balances, beginning of year

Fund Balances, end of year

Variance with

Final Budget
Finai Actual Favorable
Budget Amounts {Unfavorabie)

104,280 $ 104,280 $ -

10,363,977 10,572,805 208,828
2,741,920 2,625,116 {116,804}
500 - (500)
323,767 159,580 {164,187)
13,534,444 13,461,781 (72,663)
7,056,768 6,871,609 185,159
7,518,064 7,256,517 261,547
198,380 188,980 9,400
14,773,212 14,317,106 456,106
(1,238,768) {855,325) 383,443
1,264,957 875,245 (389,712)
(26,189) - 26,189
1,238,768 875,245 (363,523)

- 19,920 19,920

1,668,989 1,668,989 -
1,668,989 $ 1,688,909 $ 19,920

D-14
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MACOMB COUNTY, MICHIGAN
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Friend of the Court
Year Ended September 30, 2005

Variance with

Final Budget
Final Actual Favorable
Budget Arnounts (Unfavarable)
Revenues
Federal & State grants $ 6,671,216 $ 6,221,633 $ (449,583)
Charges for services 280,000 606,550 326,550
Investment income - 1,743 1,743
Other revenue - 1,414 1,414
Total Revenues 6,951,216 6,831,340 {119,876)
Expenditures
Salaries and fringe benefits 8,042,160 7,236,279 805,881
Operating 2,943,610 2,055,939 887,671
Capital Outlay 24,000 11,269 12,731
Total Expenditures 11,009,770 9,303,487 1,706,283
Excess of Revenues over {under) Expenditures {4,058,554) (2,472,147) 1,586,407
Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers in 7,058,554 5,472,147 (1,586,407)
Transfers out (3,000,000) {3,000,000) -
Total Other financing sources (uses) 4,058,554 2472147 (1,586,407)

Net change in fund balances - - -

Fund Balances, beginning of year 80,761 80,761 -

Fund Balances, end of year $ 80,761 $ 80,761 $ -




MACOMB COUNTY, MICHIGAN

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

Revenues
Licenses and permits
Federal & State grants
Charges for services
Other revenue

Total Revenues
Expenditures
Salaries and fringe benefits
Operating
Capital outlay

Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenues over (under) Expenditures

Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers in

Total Other financing sources {uses)

Net change in fund balances
Fund Balances, beginning of year

Fund Balances, end of year

Heaith Department
Year Ended December 31, 2005

Variance with

Final Budget
Final Actual Favorable
Budget Amounts {Unfavorable)

638,751 $ 707,200 $ 68,449
7,090,690 6,051,759 (1,038,931)
1,223,960 1,688,232 464,272
133,507 55,711 (77,796)
9,086,908 8,502,902 (584,006)
13,839,504 12,269,074 1,570,430
10,284,545 8,694,486 1,590,059
277,090 240,325 36,765
24,401,139 21,203,885 3,197,254
(15,314,231) (12,700,983) 2,613,248
15,314,231 12,595,893 (2,718,338)
15,314,231 12,595,893 (2,718,338)

- (105,090) (105,090)

2,455,421 2,455,421 -
$ 2,455,421 $ 2,350,331 $ (105,090}
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MACOMB COUNTY, MICHIGAN
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
County Library
Year Ended December 31, 2005

Variance with

Final Budget
Final Actual Favorable
Budget Amounts (Unfavorable)
Revenues

Federal & State grants $ 70,103 3 58,600 3 {11,503)

Charges for services 433,242 257,476 {175,766)

Fines and forfeitures 50,500 52,929 2,429

Other revenue 8,339 - {8,339)
Total Revenues 562,184 369,005 (193,179)

Expenditures

Salaries and fringe benefits 2,887,244 2,182,363 804,881

Operating 802,979 721,636 81,343

Capital Outlay 1,157 1,157 -
Total Expenditures 3,791,380 2,905,156 886,224
Excess of Revenues over (under) Expenditures (3,229,196) {2,536,151) 693,045

Other financing sources (uses)

Transfers in 3,229,196 2,530,128 {699,068)
Total Other financing sources (uses) 3,229,196 2,530,128 (699,068)
Net change in fund balances - (6,023) (6,023}

Fund Balances, beginning of year 444,786 444,786 -
Fund Balances, end of year $ 444,786 $ 438,763 $ (6,023)
D-17




MACOMB COUNTY, MICHIGAN

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

Senior Citizens Services

Year Ended December 31, 2005

Revenues
Federal & State grants
Charges for services
Other revenue
Total Revenues
Expenditures
Salaries and fringe benefits
Cperating
Capital outlay
Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenues over (under) Expenditures

Other financing sources {uses)
Transfers in

Totat Other financing sources {uses)

Net change in fund balances
Fund Balances, beginning of year

Fund Batances, end of year

Variance with

Final Budget
Final Actual Favarable
Budget Amounts (Unfavorable)
3 141,198 5 138,270 {2,928)
289,067 280,127 (8,940)
430,265 418,397 (11,868)
1,798,225 1,679,009 119,216
396,437 357,822 38,615
6,568 2,055 4,513
2,201,230 2,038,886 162,344
(1,770,965} (1,620,489) 150,476
1,770,965 1,630,066 (140,899)
1,770,965 1,630,066 {140,899)
- 9,577 9,577
26,629 26,629 -
$ 26,629 $ 36,206 9,577
D-18
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MACOMB COUNTY, MICHIGAN
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Senior Citizens Services
Year Ended September 30, 2005

Variance with

Final Budget
Final Actual Favorable
Budget Amounts {Unfavorable)
Revenues
Federal & State grants $ 53,232 $ 52,543 $ {689)
Total Revenues 53,232 52,543 (689)
Expenditures
Salaries and fringe benefits 53,514 50,896 2618
Operating 9,718 9,490 228
Total Expenditures 63,232 60,386 2,846
Excess of Revenues over (under) Expendilures (10,000) (7,843) 2,157
Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers in 10,000 8,338 (1,662)
Total Other financing sources (uses) 10,000 8,338 {1.662)
Net change in fund balances - 495 495
Fund Balances, beginning of year - - -
Fund Balances, end of year $ - $ 495 $ 495
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MACOMB COUNTY, MICHIGAN

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

Revenues
Federal & State grants
Charges for services

Total Revenues

Expenditures
Operating

Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenues over (under) Expenditures (1,927,972)

Other financing sources {uses)
Transfers in

Total Other financing sources (Uses)
Net change in fund balances

Fund Balances, beginning of year

Fund Balances, end of year

Social Welfare Fund
Year Ended December 31, 20005

Variance with
Final Budget
Final Actual Favorable
Budget Amounts {Unfavorable)
$ 1,500,000 $ 1,347,579 $ (152,421)
400,000 248,339 (151,661)
1,900,000 1,595,918 (304,082)
3,827,972 1,625,908 2,202,064
3,827,972 1,625,908 2,202,064
{29,990) 1,897,982
1,927,972 28,990 {1,897,982)
1,927,972 29,990 {1,897,982)

97,482 97,482 -

3 97,482 ¥ 97,482 $ -

D-20
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MACOMB COUNTY, MICHIGAN

December 31, 2005

Capital Projects Funds

These funds are used to account for financial resources to be used for the acquisition or construction of
maijor capital facilities. The related capital assets are included in the General Fixed Asset Account
Group and are financed by County funds or state grants. Separate funds are used for major capital
projects and include:

Bridge Program To account for the activities related to the renovation
and repair of certain bridge structures in the County.

Clemens Center To account for the acquisition and renovation of the
Clemens Center complex.

District Court Building To account for the construction of a court facility in the
City of New Baltimore.

E-911 Radio System To account for the construction of a high frequency
emergency communications system.

Martha T. Berry Renovation To account for the renovation of the Martha T. Berry
Medical Care Facility.

Public Works Building To account for the construction of the new Public Works
facility.

Verkuilen Building Renovation To account for the renovation of the Verkuilen Building.

Warehouse To account for the purchase of a warehouse facility.

Youth Home Renovation To account for the renovation of the County Youth
Home.

General County Capital Projects Funds These funds are used to account for various

construction and equipment replacement activities.
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Assets
Cash and pooled investments
Accrued interest receivable
Accounts receivable, net
Due from other governments
Other assets

Total Assets

Liabilities and Fund Balances

Liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities

Total Liabilities

Fund Balances
Reserved
Capital projects
Unreserved

Designated - Capital projects

Total Fund Balances

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances

MACOMB COUNTY, MICHIGAN
Combining Balance Sheet

Nonmajor Capita! Projects Funds

December 31, 2005
Bridge Clemens District Court E-911
Program Center Building Radio System
8,777,064 35,444 5,771,880 $ 5,591,009
93,696 - -
4.756 - - -
8,875,516 35,444 5,771,880 3 9,591,099
79,946 - $ 690,396
79,946 - - 690,396
8,795,570 35,444 5,771,880 4,900,703
8,795,570 35,444 5,771,880 4,900,713
8,875,516 35,444 5,771,880 3 5,591,039
D-21
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Assets

Cash and pooled investments

Accrued interest receivable

Accounts receivable, less allowance for
Due from other governments

Other assets

Total Assets

Liabilities and Fund Balances

Liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities

Total Liabilities
Fund Balances
Reserved
Capital projects
Unreserved
Designated - Capital projects

Total Fund Balances

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances

MACOMB COUNTY, MICHIGAN
Combining Balance Sheet

Nonmajor Capital Projects Funds
December 31, 2005

Martha T Berry Public Works Verkuilen Bidg
Renovation Building Renovation Warehouse

3 2431336 § 3,092,211 3 36,108 19,380
3 2,431,336 3 3,092,211 $ 36,108 19,380
5 543,126 3 26,756 $ - 19,380
370,881 135,053 - -

914,007 161,809 - 19,380

1,517,329 2,930,402 36,108 -
1,517,329 2,930,402 36,108 -

3 2431336 § 3,092,211 $ 36,108 19,380

D-22



Assets

Cash and pooled investments
Accrued interest receivable
Accounts receivabie, net

Due from other governments
Other assels

Total Assets

Liabilities and Fund Balances

Liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities

Total Liabilities
Fund Balances
Reserved
Capital projects
Unreserved
Designated - Capital projects

Total Fund Balances

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances

MACOMB COUNTY, MICHIGAN
Combining Balance Sheet

Nonmajor Capital Projects Funds

December 31, 2005

Youth Home General County

Renovation Capita! Projects Totals
1,241,746 $ 15,734,376 42,730,644
- - 93,696
- 413,753 418,509
- 51,148 51,148
- 2,433 2,433
1,241,746 $ 16,201,710 43,296,430
89,736 $ 455,007 1,904,347
100,000 19,672 625,506
189,736 474,579 2,529,853
1,052,010 - 25,039,446
- 15,727,131 15,727,131
1,052,010 15,727,131 40,766,577
1,241 746 $ 16,201,710 43,296,430
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Revenues
Federal & State grants
Charges for services
Investment income
Qther revenue

Total Revenues
Expenditures
Current
Public works
Bond issue costs
Capital outiay
Total Expenditures
Excess of Revenues over (under) Expenditures
Other financing sources (uses)
Issuance of debt
Transfers in
Transfers out
Bond discounts
Total Other financing sources (uses)
Net change in fund balances

Fund Balances, beginning of year

Fund Balances, end of year

MACOMB COUNTY, MICHIGAN

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Nonmajor Capital Projects Funds
Year Ended December 31, 2005

Bridge Clemens District Court E-211
Program Center Building Radio System

$ - -3 -5 -
4,756 - - -

294,199 - - 21,993

298,955 - - 21,993

498,273 - - -

- 72,793 169,850

- 117,002 - 7,055,957

498,273 147,002 72,793 7,225,807
(199,318} (117,002) (72,793) (7,203,814}

- 5,825,000 13,555,000

52,000 72,795 366,951
- - - (1,693,484)
- {53,122} (123,950)

- 52,000 5,844,673 12,104,517

{199,318) {65,002) 5,771,880 4,900,703

§,994,888 100,446 - -

3 8795570 § 35444 & 5,771,880 3 4,900,703
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Revenues
Federal & State grants
Charges for services
Investment income
Other revenue

Total Revenues
Expenditures
Current
Public works
Bond issue costs
Capital outlay
Total Expenditures
Excess of Revenues over (under) Expenditures
Other financing sources {uses)
Issuance of debt
Transfers in
Transfers out
Bond discounts
Total Other financing sources (uses)
Net change in fund balances

Fund Balances, beginning of year

Fund Balances, end of year

MACOMB COUNTY, MICHIGAN
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Nonmajor Debt Service Funds
Year Ended December 31, 2005

Martha T Berry Public Works Verkuilen Bldg
Renovation Building Renovation Warehouse

$ -3 - -
83,758 99,283 270

83,758 99,283 270

- - 36,547

3,556,554 1,408,868 86,192
3,556,554 1,408,868 122,739
(3,472,796) (1,309,585) (122,469)
2,007,899 - 122,469
2,097,899 - 122,469
(1,374,897) (1,309,585} -
2,892,226 4,239,887 36,108 -

$ 1,517,329 % 2,930,402 36,108 -
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MACOMEB COUNTY, MICHIGAN
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Nonmajor Capital Projects Funds
Year Ended December 31, 2005

Youth Home General County
Renovation Capital Projects Totals
Revenues
Federal & State grants $ - $ - 8 -
Charges for services - 2,712,300 2,717,058
Investment income 38,758 341,037 879,298
Other revenue - 59,294 59,294
Totat Revenues 38,758 3,112,631 3,655,648
Expenditures
Current
Public works - - 534,820
Bond issue cosls - - 242,643
Capital outlay 714,306 9,071,908 22,010,787
Total Expenditures 714,306 9,071,908 22,788,250
Excess of Revenues over {under} Expenditures (675,5648) (5,959,277} (19,132,602)
Other financing sources {uses)
Issuance of debt - - 19,380,000
Transfers in - 13,223,956 15,936,070
Transfers out - (9.031,552) {10,725,036)
Bond discounts - - (177,072)
Total Other financing sources (uses) - 4,192,404 24,413,962
Net change in fund balances (675,548) {1,766.873) 5,281,360
Fund Balances, beginning of year 1,727,558 17,494,004 35,485,217
Fund Balances, end of year 3 1,052,010 $ 15,727,131 $ 40,766,577
D-26
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MACOMB COUNTY, MICHIGAN

December 31, 2005

Internal Service Funds

These funds are used to account for services rendered or materials supplied on a user charge basis to
departments or other governments within the County. Funds in this group include:

Compensated Absences To account for the costs of accumulated sick and annual
leave pay.

Equipment Revolving To account for the costs of operating and maintaining
automotive and other equipment used by County
departments.

General Liability insurance To account for the costs of self-insurance for general

liability insurance.

Workers’ Compensation Insurance To account for the costs of self-insurance for workers’
compensation insurance.




ASSETS

Current assets
Cash and pooled investments
Trade accounts, net
Inventories
Due from other governments
Due from business-type units
Due from fiduciary funds
Other assets

Total current assets

Noncurrent assets
Capital assets, net:
Assets being deprecialed

Total noncurrent assets

Total Assets

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued wages payable
Due to other governments
Compensated absences
Claims and judgements

Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities
Claims and judgements
Compensated absences
Advances from other funds
Total noncurrent liabilities
Total Liabilities

NET ASSETS
Investment in capital assets, net of related debt

Unrestricted

Total Net Assets

MACOMB COUNTY, MICHIGAN
Combining Statement of Net Assets
Internal Service Funds
December 31, 2005

Compensated Equipment  General Liability Workers'
Absences Revolving insurance Compensation Totals
$ 6,242,876 § 5556250 § 5,947,189 $ 9473821 $ 27,220,136
- 77,047 - 77,047
- 412,469 - - 412,469
- 322,241 - - 322,241
- 115,994 152,589 80,620 349,203
6,242,876 6,484,001 6,099,778 9,554,441 28,381,096
- 1,173,289 - - 1,173,289
- 1,173,289 - - 1,173,289
6,242 876 7,657,290 6,009,778 9,554,441 29,554,385
$ - $ 620,098 % 146,515  § -3 766,613
- 1,393 - - 1,393
- 4,673 - - 4,673
1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000
- - 850,000 800,000 1,650,000
1,000,000 626,164 996,515 800,000 3,422,679
- - 1,833,890 990,146 2,824,036
5,242,876 - - - 5,242,876
- 330,000 - - 330,000
5,242,876 330,000 1,833,880 990,146 8,396,912
6,242,876 956,164 2,830,405 1,790,146 11,819,591
- 6,701,126 3,269,373 7,764,295 17,734,794
3 - §$ 6701126 § 3,269,373 $ 7764295 5 1773474
D-27
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Operating Revenues
Charges for services

Operating Expenses
Personal services
Utiliies
Benefits and claims expenses
Supplies and services
Depreciation
Total operating expenses

Operating income

Transfers
Transfers in

Net Operating Transfers
Increase {Decrease) in net assets
Net assets, beginning of year

Net assets, end of year

MACOMB COUNTY, MICHIGAN
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets

Internal Service Funds

Year Ended December 31, 2005

Compensated Equipment General Liability Workers'
Absences Revolving Insurance Compensation Totals
3 1,122,192 % 5551781 § 1,370,127  $ 730,878 $ B774978
11 22,192- ‘ 1 ,195,264: 479,807: 2.797,26:;
- 5,746,093 - - 5,746,093
- 459,172 - - 459,172
1,122,192 6,205,265 1,195,264 479,807 9,002,528
- (653,484) 174,863 251,071 (227,550}
. 406,635 - 406,635
- 406,635 - - 406,635
- (246,849) 174,863 251,071 179,085
- 6,947,975 3,094,510 7,513,224 17,555,709
$ - $ 6,701,126 $ 3,269,373 $ 7,764,295 $ 17,734,794
D-28



Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Cash received from customers
Cash received from interfund services
Cash payments to employees
Cash payments to suppliers

Net cash provided by Opesating Activities

cash Flows From Noncapital Financing Activities
Transfess in

Net cash provided by (used in) Noncapita! Financing Activities

Cash Flows From Capital and Related Financing Activities
Proceeds from sale of capital assets
Acquisition of capital assets

Net Cash used in Capital and
Related Financing Activilies

Increase (decrease) in cash and short-term investments
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided {used)
by operaling activities

Operating income {loss}

Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash

provided by {used in) operating activities:
Depreciation
Increase in accounts receivable
Increase in inventory
Increase in amounts due from other governments
Decrease in amounts due from other funds
Decrease (Increase} in other assets
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable
Decrease (increase) in accrued employee benefits
Decrease in accrued claims and judgements

Met cash provided by Operating Activities

MACOMB COUNTY, MICHIGAN
Combining Statement of Cash Flows

- Internal Service Funds

Year Ended December 31, 2005

Compensated Equipment General Liability Workers®
Absences Revolving Insurance Compensaticn Totals
$ - 3 133,886 5 - § 133,886
1,122,192 5,504,644 1,379,734 730,878 8,737,448
(1,433,891) 1,284 - - (1,432,607}
- (5,730,479) (2,121,456} {681.672) (8,533,607)
(311.699) (90,665) (741,722) 49,208 (1,094,880)
- 406,635 - - 406,635
- 406,635 - - 46,635
- (832,627) - - (832,627)
- (832,627) - - (832,627)
{311.699) {516,657) (741,722} 49,206 (1,520,872}
6,554,575 6,072,907 6,688,911 9,424 615 28,741,008
$ 6242876 % 5,556,250 $ 5.947.189 $ 9,473,821 $ 27,220,136
3 - $ (653,484) § 174,863 § 251,071 $ (227,550)
- 459,172 - - 459,172
- {52,495) - - {52,495)
- (72.876) - - {72,8786)
- (346} - . (3486)
- 98,481 9,607 - 108,088
- 41,109 (43} 45,476 86,542
- 83,490 6,759 (38.612) 56,637
{314,699} 1,284 - - (310,415}
- - {932,508) {208,729} (1,141.637)
5 {311,699) $ (90,665) 3 (741,722) $ 49,206 3 (1,094,880)
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MACOMB COUNTY, MICHIGAN

December 31, 2005

Fiduciary Funds

These funds are used to account for money and property received from individuals and other parties by
the County as trustee, custodian or agent for those parties. Funds in this group include:

Pension Trust Fund To account for the accumulation of resources to be
used for retirement payments. Resources are
contributed by employees at rates fixed by union
contract and by the County at amounts determined by
annual actuarial valuations.

Retiree Health Care Trust Fund To account for expenditures related to providing health
care benefits to County retirees.

Trust and Agency To account for the collection and subsequent payment
of property taxes to other funds and various
governmental units located within the County. This
fund also accounts for deposits associated with judicial
proceedings.

Payroll and Benefits To account for the transfer of money from other funds
to be used for the payment of payroll and employee
benefits.

Other To account for money received from individuals or
other miscellaneous parties for which the County acts
as an agent.




MACOMB COUNTY, MICHIGAN
Combining Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets
Pension and Other Employee Benefit Trust Funds Funds
December 31, 2005

Employees’ Retiree Health
Retirement Fund Care Fund Total
ASSETS
Cash and pooled investments $ 28,167,056 $ - ¥ 28,167,056
Receivables
Accrued interest 986,964 293,035 1,279,999
Other 1,161,782 - 1,161,782
Total receivables 2,148,746 293,035 2,441,781
investments, at fair value
US Government cbligations 20,664,485 - 20,664,485
Corporate Bonds 45,948,746 - 45,948,746
Preferred Stock 36,863,843 - 36,863,843
Common Stock 301,836,417 13,548,618 315,385,035
Foreign Stock 107,979,950 14,094,844 122,074,794
Limited partnerships 18,124,324 - 18,124,324
Mutual funds 186,584,214 64,693,027 251,277,241
Total investments 718,001,979 92,336,489 810,338,468
Securities lending collateral 36,706,226 - 36,706,226
Due from fiduciary funds 463,086 - 463,086
Total Assets 785,487,093 92 629,524 878,116,617
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 187,410 61,691 249,101
Due to governmental funds - 1,968,655 1,968,655
Due to fiduciary funds 904,270 871,590 1,775,860
Obligations under securities lending 36,706,226 - 36,706,226
Total Liabilities 37,797,906 2,901,936 40,699,842
NET ASSETS
Net assets held in trust for pension
and other postemployment benefits $ 747,689,187 $ 89,727,588 $ 837416775

The accompanying notes are an intergal part of these financial statements
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MACOMB COUNTY, MICHIGAN
Combining Statement of Changes In Fiduciary Net Assets
Pension and Other Employee Benefit Trust Funds Funds
Year Ended December 31, 2005

Employees’ Retiree Health
Retirement Fund Care Fund Total
ADDITIONS
Contributions
Employer $ 14,854,000 $ 8814855 § 23,668,855
Employee 5,399,279 567,112 5,966,391
Total contributions 20,253,279 9,381,967 29,635,246
Investment income
Net appreciation in fair value of assets 51,038,631 488,620 51,527,251
Interest 4.159,772 1,925 4,161,697
Dividends 7,868,661 5,442 558 13,311,219
Securities lending 201,833 - 201,833
63,268,897 5,933,103 69,202,000
Less investment expenses
Management and custodial fees 2,441,450 - 2,441,450
Securities lending agent fees 79,618 - 79,618
Net investment income 60,747 829 5,933,103 66,680,932
Total additions 81,001,108 15,315,070 96,316,178
DEDUCTICNS
Benefit payments 32,554 707 9,297 651 41,852,358
Refunds of contributions 257,433 - 257,433
Administrative expense 186,601 84 314 270,915
Total deductions 32,998,741 9,381,965 42,380,706
Net increase in net assets 48,002,367 5,933,105 53,935,472
NET ASSETS
Beginning of year 699,686,820 83,794,483 783,481,303
End of year $ 747,689,187 $ 89,727,588 $ 837,418,775

The accompanying notes are an intergal part of these financial statements ~ [D-31




MACOMB CQUNTY, MICHIGAN
Combining Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets
Agency Funds
December 31, 2005

Miscellaneous

Trust and Agency Payroll and Benefits Agency Funds Total
ASSETS
Cash and pooled investments $ 21,893,645 $ 5,962,283 ¥ 3,206,059 $ 31,061,987
Receivables
QOther 680,301 892,088 1,837,866 3,410,255
Total receivables 680,301 892,088 1,837,866 3.410,255
Due from fiduciary funds 113,416 1,199,358 - 1,312,774
Other assets 4,843 - - 4. 843
Total Assets $ 22,692,205 $ 8,063,729 $ 5,043,925 § 35,789,859
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ 724,844 $ 7,060,508 $ 44 470 $ 7829822
Accrued compensation and benefits - 993,221 - 993,221
Depasits 8,899,665 - 2,289,746 11,189,411
Due to other governments 3,196,925 - 2,709,709 5,906,634
Due to business-type units 9,870,771 - - 9,870,771
Total Liabilities $ 22,692,205 $ 8,063,729 § 5,043,925 § 35,789,859
D-32
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ASSETS
Cash and pooled investments
Receivables
Other

Total receivables

Due from business-type units
Due from fiduciary funds

Due from component units
Other assets

Total Assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Accrued compensation and benefits
Deposits
Due to other governments
Cue to business-type units
Due to fiduciary funds

Total Liabilities

MACOMB COUNTY, MICHIGAN

Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities

Trust and Agency Fund
Year Ended December 31, 2005

Balance Balance

1213112004 Additions Deletions 1213112005
$ 12,548,255 $ 138,713,131 $ 129,367,741 $ 21.893,645
367,426 329,301 16,426 680,301
367,426 329,301 16,426 680,301
101,212 - 101,212 -
149,947 6,889 43,420 113,416
2,356 156,013 153,626 4,843
$ 13,169,196 $ 139,205,334 $ 129,682,325 $ 22,692,205
$ 1,164,911 $ 74,349,350 $ 74,789,417 $ 724,844
4,217,593 42 914,070 38,231,998 8,899,665
3,038,697 37,984,435 37,826,207 3,196,925
4,742,273 47,234 455 42,105,957 9,870,771
5,722 - 5722 -
$ 13,169,196 $ 202,482,310 $ 192,959,301 $ 22,692,205




MACOMB COUNTY, MICHIGAN
Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities
Payroll and Benefits Agency Funds
Year Ended December 31, 2005

Balance Balance
1213112004 Additions Deletions 12/31/2005
ASSETS
Cash and pcoled investments 4,531,064 $ 175,260,920 $ 173,829,701 $ 5,962,283
Receivables
Other 1,222,398 4,236,302 4,566,612 892,088
Total receivables 1,222,398 4,236,302 4,566,612 892,088
Due from business-type units 2,898 - 2,898 -
Due from fiduciary funds 790,854 7077177 6,668,673 1,199,358
Other assets 9,765 29,294 39,059 -
Total Assets 6,556,979 $ 186,603,693 $ 185,106,943 $ 8,053,729
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 6,022,110 3 11,671,067 $ 10,632669 $ 7,060,508
Accrued compensation and benefits 534,869 46,460,306 46,001,954 993,221
Due to governmental funds - - - -
Total Liabilities 6,556,979 $ 58,131,373 $ 56,634,623 $ 8,053,729
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MACOMB COUNTY, MICHIGAN

Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities

Miscellaneous Agency Funds
Year Ended December 31, 2005

ASSETS

Cash and pooled investments

Receivables
Qther

Total receivables
Due from governmental funds
Due from husiness-type units

Due from fiduciary funds

Totatl Assets

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable

Deposits

Due to other governments

Due to governmental funds
Due to business-type units
Due to fiduciary funds

Total Liabilities

Balance Balance

12/31/2004 Additions Deletions 1213112005
2,825,408 683,148,967 682,768,316 $ 3,208,059
1,648,907 167,310,437 167,121,478 1,837,866
1,648,907 167,310,437 167,121,478 1,837,866
30 - 30 -
68,543 - 68,543 -
4,542,888 850,459,404 849,958,367 $ 5,043,925
8,378 169,218,524 169,182,432 $ 44 470
2,362,718 14,191,799 14,264,771 2,289,746
2,071,305 176,292,932 175,654,528 2,709,709
1,134 - 1,134 -
99,353 - 99,353 -
4,542 888 358,703,255 359,202,218 $ 5.043925

The accompanying notes are an infergal part of these financial statements ~ [D-35




(3)

DaYPREUT) - UOToag [BoNsnels

G00Z 'L€ iequianaq

NVOIHOIN ‘ALNNOD SWOOVIN

S O U OO U T OO WO U O O U O U O O A O O O O O S O A O O O O O O O O |




ceirrrreorrorrreoceococcococccceoceeeeecceeceececeodqt

SIUSWIRIBIS [BIOURL(4 AIUNCD QUODEN 1R2IN0S

sjiun jusundwoy pRuasald Al9)aussig pue pury AJBDnpl4 aIBD) LiEeH 99439y ‘(pung Buiajoass xej usnbuyeq Buipnjoxa) spung Agjsndoid
'spung s1sfold [BldRD 'SPUNZ SOINIBS 1G@( ‘'SPUNJ SNUSATY [e108dS 'pUN4 [EISUSS) SBPNL| HE 'ON USRS gsvo 1e uepeuawsidw) (Z)

syun wweuocdwoy pajuesald AB18.28IQ PUE pUnd Jsns| srqepuadx3 ‘spung $19(0id jelde) ‘Spund 83AJPS 1980 'SPUnS anuasay 1e|2edg ‘pund |eJsussy sepniou){|)

960Cry'LrSS  989°80G°12S$  818'97'98K$ 0BO'BOZ'08YS  VESC.O0VYS 065 099'99ES 9BV LPEOLES €OV EPC EOES  PEZBO0'BEES . 0L BVL 8628 reoy
908'Z16'9 9£6'8E6'S SGE'6ED'G €L8'7LL9 06£'v9L'g 848'462'8 S18'208'2 149'265'8 816'992'6 £19'€59'6 8z1AI8s 1630
L90'LLL'EE S0L'0E6'6Z 996'£65'92 09£'259'52 B90'SY6'EY BZL'ESS'0Z §65'€58'S1 ZGE'9LL'EZ £2.'625'52 099°668°2 Aepno jeydeg
LiS'0BY'S 6EB'ZEL'Y 9£976.'¢ BOY'L16'T GB0'L82'E Z0B'EBO'T L06'/88'2 8BO'6L. 809'656'Z 804'29.'2 JETT o)
Z00'SEC'Y BUQ'BEC'Y Z08'595'y 00t'PLL'E 266'905°¢ EBE'DLY'E £5Z'6LE'E 8OV LE4°E SEF'0EL'S BPL'gt0'E 2IMINT PUE UONEDIDSY
8E8'CrL'PSE 99¢'520'6b2 £28'246'LE2 0L8'041'822 p22'Z81'502  968'188'061 A TRANEA ) 5.0'78%'28) LLE'TEL'SSL 980'SLY'9E: 2JEJ|aM PUE UyesH
811'v90'99 ¥SL'SLE'LE v.Z'69L'9L £BE'048'/8 500°208'95 L5¥' 185 LS 689'ShL'GS 8rS'cz0'65 192'99.'6¥ £96'2r5'08 $410mM gy
£9.'288'¥9 PE$'£62'85 L0B'0LZ'ZS 04L°085°8Y §61'EZ6'GY £L2'0.5°2Y 055'28}'0% OLb' Lo LE 0Z.'996'vE PoP'PCR'ZE A134eS S)1and
Z9L'501'59 85.°€BL°8S £8g'Lge 9y 08.'969' b 6£L'86T'CY vi6'Lzo'or BES'9EL'SE LS'brLE 192'210'E8 19v'Z82'LE HVEHTITEN LIS
ZLiv'e9g'se LBB'06E"IE §8.'189°08 BEZ'SZL0E 186'158'82 S69'96L' LT 8.9'089°€2 0Z9'60E'2 £02'048'22 6+Z'855 12 [212pnp
L0L'920'7  §  L22'986')L  §  16¥EER’L  $ 066'FIL'L $  PGB'OEL'LS 0LE'iBY'LS FEICTARE LTS LPe'89eLS L¥L'9ZE' L aniesife
(2) 00z (2) ¥00zZ {2y €002 {2 zo0z (1) Looz (1) 900z (1) 6661 (1) ga6i {1) /661 (1) 9661

sies A |eDsi4 Us) isE7
PelpNeU( - UoRouNg AQ sainypuadxy [EUBLILIBAOE) [BIBUSS)

NYOIHOIW ‘AINNCO SINODVIN




Z-3

SIUBLUSIEIS [BIPUBUIY AUNOY) QUIOIBY (825N0S

2002 W Bujuubeg sasiaes Joy sebieyo se papnaul
3JE SjusISSAYSE [B10Rdg SIUM JueUOdWOD pajuessald Aj818i0sig pue pund Aelonply eJed YilesH esiiey {pund Guiyoned xe ) wanbuyag Bupnjoxa) spund
Alejeudary ‘spung sjoefoid jeides ‘spund 801AJ8G J99(Q 'SPUNH BNUBASY [B193dS 'puUNd [BJBUAT) SBPNIL| "bE ON wswalelg gevo Jo uoneewaidw) (Z)

SHUM Jusuodwe) pejuesald Alsa.osig Pue pund isniy ejgepuadxg 'spuny spefoiy [enden 'Spung 8ojAaG 1G8Q] ‘SpUNy Snuasay tenadg 'puny |2JsUa9) Sapniau| (L)

£84'980'c.5% L49'209'0958  vBEUVE'SESS  LIG'PLO'VISS  62CELYOSYS  OLB'SI6'60PS  SOL6ISEHLS . BLP0L669ES E9B'ZOV'BYES  190°628'v0ES jeo]
15Z°906 6£E'508'L 4B0'6Z¢'L 164'501°Z ZLY'ess's 6YE'E99'Y 98.'sv9't o0t'eeL'e Z50'€60°9 0£9'PGS' anueAss 13Ul0
8LL'064'L SSP'186°L BLLL60'L £50'540° B6L°0¥0'L £46'P92'L £50'62Z'L SLE'PSL'L 9.6'098 Z6E'£G8 $8IMIBHI0) PUB SBUI
898'/80'LL 966'915'0L AR TEA] 689'v58'8 I55°208'2 gev'hie'L 81£'98L'0 £22'019'9 P9.LGE'S £CL'985'S S20IMS BAjelSIUIWPE

- 40} spuny Jauyyo o) sebieyn
- . - - 8EL'VELE 6L¥'058' 9.9'VLL'G 88L°729'¢ SLL92's SBY'6TL'Y siusssasse |eoadg
BEY'SYO'SL B62'ZYE'EL }22'9PE 02 £90'600'9 9E6'ZHE'SL 8¥2'eve'9l 8LL'00L'S) SEL'EYO'SL LLE'POEEL yLP'R0E'E) QUIODU? JUBLLISAAU|
Lb8'8LY'6EZ 9LL'EEY'bEL 9.0'891'261 SEE'PLYLGL 6/8'tsL'e81 £ZFZEL LPL BOL'0/6'ZEL v1S'Zre's0L 20Z'616° 201 §/6'1/9'GS saolnes Joj sebieys
LiC'182 0004 1 AR L92°58L LE71ZEY 1E5'CH8'Y 90.'289'¢ POE'SLL'Y 60Z'250'c BLO'SYE'E sesB teyiQ
1Z9'ELLSh) 999'968'00Z 189862607 816'608°91Z BLO'ZYE 2oL 1ZZ'0vR'SPL LSH'F08'ZhL LG9'BZLLS) Gr0'616'vEL 98Z'0L8'L¥L sjuBIf 9)elS pue (eJapey
$18'202'L £50°280'1 BZ5'E60°'L S¥5'620'L 265'v96 986'086 15.'v96 6.42'CE6 G1L'106 028’588 shulied pue sasusa
009'G2E'eSL $  CEP'OPE'SYL $§  PRS'OFOMOL $  $6L0E5°96 & 6ZL'01O'GES LET'ERY PES SL1'295'608 ZeLLEV' YIS 62'26L'69% POL'it1'99% saxe|

(z) s00z (2) v00z {2} eoce (Z) z00Z {1} 1002 (1Y cooz (1) 6661 (1} 8661 (1) 2661 (1) 9661

SIEBA [BOSI4 US] }SET
pajpneun - 82IN0g Ag SeNUSASY |BJUBLILLISADS) |BISUSE)

NVYOIHDIN ‘ALNNOD 90OV

S O W O Y VO WO OO O O U O O O O A A O O O O O O A A G W |




vttt occccconooogol

€-3

Jaingeal ) AlunoD quosey aounog

%0'G %LE %9l %l %b'T %e'T %9 %ET %tr'T %L'T Ang| Juauno

40 JuSaIad B SE SaXB)
Wwanbujap Buipugising

IGL66L'S $  $BY'SEYES SZE'LSY'1S 889'GLL'L$ LLE'SSL'ZS 9/6°966'L$ LIE'EQ0'TS BSYLLL'LS BIB'0/9'LS 0L6'69L' LS saxg)
wenbuysp Supuesing

%8'66 %¥ 86 %G'66 %S'86 %G L6 %6 86 %C 66 %566 %t 66 %866 Ang| Jualn 4o Jusosad
€ SB SU0J03]|00 [B)o

%166 %816 %8'86 %6'L6 %L 96 %€ 86 %986 %066 %886 %E'66 A3 Jualino 4o Jueasad
B SB SU0103|02 JusLung
BEC'OVE'SLLS  T8I'PZO'B0LS  6T.'PO6'C0LS 95682968  08Y 8SP 89S ¥oL'6.7'vas TES'ZIT'6LS  LLL'6BE'ELS  SPE'6E9'698  pBF 0/6G0% SUQIJ8(|CV XE} [Bjo ],
9.9'6eL 1G9'699 P66'cL 6.8'G5S 6EC'€ZL L18'02S lE9'L6Y 629'8lE ZTS'66E 999'ore SUQN9)|02 XB} Juanbuljag
Z99'v09'rLLS  1E0'SSE'L0LS  SELOET'E0LS  $99'SCe'ses Ip2'SEL'IBS  29278G6'T8S 1G6'026'6/3 BEY'0L9'€L$ €29'6.Z69% ©LB'CZ9'GEE SUORD3|I0T XB} JUBLIND
OPEZ09'SLIS  ZPY'Z08'60LS  990°/PY'vOLS  $99°/88'/6S 6EP'ZBO'06S  O8F'BlLY'Sas vSo'8P0'08S QSE'9BC'PIS CETOCL'0L$  £29'S60'99% Ans| x21 |e10 )

TLL'PBZ'T 968'v6E'T 085°08L'C EBE'LES'T ¥95°690' 129'020'2 66G'GED'T Ti0'PZE'L YZL'vIEL 22978l xe} Ayjioey
IRIDJBWLIOD g [BUISRPUY
8TZ'GIE'CLLS  OVS'L0P'/0LS  O8¥'999°L0LS  1LBL'6PE'GES G/8'019'89% €££8'/pE'cos SSO'CI0'BLS  98Z'T9P'TLS  699'GIZ'E9S  SSQ'CLEPOS Ang| Bunesedo

S00e 002 €002 2002 1002 oooz 6661 BG6L 1661 9661

SIBA |EDSI UD] I1SET
pajipneun - suonosj|oD pue s81A97 xe | Auadold Alunod

NVSIHOIN ‘ALNNOD SWOOVW




¥3

juswyedaq ucnez)enb3z Aunod quiooep

:99IN0g

gl'ey Z69'CLL'PZS LL 898'678'895'GE 9//'6£9'892'S 169°G8E'vZ9'T 916'€L¥'G82'99 LLL' Py v6'Ee S002
99’6y 8¥2'/89'016'L9 86/'08¥'LTL'EE 2£8'8.5'662'G 965'698'8£9'Z 9Lp'80L°L1L9'29 T91°219'280'LE 002
99'6¥ 666'LS2'SSY' PO 146'985'900'2¢ 6.0'5L0'6L¥'S 460'GpE1€L'2 088'9€2'9.6'8S v.8't¥2'5/2'62 £00e
L6y 698'6SS'€00'09 £62'G99'L£8'6Z G2l LBS'PGE'S 09v°'166°899°C PEL'8G6'8Y9'PS €€8'€29'291'L2 ¢00¢
£E'09 641'02€'285'€S L£¥'16£'896'92 Z¥6'06¥'¥BE'S 061'G18'€69'Z l£2'628'/8) '8V Ly2'ers'viT've 100¢
£9'6¥F vB8E'289'966 '8y 9e2'LZ6'9LE'vT LB0'0EP'6EL'S £2£'860'699°C €0€25¢'L59'EY EL6'228'LPe' LT 000z
29'6¥ ¥S6'€2r 028" P §50'0z8'z9e'Ze CrL'BLY'LYE'S 0¥E£'829'049'2 L18°%00'625'6E SLLLYL'TeS 6L 6661
S9'6Y 8EE£'061'925'0¥ 01£'645'6L1°0C 18E'029'GY6'Y Y20'CL8'TLY'T 186'695°085'GE 982'29L'9¥9'L1 8661
0L'6% LEB'0Z6'C9S'9E L35'690'v21'81) LiY'CeY'8sYy'y LP8'8¥2'622'¢ 99¥'Ler'50L'2E 989'028'¥¥6'SL L8661
L9'6Y 9122291 1z'¢ee v.8'0€5'vZL'94 6PLLPE'GLL'Y G€1'049'680'2 195'L££°2E5'62 6€2'098'FEQ YL 9661
anjeA |enloy {pa18WnsSy) anjeA {pajewnsg) anjea (pa1eWNST) anjea I=EYN
eloL o} anjea passassy anjeA passossy anjea passassy jeasl 4
anjea passassy |emoy [enoy BNy
2101 jo oney |elol Aladold |euosiad Auadoid |eay

Siea\ |eos|q ua] Jse
palpneun - Ausdold a|gexe[ Jo anjeA (palewissy) [Bnloy PUR Passassy

NVSIHOIN ‘ALNNOD SINODVIN

»p——-—_pn—ppp—_,p»»npppnp-—ppn—pnppnnnnppp—-—




rreetrreroreroeroceeoctooccccocccecccccccocccocoocootaol

G-3
Hoday uswuopoddy AjJuno) quiosely (92Inog
8€€'252'192 Z6L'9LY 0r LLL'OVE'6L LEC'TBY'S 8L.'060°01L 500'418'G 18%'9G1 822'gLE'cLL Goog
18¥'60Z'052 8.5'9560F LEY'690'9/ 8€€'9ZC'S G88'tL2'Gl 9.£'925'G 1ze'syrl ovS L0v'L0L #0002
L00'858'6£2 v.1'696'0v L8L'vEEeL LLE'LL6'Y 08L'€25'v1 69.'252'G ¥6E 0¥l 98¥'999°L01 £002
190'961'L6L 182'826'LE veLv8L'0F 919'689°t e0T' e’ Z8.L'296'y ¥LZ'9El LBL'6VE'GE ¢00g
£99°106'v41 v.LZ'vv6'LE A0} A 2N 8.5'86E'Y $8/.'G06°9 950'9r9’ 169Vl G/8'019'88 i00e
0GL'Er6'GoL LP0'vEY'LE 095°'896'GE INAAVAAN LL1'S61'9 8GS'LOY'Y 8G.'8G1 €E8'LPE'E8 0002
806'1€2'95} 8G1'896'6¢ 028°0¢6'ce 621'206'¢E FAYAPX AN 6OV LGL'Y 009'8vl GG0'CL0'8L 6661
8.8'vZ8'GYL rL9'¥e5'8e ¥6L'7LG'LE 0¥S'veo'e Sor'e69'c GG2'/G8'E ¥20°8€L 982'2ov'z. 8661
LE6'19L°LEL v21°62L'92 02€'199'62 0ZL'ZLv'e 008'65¢€'S 129'1£9'E LLL'OYL 699'GLE'89 L661
918'+08'621 8.£'669'GZ G60'046'22 rie'olz'e L/L'EG0'S $06°€2t'e 6EV'80L GSO'ELE'¥9 o661
SIIATT XVL ALH3J0OHd
BLLV'E 2008’1 64642 9¢€0Z0 B8v65°0 PGLZ 0 85000 Qoogy S00¢
08,56 658S°1 G89/°¢ Y¥0Z°0 €690 1912’0 8600°0 00T v ¥00e
£60L'6 00041 Li8L¢C ¥S02°0 Q0090 04120 8500°0 000¢ v £00¢
Glev'e L0491 S964°L 9900 geeeo 98120 09000 000g'¥ ¢00¢
G68C'8 orLe'L gele’l GBOZ0 £L2e0 202e0 0.L00°0 0002'¥ L002
L2ot'8 0v8g°L eTAR g8onc’o FXANE 8leeg 0 08000 0]0]0748 4 000¢
LLL'g PELOL cgcg’l L0LZ0 662¢°0 geee’o 08000 000C¥ 6661
eab'e 6£59°} 9928’1 L0Le'o 00€e0 9geeo 08000 000y 8661
0S8 L5v9'L 9928’1 10120 00€€0 9€¢e0 06000 0002t L1661
0LiV'8 18191 89¢8’L L0LZ0 00ee0 98¢z’ 0 0LL00 0002y 9661
|e1el absg||cD uoneonp3 1PsIg uogepodsuel | AloUINY yiBg geg buneladp IERN
Aunwwo) [Bloedg [als]¥lel |euoiBay uejjodonsy [=g) Aunon 1RSI
s)eIpauwIaiy| LHVNS uou|D uoiny

{STTIW) STLVY XYL ALY3d0dd

SIBO A |BOSI4 US] 1B
PeYpPNBUN - S8IABT XE] PUB SNjEA PBSSessY 000’ LS Jed Saley xe ]

NVYOIHOIN ‘ALNNOD NOJVYIN




UOISSIWUWIOD SHIOAA OligNd  :824N0S

¥2.'95€°L v2L'922'L 5002
996'¢85'9 996°29¢'9 12004
020°255'8 0T0'zss's £00¢
8L6'8YY'0 8L6'8vP'9 c00¢
199'4.0'8 199°220'8 1002
0L8'26g's oLg'Lee's 0002
1G9°200°8 1G9°L00'8 6661
L0¥'9.8°G 286'92.L'S 8661
LP2'029'9 £20°0L2'9 1861
¥96'€56'0 €28°.9t'0 9661

IEE ) sbulg 1€ 19qUid38( pspug 1eax

JUSLISSassYy Jusuissassy

|eoadg |elosdg

siea\ |eJs)q ua] ISeT
palipneun - sUoR29||0) pue sBuljig JuaWISsassy [e1edg

NVOIHOIN ‘ALNNOD GNOOVIN

—ﬂ-—p——ppp-n»-pp—pnnnnppp—pppppp»»»»..»—.—-»—-,_




rerecreeececccecoocococcocccrooccccococroet oot

.-3
ueBiyaIly jo 1PunoD Atosiapy [edioiuniy (g)
neaing snsusd ‘SN ¥ 90ONW3S (V) :§924n0g
2.06 120 000'052'S. 898'628'895°GE £S'628 5002
LWL L0 000'052'9S 8G/'98¥ LT EE 099228 002
05°€9 910 000'021'2S 126'985°900°2E BEL'0Z8 £00Z
98°'.9 810 000°659'¥S £62'G99°1£8'6¢ GBE'S08 200z
1G'62 600 000'0L9'ee 1£9'/G€'896'0¢C ¥56'66. 1002
£9'le 0L'0 000°0€6'vZ 9£Z'126°'91E'¥T 6%l ‘882 0002
G8'LT 010 000'090'22 $60'028'29Z'22 280'Z64 6661
WAVKA L0 00o0‘0g8’ e 0LEe'siS'6LL'02 869°.8. 8661
G062 €Lo 000°09.°22 125'690'v21'81 LSP'e8. 1661
812 gLo 000'0£9°12 pL8'085'v2L 9L 669'82. 0661
euden ied BNIEA PBSSassY (g) anjeA () JESA
}qeQ papuog 0} 1ge(Q papuog 98 pepuog pessassy uotieindod [eosid
uonedlqo uoneblgo |elsuss uonebliqo
|[eJauss) 19N 18N Jo abejuasiad leJsuan) 1N

sieaA [0Sl U] JseT
palpneun - ended Jad 199Q pepuog uonebiiqo [ejausd pue
anjeA pessassy 03 Jgeg papuog uonebigo jeJeuss jo sbejuaclad

NVOIHDIN ‘ALNNOD NOOVIN




8-3

ueBiyoiAl Jo jounod Alosiapy [edIDIUNPY (82IN0S
‘uonesuadIoD SISXHIOM PUB SEoUSSQE PalesUSdLLIOD JO BAISN|OXS SI Junowy (g)

"S9INS| XB) BjBISa |Eal AQ paoueu Ajuewud jgap JO 1SISU0S sjunowe N (y)

056'602°20¥'C$ 961'229'¢.L'c$ 961°CrL'28.°C$
96.°£00°¢ vel 000'Gov'cz 000'G9v'2T PUISIg [0oyog aleipstulaiuy|
pue abajjop Ayunwwos

080°1L56'¢Z1 000l 080°LS6'cTh 080°LS6'eTL sdiysumo

950°982'see £'86 02€'88.°0¢€E 02e'88l 0¢ee sabejIn pue s

8L0°09G'168."1 g8'ee 96.'2L0'8¢E1'2 96£°2L0'8¢L'C SIOUSIJ 0042

000'GOP'8G 1L 000'G0¥'8G1 000°'GZ6'LLL 198@ Alunog g0

000'6GL'e8 0001 000°sSL'e8 000'sSL'e8 ssljilediojunpy (2007
AqQ pred spuog panss| Aunon

000'052'G.$ 0001 000'0S2'6.$ (8) 000'0,.'88% Auno) Guiodep

1980 Jo suieys AUNOY quicoey (v)1eN [ej0L
AUnog quiocoep 0} 9|geo|ddy 1geq Wis)-buoT
abejuasied

G002 ‘L€ Jeqwedaq
paupneun -1qag SuiddeaaQ pue e Jo uoneINdwos)

NVOIHOIN ‘ALNNOO GNODVIN

-»»»—p»——pppppp-.»»»»_,-—,pmp—pp—p————-pppp—_—.,_




(rrorocecccccocccrccccoccccccrecrccecccccccoocroooctg

(1eaA |eosld 9002) JEBA XB1 6007 - Wodey juswuopoddy Ajunog quooely (y) :92inog

‘uonesuadwos SIeNJOM pue sasoussqe pajesuadlod jo aaisnjoxe sjqeled 1gap wist-Buo (e)jo) syusseidey (2)

‘Aunon ay) ut Auedold |euoslad pue [ea) POSSSSSE || JO %0 L Pasoxe jou |leys Aunod ay)
4O SSBUPBIQapPU JAU B} 1B} SJB)S ‘papuswe se ‘6061 ‘Ueblyoin Jo sIY otdnd ‘6.2 1V (1)

‘810N
2G9°,98'L0L'TS NISHVYN 19330 TvO31
000'S0¥ 851 199 Buipugising 10 unowy
000°0ZS'CL spuog pun4 uoneuodsuel| ssa7
000'G26'LLLS (2) 19eq Buipuelsing
769'242'098'Z% (1L} anjeA a|qexe | pessassy JO %0L - HwiT1geQg
£26'92.209'8Z § (V) snieA sjgexe| passassy 00T

G002 ‘1€ Jequiads(
pajipneun - wblep 198q 1ebeT jo uoneindwo)

NVOIHOIN ‘ALNNOD SNOIJVI




cL-3

SlUSLURJeIS [BISUEBUIY AJUNOD) qUICIEL 934n0S

"uonejusLwa|duwr ey} jo Led se spund asidieius Se payISSe|Ds) 2JoMm SPURd 8nusAay fervadg se
loj payunoooe Alsnojasid spuny UBLSYD ZOOZ ‘LE 19qLIsde( pepus-1eal eyl Joy PE ON awaies asvo pajuswaidu Aunog eyl (v)

%S L %P %yl %01 %60 %80 %90 %l'0 %20 %80 2]
%20 %0 %L'0 %50 %¥'0 %¥0 %¥' 0 %P0 %b 0 %0 salau)
%80 %L'0 %80 %b'0 %50 %¥'0 %E'0 %E0 %Ee0 %S0 [edioutic

‘seJmipuadxe [Blaueb 2101 &
1gep papuog vonebqo jeseust Jo)
saim)puadxs a01AI85 198P JO olRY

86Z'09Z°9¢¥$  LOL'LGZ'SIPE  ZGZ'E0L'0BES  990'G/9'G98$  26G'SER'/ZES GBELGLLBOTS  L9i6EF p9ZS 164268223 LP0'0LS'09Z8 G565 669 /228 1210

PSR'OLE'POL E61'0v6'8G) Z08'vS LSSl 296°Z19'bPL

'
.
'

- - - (pung Buirjoasy xe] Juanbuiag
Buipnjoxe) spuny esudiaiug

062'98.'22 969'€91°0¢ 91L6'059°82 625'086'vZ 068'L0G'9 486'Z08°11L ELB'ZLG'S 650°808°G} LOE'06Y'S ) GL9'0EL'E spuny sioafoid repden
ShZ'ars'y 015'86.2'G 899°9€L'G 600'L8Y'E 189'Ze0'e Z80'L8E'T 9€0'600'Z Ze9's10'e 9252698 £46°026'L Spury a0IAYs 1geQ
9Z0'gEr'66 £49°7¢6'L6 ¥9€'L0L'LE 008'264'84 99€'rL1'80Z SZEEr9'E6l $05'208'081 Z08'ere'eglL 9¥E'FZ6'LSL FEE OV L SpuUny @nUaARY BDadg
LZ6'896'crL S 6B0'OLY'BELS  ZOS'ESO0ZLS  LOP'BISELIS  GS9'BSL'OLLS  SPL'ZEZIOLG  bLI'bL 1'96% 952'GZE'LBS 998'/5¢'58% £/6'00Z'18% puny jeJausg
saunypusdxe [eleuag

2L2'¥29'9% 18P'9L2'SS GGE'6E9°6S 600" 18Y'ES 189'220'cS THO'LBE'TS 629'600'2$ LLO'CL0'ZE LTEVER'LS S85'218'LS [e1eL
BLZ'YO0'E L5¥'EEl'T GGE'69G' 600198} L899t AT 6Z8'0E0"L LL9'280°1L SEP'S90°L 998'9.8 1saJa)u;
000'09S't $ 000'6B6'Z § 000'DL0'E ¢ 000'0Z9'L$ 000'556'L$ 00C'0EL' LS 000'G46% 000'0£6$ Z68'99.% 6LL0P0'LS jedpuig

Jgep papuoq uonebiqo |eseued
1o} saunjipuadxs 831098 168

g00e 002 £00¢ {wizooe 002 occe 6661 8661 661 9661

SIE9A [BOSI4 Us] 1SET

paypneun - saunypusdx3 [RISUSS [EJ0L O} 10 PAPUCY

uonebiqQ ielsuss 40} sainlpuadxs 90188 1G8( JO DREY
NYOIHDIN ‘ALNNOD SWODVIN

(O O O U U W VO U O O O S G O O O O O G O O O O O A O O O A O O O A O O O O




crrrcreeeccrroceceeccocococcocccocccocroooccocccoooornoee

bi-3
uswabeury ¥Siy AJUNOD GWODJBIA 182IN0CS
S9[0IYaA pamoulog Jo
padiy JO S82IYSA UMO JIau) 8sn abewep
saaio|dws ajium Aunon sy; Joj Auadoud pue Ainful
abeIsA0D $3[01UaA PaUMO |E JO} Allpog 85Ua.LNI20 JaAouRH
uonosjold yne4-oN pue Ayjjiger Jad 000'000'6S (& 90/0€/9-C0/L/L j0 Auedwo) souelnsu| [BUOlEUISIU|
‘ADIN0d ATI9ONO0LNY
SJUSLUS)E}SSIW 10 §j0.
[NjBUOIM JO} SUOISSIWIO JO SJOLS
SepN|oUI 80UBSEaj-UOU pUE 8oue
-sesjew ‘aoueses)s|w Jo) 9HeIsA00
s{eloio olgnd sjelolyo pejosie pue s|anonpaqg 000°'005$ (d
saaiojdws ‘Alqel |eucissajoud pue
‘aBeian00 uoRBUILILISSIP ‘AInfu) Aunge
jeuosJtad ‘suoljesado paye|dwod sjeloo 2lgnd pue
pue syonpoud ‘sasjwalid Buipnjoul Ainlul jeuosaiad ‘Ainful JanoueH
Alligel |eieuag) anisuayaidwod Allpoq 000'000'6S (e 90/0€/9-S0/L/L 30 Auedwo aouelnsu| [BUORUISIUY
ALITIGYIT TVYHEINGD JAISNIHIYdNOD
Adl|od jo uopduosaq jeug sa|qiionpag/sywim wJia | Adiod 8oueINsu| Jo adA | /oWEN Auedwo

G00z ‘L€ Jequaseq
paypneun - sBelaron asueInsuy

NVOIHOIN ‘ALNNOCD SWOIVI




Jswabeue sy AJUNOD QUIOJBI 924N0S

ajquonpag (g
s (e

sjuWl| ejeledss yum uopelg
dwnd uojedeys sepnjoul ‘spiad
PapN[oXe Ulepad ssa| ysu |8
'suonetado awnsal 0) ssuadxs uonualal 000'ss (9
BJ)Xe ‘e|psw pue juawudinbs
pabewep Joj 1500 Juswaoe|dey W 000°000°1$ (B 90/0€/9-G0/1L/L [BQo|O W 4

‘ONISSIO0¥d VIVA JINOHIIT 13

108(qo pauniur 0} Juspiooe Ue Wwolj
Bunnsai $1500 asusjap ‘slsyjo
jo Ausdoud o} sbewep ‘Aunlu

Joy Ajjiqen (sjqissod se |ewlou

se uo Aleo) ‘esuadxs exs uonusIal 000'01L$ (9
‘sesuadxe Bupipadxs ‘Auedoid
painsul Jo uswiadeldal Jo Jiedey JWI 000'062$ (8 90/0£/9-G0/ /L |eqoio W 4

-AHINIHOVIA ANV H37109

wiejo Jad uonueial
paJnsul-18s 000'0se$ (g

paleolpul se 000°000° L $-ANIIgelT
§$80x® 'A|Uo 8507 do)g oyoedsg  ‘Aioynyeyg-uchesusdwo) (e 90/0£/9-€0/1/2 0D pun4 Jusplooy
-3ONVINSNI SSOTdOLS D14103dS NOILVSNIJNOD . SHINHOM
Aaljod jo uonduosaq jelg sa|qnoNpaq/suLl wia] Aolog aoueinsuy jo adAjseweN Aueduio]

G00Z ‘L€ Jaquieoneg
pajipneun - abelaAcn sdueinsuy|

NYOIHOIWN ‘ALNNOD SWOJVIN

S W U O W U O O O U O W O O O W O O O A O A O O A O O




tbrrrrtbtbtortorereroceccocorcocroccoccocococooccocoeqccnod

£1-3
Juawasbeuep sty AIUNOD QUIOIBIA 182.n0g
algnonpag (q
spw (e
000'62$ (g
uoioNJISeP PUB P3YI 000°00Z$
AoUeuino JausiuNod 000 05%
sesiwa.d Jnojul Aisbloy 000'002$
uotonlisep pue aoueleaddesip ‘yayl SWwl2 000'005°L$ (B 90/LE/€-G0/ 11T ‘0D ¥sodsQ ® Avjepid
FATED
000'62$ (g
a1eBai68e 000°000°GS
$s0[49d 000'GZ$ (B L0/ViL-¥O/LiL Auedwod soueinsu| jeseps4

ALY AGVYIONAId SH0LISOd3a

‘sladed s|gen|eA Jo) 000°000°L$
‘P00 40J 000000°001$ ‘@3enbyyes oy

000'000'001$ s! Auadold |eal 0} 10adsal 20UB.1IN200
YIIM JDISESIP JO $SO| '89Ua.1IN220 SU0 yoea 000'001$ (9
Aue ‘pwy| |eyo]. "s|uad papnjoxe uBLeD
pue s)wi| ¢} 199[gns ‘sso| JO %Sl (|8 SJUBUOD pue
Wwolj sjusiuocd pue sBuipling sainsuj sBuIPING 000'006'822$ (B 90/0£/9-S0/L/L [EGOID W 4
-Ald3d0dd
Rollod jo uonduosa( jalig s8|qnoNpPag/syWf wJia] Aoijed aoueinsu| Jo adR] /eweN Auedwion

§00Z 1€ Jaquisvag
pajipneun - abelan0y aouBINsy|

NVOIHOIN ‘ALNNOD BWOOVIN




Pi-3

jusweBeuey ysiy Aluno) quiooeyy :aoinog

sy (e
$seuljl 10 Japoe Aq pa|gesip
Alle10} 850y} S19A00 'sjljeusq polad uoneuiwi)a
4O UonBUIPJO0D 0} JoBlgns yiuow (g) xig
-0/ 03 g9 sebe wouy psjnpayos wnwixew
se ‘g abe o} Aejes jo %09 Auuow 000's$ (8 90/1LE/E-b0/ L/ YNO

JONVENSNI ALIMEVYSIT W3 L-ONOT

[ENPIAIPUI pRIBAOD

Aq wewAed-0o 0} 1oslgns

"0J8 'sojjuopopus ‘souop  ‘(eye() Jeak yoeauoo sod
-olad ‘sAjeIO}Sal ‘olsoubelp |ENRIAIDUI PRISA0D Jad [eyueQ uap|on Aq passjsiujwpy
‘Sjyeusq | ssepg Jo JuswAed oG/  uswAed wnwixew ggo* L4 (e 90/LE/ZL-P0/ 111 ueld jeyusq eyeq Aq pessisiuiupy

(PSPUNT JI8S) ' IONVENSNI IVINTG

UOISISAU0D 0} Uoisiro.d ‘s8sS0]
p8Inpayds Jayo Joj wns jediouud
10 (2/1) Hey-suo !sso| pajnp

-8Y08 IO yieop Joj wins [ediounud oInpayos Jad sy (8 90/L€/ZL-v0/L/1 SHNETAY
-JONVENSNI 33N
Adijod Jo uonduosa( Jang s8|qlonpag/syu wie ] Adjod |oueInsu| Jo adA | jeweN Auedwion

S00Z ‘LE tequisdag
pajipneun - abelanoy soueinsu|

NVOIHDIW ‘ALNNOD SWOJVIN

—-»--——p-—-»—_ppp—-pnp_p»—ppppp»»»npnpppn




rrrptrrrrrreerreoetoocrococccroocecccee e ooereorntet

Gl-3
Juswsbeuey ¥siy AJUNOD qUICDBY (B0IN0Y
sywi (e
Ueld Odd @nig Alunwwo)
Ug|d |euolipel ]
wiejo Jod 000'GZL$ uebiyoi Jo pieIys enjg/ssol
aoueNsy] ss0| 4ol JO ssa0X8 o)loadg (e Q0/LE/CL-¥0/L/L an|g Aq paigisiulwpy - pepund jjeg
sbnip uonduosaid
pue sisa) ge| uanedino ‘Anu
-1gjew ‘Juswiesi} SJ000p pue
[eo1Bins s1aA09 (o|ydoliseien)
wnulixew swnsii| 000°000°1$
(leoipey Jo3sBN) PlBIYS emig ||
|[BlusW pue snoAlau
shep G ‘ssouydis shep
gog aberenog [eydsoy "dwo) ue|d @ouel|ly YieeH - OAH
$S0JD anig |
000'GZL$ uonuaiel (NOg) uebiyoipy jo
JoeluoD Ajjullapu| 8oIAleg [BOIpO 195 Jo spwi (e 90/Le/eL-v0/ L7 HOMIBN PIBIYS anjg/ssol] enig
-JONVHNSNI TV LIdSOH/HLTVIH
ADI|0d JO uonduoseq Jjaug sa|qnanpsad/sHwi w9 | Adl|lod aoueInNsuU| JO adA ) /eweN Auedwo)

G00Z ‘L€ Jequedag
pajpneun - abeianon asueinsuy|

NVOIHOIA ‘ALNNOD SINODVYIN




9i-4

neaing snsuaD 'S'N 92N0g

8L Zis'opl Z'8¢ 6£0'€S £G¥'628 G002
8 00S'1SL 6Lt 8G8'LS 099228 002
99 T4 R 44" TAVA €105 6€.L'0¢8 £00¢
LS 8LG'OEL 6'9¢ Z01'2S G6£'608 2002
}'g ¥SEPEL 6'9¢ 109’6y #56'66. Looe
[ 796'621 0'LE el ] 4 6¥1 884 000Z
e 208'L21 g9 680°GY Z80'Z6L 6661
A eTACRTAR £9g 680'GY 869°.8. 8661
St oeL'oZl oge €20'vy LGP'e8s 1661
4 6¥8'LTl L'sE zee' Ly 669'8.L. 9661
eley Tuswjoug ~ eby T awodu " uopendog IE)N
WwawAhojdwaun |ooYoS ueIpay PIOYSSNOH
ZL Uty ueipaiN

Sleaj [eosi4 ua) Jse]
paypneur - sousies siydesbowag

NVOIHOIN 'ALNNOD ENOJVYIN

O O O T O O Y O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O |




rcrtrrrorrecccocococccoccccoccccroccccccococctooet

L-3
voday ‘Bpig fenuapisay YW /S
siuwJsd Buiping ©0ON3S
¥ooq ereq S10/0iQ4
awuedaq uoneziienbg AUNOD qUICIBK 82JN0S
3lqe|ieAe JoN - YN
000'.£9'C) VN YN 000'999'¢8S  G8L'F  Q00'¥08'9LO'0 000°LSE'06L'}  9VZ'VOL'SBY'Y  LOL'BETIBF'ST  §00T
166'9L2'T) YN W¥N 000ZL6'¥89  STL'S  000'90S'OvL'Q 000°'162'L60'L LEE'PEB'BLTY  LOP'LLB'990'VT 002
G80'6P6'LL YN VYN 000'LLE'SS9  ILSL'S  000'625'866'C 000'£90'vSL'L  €6Y'8PS'O80'y  ZTLG'LE8'895'2Z €002
£66'8L9'LL N YN 000'0¥6'¥2O  8LE'Y  000'995'Z¥T'v 000'619'642'} 9¥0'8€8'€GL'€  928'085'L06'0Z  200T
828'LeS L1 N VN 9ze'LTL'YOS  vi9'y  000'89€'0T6'T 000'vLL'ELE L LG0'ZEL'ET6'T  680'LES'YSH'8L 1002
818'290"}1 ¥N YN 000'c96'sZL  £98'S  000'ZL8'S9Z'E 000'L¥S'EP6 SLL'EVPB'€L9'T  885'209°L80°LL 0002
6L0'68L°0L N YN 000'080'769 8¥9'S  0Q00'P9L'SOL'E 000'cE6'ELE'L 180'L99'66V'C  S09'8SE'EPE'GL 6661
8r0'599°01 000'659'20L 8Z1 000'L9E'61S L62'S  000'9VS'¥OL'S 000'0L¥'202'L brL'829'492'7  £8L'COP'S9L'CL 8661
618'25Z°01 000'889'601L Geb 000'2¥8'SEY L08'c  000'LZE'€EL'S 000'9¥8'901 'L 896'6Z0'8EL'Z  18Z'GG8'LZE'TL 1661
zL0'GET L 000'058°0L1 Lyl 000'61L'co¥ 8LS'Y  000'682'¥88'Z LLB'ELE'LEL GLS'9SE'666'L S8V YTZ8'0ET LI 9661
(spuesnoy_ ut) SNeA sjiun anjeA sjun (porEWNnST) uawsleqy xeJ [RIEININY) [enuapIsay Jeaj
sysodaQ yueg  UOIONASUOY [BIDJSWWOYD  UCHINASUCY |ERUSPISaY a|geEXBIUON |eosi

anjep Auadold psssessy

siea) |eosid ua] i1sel
paypneun - sjsodaq yueg pue uoanisuoD) ‘senjep Auadold

NVOIH2IW ‘ALNNOD SWOJVIN




8L-3

lusweda uoilez|lenby Aunos quioosely 92105
'SJUSLLISSOSSE A}jiOR) [BIISNPUL SPNIOUl JOU SAOP B|ge L

"v00Z Jeak ay) 1oy dnjeA yseo anJ) Jo 94,06 ‘Aljeseusb sejouap yans se
pue sesodind Juawssssse 104 senjen a|qeXE) B8 PAISI| SONJBA [y (910N

% 09 G9€°/92'029'1$ 09€'Cer'vEL LS G00'sye'sars WLIOL
[ANY 88e'vLl'ce 808°80¢'0¢ 085'G98'} pelepliosuo) uebiyol
AN LiZ'ovo'ee €82'96'G1 YE6'€99°L1 Helwem
vL'0 ¥8'919'8¢ £98'892"L LCLWAZRES siallopy
ZZ'0 L¥2'L9G'6S 199°292°62 085'v0E'vE 'SuBJ |euonRUIBIUI
00 80€' 165801 06€'969'€04 8S6'v68'Y ABrouz Jewnsuo)
¥9°0 62¥'08Z'cLL 198',98'C¢1 29521y oF Uo8)sIA
8.0 gve'L0e'cle Zv2'080'80Z 904'222'S uos|p3 Jjiejjeq
680 8lg'lel'6Ee 008'z0s'9l2 gl¥'veg'ee Auedwod Jojo piog
0g'L cLT¥psi0se ZlE'Z66'651 006'LSS'v61 SI0joly (BJaUSD)
% 8¢} LBV L0V LLES vZ1L'99v'8€Z$ €LE°1v6'2ELS Ja|sAyg-seiwieq
aniep a[qexe aneA anjeA eigexe | anie a|gexe | JoAedxe]
AlUnoD [e1o] ajgexe] Auadold |euosiay Aladoid |eay
Jo abejuaaiagy ejo]

$00Z 10} sishAedxe] ua| do|
paypneun - siefedxe] |edpuuy

NVYOIHOIW ‘ALNNOD SWOIVIN

S W O S O A S G O G O G O O O O O O O O A O O A O A A O O O O O O O |




N A A O O B O O O O O B O O

001
968,

5€6

gl
9¢
6%

Ll
££6'C
88e'l

G9

LZ
99
08
81

9g.
Z¥6'T
ZEE'LL
908'6¥1L

£
¢l
A

28y
8l8l

(eeeeeeeeeeeceeeeeeeeeeooerdc
6t-3

seulepn
$8.10Y
syied ugjjodossw euobay
$2I0Y
sesle 91B1s
uoHRaI08Y

sisod aojod a)Eig
sjualipedap saij0d Apunwiwio)
sjuawpedsp aiy Apunuwiwon
suones all4

Alajes olgng

spaq juaned yyesy |Blus ajenld
sal)([to®) Uleay [eluaw aleAld
spaq juaned aies Buisinn
sanoey alea Buisiny
spaq juaned aeo sinae |eJsusD)
s|ejidsoy aed ajnoe [eJeuse

3JeD |eDIPS

SIO0UDG JBUEYD ¥ [eyooled/aleAl
salls sndwed 968300 Ajunwwon
sjooyss asodind |erads olgng
S[OOUDS 3PPl Jlignd
sjooyos yhBiy Jowss olgng
S|00Yos AuBjusiiala ogqng
uoheonpy
‘Ayzus Butuodas sy Ul papn|aul JoU S82IAI8S PUE SaNIIDE

sMieyd
sjue|d Juswesl) sbemeg
suonelsans joned sylisyg
suoielsqns |osed auuew sgusysg
30150 syays Aluno)
suoiels duind Jajem ISEAN
suleL Jalem jo sa|IN
slomas Aepues jo S|y
pauelUEW sAemBal) pUB SBUIUN} 9)E)S JO SN
SulRJp WIO0IS 1O SO
sainonis abeueip pue sebpug
speoJ [220| pue Alewud AlUNcs Jo sspW aue
eipaw Ateigy Jayio
$yo0q Aleiqr
'$30IAJ8S pue sajoe) AlunoD quiode

sabe(an
sdiysumo
salD
sanuNWWoy
salW arenbs ul ealy
uonelodiooul jo sleqg

S002Z 'L Jequaneg
pRIENEUN - SINSIIEIS SNOAUE|BISIA

NYOIHOIW 'AZNNOD SWODVI




